4th Symposium Air Quality and Health Book of Abstracts

Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023



mappin



Scan the QR code to learn more about our Project!

The conference is financed with means of the Project: "Do you know what you breathe?" – educational and information campaign for cleaner air LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL



The Project "Do you know what you breathe?" – educational and information campaign for cleaner air LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL is financed with means of the European Union under the LIFE Financial instrument and co-financed by National Fund for Environmental Protection and Water Management

4th Symposium "Air Quality and Health" Book of Abstracts

Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Editors:

Magdalena Korzystka-Muskała, Joanna Kubicka, Tymoteusz Sawiński, Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz

University of Wrocław, 2023



Organizers

University of Wrocław Wroclaw University of Science and Technology City of Bydgoszcz Wroclaw Medical University Institute for Territorial Development European Clean Air Centre



The conference is financed with means of the Project: "Do you know what you breathe?"

- educational and information campaign for cleaner air LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL



The Project "Do you know what you breathe?" – educational and information campaign for cleaner air LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL is financed with means of the European Union under the LIFE Financial instrument and co-financed by National Fund for Environmental Protection and Water Management



4th Symposium "AirQuality and Health" Book of Abstracts Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Editors:

Magdalena Korzystka-Muskała, Joanna Kubicka, Tymoteusz Sawiński, Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz

Cover design and graphic design: Magdalena Korzystka-Muskała Cover photo: Tymoteusz Sawiński

© Copyright 2023 by Institute of Geography and Regional Development, University of Wrocław

ISBN: 978-83-62673-87-2 electronic publication

Institute of Geography and Regional Development University of Wrocław Plac Uniwersytecki 1, 50-137 Wrocław, Poland





Contents

Contents	4
Preface	7
Part I Oral presentations	8
Impact of air pollutants on aeroallergens	9
Institute Environmental Protection – National Research Institute role in supporting activities for Health Impact Assessment 1	0
Relationship between concentrations of selected gaseous air pollutants and quality of life in patients with bronchial asthma	2
The association between the concentration of particulate pollutants ($PM_{2.5}$ and PM_{10}) in the air and health outcomes relevan to asthma control1	
The influence of COVID-19 pandemic on deposited dose of outdoor particulate matter in human respiratory tract: a case study from Krakow, Southern Poland1	5
Ultrafine particles (UFP) – recent trends and regulatory activities1	6
Dane satelitarne w monitorowaniu składu chemicznego atmosfery – szacowanie emisji NO _x ze źródeł punktowych1	8
Spatial differentiation of air pollution with particulate matter PM ₁₀ in winter in the area of Krakow against the background of atmospheric circulation conditions1	
Preliminary studies on the emission of selected atmospheric pollutants from self-heating coal waste landfills2	0
Waste fires in Poland – magnitude and range of impact on atmosphere2	2
Application of field olfactometry in the identification of fugitive odour emission sources in municipal waste management facilities	3
Distinct differences in atmospheric aerosol optical properties within boundary layer in Polish cities2	5
Role of long-range transport in source apportionment of black carbon at the urban background and urban polluted sites2	7
The impact of a foehn wind on PM10 concentrations in Kraków area, Poland2	8
Stable isotopic signatures of methane from solid waste treatment facilities2	9
Using meteorological normalization to identify the effects of reducing air pollution emissions in Krakow	1
Cyanobacteria and microalgae in atmospheric aerosols in the coastal zone of the Gulf of Gdańsk	2
Stability of Sudeten forest ecosystems in the context of the ecological disaster and contemporary climate change	4
Phytoremediation as a passive tool to improve air quality3	6
Ambrosia pollen concentrations in south-east Poland – does the spatial differentiation exist?	7
The proximity of alder pollen sources in different districts of Rzeszów city- is it important for allergy risk?	8
The occurrence of boletes spores in the air in relation to weather and land use	9
Distribution of boletes spores in a beech forest4	0
Aerobiology in forensic science – prospects and perspective4	1
Dwie dekady monitoringu pyłkowego w Łodzi – implikacje dla diagnostyki i terapii4	2



Impact of climate change on allergenic pollen concentrations in the air in Wrocław for the years 2003-202243
Sources of allergenic pollen in urban environment: detection of plane trees using open access remote sensing data
Birch pollen concentration at the ground level: spatial variation and relation to roof data45
Immunological response to birch pollen allergens against the background of air pollution. Preliminary results
Analiza wyników testów skórnych w kontekście badań aerobiologicznych w Łodzi47
Air quality versus health of winter rapeseed crops
Modeling the impact of changing the method of heating apartments in Krakow in the years 2012-2018 on the level of PM ₁₀ concentrations
Application of a dynamic air quality mapping system (DMJP) for monitoring and assessing the impact of odour facilities52
Application of ADMS-Urban for an area with a high contribution of residential heating emissions – model verification and sensitivity study for PM _{2.5}
High resolution GHG dispersion modeling in urban environment – case study from Krakow
Effect of data separation on the effectiveness of modeling NO _x concentrations in an urban agglomeration55
A novel approach to low-stack emission management57
Copernicus Atmosphere Monitoring Service – implementation of National Collaboration Programme for Poland
Opportunity to conduct research on atmospheric pollution using a hot air balloon
Application of field olfactometry and gas sensors in odorous samples analyzes60
Measurement of particulate matter gaseous compounds and odor identification based on the experience of Atut Ltd
Are the government's air quality improvement programs having a measurable effect? – Air quality changes in Warsaw and surrounding areas
Air quality and health effects related to pollution as an indicator of the progress of energy transformation
What will be the low emission zone in Wrocław?
Part II Poster session
Exposure of inhabitants of Silesia to B[a]P and volatility of PM _{2.5} and PM ₁₀ concentrations
Preliminary assessment of the influence of meteorological conditions on the variability of concentrations and composition of particulate matter in indoor and outdoor air in the area of a selected health resort
Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons in particulate matter of a rescue and firefighting unit as a source of health hazard for firefighters
The role of fine particles in urban air pollution71
Differences between variability patterns of pollutants concentrations measured at traffic and urban backgrund stations in Warsaw72
Radon-health hazard gas and tool to evaluate GHG flux73
The cleaning effect of rainfall – Results of long term measurements of wet deposition in polluted urban environment74
Improvement of PM _{2.5} concentration modelling using the Random Forest algorithm75
TROPOMI NO ₂ tropospheric column assimilation – a hybrid ensemble-variational approach (4DVar)
Social factor in assessing the olfactory impact of odour-emitting facilities
The influence of air quality in the heating season on health residents80
Assessment of the diversity of exposure to PM _{2.5} concentrations as a result of the use of various protective face masks during the COVID-19 pandemic



Air quality in seaside resorts	85
Microbiological air quality – the influence of the method on the interpretation of results in the estimation of biological hazards	
Allergenic Potential Of Urban Green Spaces, Case Study From Poznań, Poland (Central Europe)	87
Applicability of DeltaPix InSight software for hazel, alder and birch pollen counting	
Birch pollen allergenicity in Poznań city area	
Pollen seasons of selected Cupressales species with relation to flowering phenology in Poznań during 2023	90
Optimizing the ozonation process under different ventilation parameters for safe indoor bioaerosol removal	91
Identifying pollen episodes using a synergy of in-situ and remote sensing measurements	92
Application of mobile platform and geostatistical methods in the analysis of air quality in the selected area of the	
Possibilities of using the wind profiler for air quality tests. First experiences	96
Comparison of PM mass and concentration variations determined using traditional – manual weighing and robotic system	
The Air Quality Monitoring System In The City Of Kielce	
Usefulness of UAV-mounted multisensors system for in situ atmospheric measurement: a case study from Wrocła	w100
Evaluation of the suitability of the application of selected measurement and calculation methods in the odour imp assessment of the waste management facilities – A case study	
Application of selected measurement and calculation methods in the analysis of particulate matter emission source areas	
Preliminary studies on the optimisation of the operating conditions of the BTF for the hydrogen sulfide removal	
Gaseous air pollutants in Silesia Province – comparison between Sentinel 5P satellite data and ground measureme	ents 107
The occurrence of BETX inside motor vehicles	
Formaldehyde in the indoor air of beauty salon – first results	
Particulate matter in the indoor air in a residential house – a case study from Goczałkowice-Zdrój	



Preface

In recent years, air pollution has been recognized as one of the most important environmental threats. It is not surprising, because it turns out that about 7 million people die prematurely every year in the world from illnesses attributable to them. It should also be remembered that the deterioration of air quality causes a reduction in biodiversity, as well as the degradation of other environmental values, and many compounds identified as key airborne pollutants affecting the climate of our planet.

Despite the seriousness of the problem, recently the fight against air pollution in our country has been very difficult. First, the COVID-19 pandemic putted it aside, further weakening the health and immunity of the society. Then, the war in Ukraine and the resulting disturbances on the energy carrier markets caused many unfavourable phenomena that could directly and indirectly affect air quality. The increase in fuel prices and the resulting sense of threat became a pretext for a temporary liberalization of the energy market, for example by allowing low-quality fuels to be traded. The provisions of some anti-smog resolutions have also undergone unfavourable changes.

However, the current situation can be treated as an opportunity, as changes in the fuel market in the last heating season have clearly shown that relying on traditional energy carriers will not ensure our permanent security. Meanwhile, ecological solutions can help to successfully face real problems and provide warmth in our homes.

In these circumstances, the fourth edition of the Scientific Conference "Air Quality and Health" is being organized, carried out as part of the Project "Do you know what you breathe?" – educational and information campaign for cleaner air, LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL. The conference is organized jointly by the University of Wrocław, the Wrocław University of Technology and the City of Bydgoszcz - partners of the LIFE-MAPPINGAIR/PL project together with the Medical University in Wrocław, the Institute for Territorial Development and the European Clean Air Centre foundation.

Traditionally, our conference has been conceived as a platform for the exchange of experiences, connecting the scientific community, institutions dealing with air quality issues, national, regional and local authorities, non-governmental organizations and environmental educators.

As in previous editions, the conference will cover issues related to air pollution - their emission, dispersion and deposition, as well as the impact on human health and life, environmental education and legal aspects of activities related to improving air quality. This year, the main topic of the conference also included issues related to bioaerosol - very important from the social perspective, especially in the conditions of intensifying climate change.

The issues presented above were reflected in the presentations submitted to the conference, including 51 oral presentations and 32 posters. I am pleased to invite you to read their summaries, collected in this volume.

Tymoteusz Sawiński Chair of Organizing Committee Of the Conference



Part I Oral presentations



Impact of air pollutants on aeroallergens

Łukasz Grewling

grewling@amu.edu.pl

Laboratory of Aerobiology, Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, Faculty of Biology, Adam Mickiewicz University, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań, Poland

KEY WORDS: pollution, allergy, pollen grains, fungal spores, allergens

Air pollution is a significant global health risk factor. Exposure to air pollution is associated with the development and exacerbation of allergic respiratory disease (Brandt et al., 2015). Various air pollutants, including sulfur dioxide (SO_2), nitrogen oxides (NO_x), and ozone (O_3), can directly or indirectly impact human health by modifying allergy triggers, such as aeroallergens (inhalant allergens). The combined exposure to air pollutants and aeroallergens can synergistically affect allergic reactions (Anenberg et al., 2020).

Pollen-producing plants and fungal spores serve as the primary sources of outdoor aeroallergens. These airborne particles carry allergenic proteins that are released upon contact with mucosa or due to rupture in the ambient air (Suanno et al., 2022). The qualitative and quantitative characteristics of allergens can be altered by the presence of air pollutants. Studies have demonstrated that air pollutants can modify allergen structure through processes such as nitrosylation, oligomerization, oxidation, and acidification (Senechal et al. 2015). Exposure to ozone and nitrogen dioxide can alter the molecular structure of certain allergens and change the IgE-binding affinity of these allergens. Moreover, pollen exposed to high levels of pollution has shown increased expression of allergenic proteins, particularly from the pathogenesis-related protein family, resulting in elevated amounts of allergens and increased allergenicity of pollen (Midoro-Horiuti et al., 2001). Apart from directly affecting aeroallergens, air pollutants may also impact plant and pollen development (Senechal et al. 2015).

Overall, air pollution exerts a detrimental impact on aeroallergens and consequently contributes to the prevalence of allergic respiratory diseases. To enhance allergy management strategies, these factors should be integrated into a unified system of air quality monitoring, which simultaneously measures anthropogenic air pollutants and aeroallergens.

Fundings: National Science Centre Grant OPUS-20 (no 2020/39/B/ST10/01554).

REFERENCES

Anenberg S.C., Haines S., Wang E., Nassikas N., Kinney P.L. 2020. Synergistic health effects of air pollution, temperature, and pollen exposure: a systematic review of epidemiological evidence. Environmental Health 19:130

Brandt E.B., Biagini Myers J.M., Ryan P.H., Khurana Hershey G.K. 2015. Air pollution and allergic diseases. Curr Opin Pediatr 27(6): 724-735

Midoro-Horiuti T., Brooks E.G., Goldblum R.M. 2001. Pathogenesis-related proteins of plants as allergens. Ann Allergy Asthma Immunol 87:261–271

Senechal H., Visez N., Charpin D., Shahali Y., Peltre G., Biolley J-P., Lhuissier F., Couderc R., Yamada O., Malrat-Domenge A., Pham-Thi N., Poncet P., Sutra J-P. 2015. A Review of the Effects of Major Atmospheric Pollutants on Pollen Grains, Pollen Content, and Allergenicity. Scientific World Journal 2015: 940243.

Suanno Ch., Sandrini S., Aloisi I., De Nuntiis P., Facchini M.C., Del Duca S., Fernandez-Gonzalez D., 2022. Airborne Pollen, Allergens, and Proteins: A Comparative Study of Three Sampling Methods. Sustainability 14(19), 11825



Institute Environmental Protection – National Research Institute role in supporting activities for Health Impact Assessment

Krzysztof Skotak¹, Krystian Szczepański¹

krzysztof.skotak@ios.edu.pl, krystian.szczepanski@ios.edu.pl ¹Institute of Environmental Protection – National Research Institute, Warsaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality, climate change, health, risk, assessment

Since air pollution and climate change are now one of the most significant health hazards, there is a sufficient scientific basis to justify developing approaches to incorporate epidemiological assessment into the health-related risk. Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and Health Risk Assessment (HRA) concepts and Driving force – Pressure – State – Exposure – Effect - Action (DPSEEA) framework are the basis of a practical approach adopted by Institute of Environmental Protection – National Research Institute (IEP-NRI) to judge the potential health effects of a policy, programme or project focused on a general population and vulnerable groups. Both concepts and DPSEEA framework shows the link between exposures (e.g, to air pollution or phenomena and climate threats) and health effects as determined by many different factors operating through a chain of events, and clearly shows the many entry points for interventions (WHO, 9199, 2001, 2021; Hambling et al. 2011; Tavoos et el. 2021).

Within this framework, the **driving forces** refers to the factors which motivate and push the environmental processes involved like population growth, technological and economic development and policy intervention. The driving forces result in the generation of **pressures on the environment** (e.g. air pollutants emission including greenhouse gases). These are normally expressed through human occupation or exploitation of the environment, and may be generated by all sectors of economic activity, including mining and quarrying, energy production, manufacturing, service industries, transport, agriculture and forestry. Identification of driving forces and estimation of pressure volume takes place in National Centre for Emissions Management (KOBiZE) operating in the IEP-NRI.

In response to these pressures, the **state of the environment** is often modified. The changes involved are complex and farreaching, affecting almost all aspects of the environment. Many changes are intense and localised and often concentrated close to the source of pressure (e.g. urban air pollution). Many others are more widespread, contributing to regional and global environmental change (e.g. climate change). When people are exposed to these environmental hazards, then risks to health may occur. Environment ambient population **exposure** refers to the quantity of the pollutant or climate risk at the interface between the recipient and the environment and is measured based on combination monitoring and different modelling techniques. The amount of any given pollutant that is absorbed is often termed the absorbed dose, and may be dependent on the duration and intensity of the exposure. Environmental assessment and level of exposure takes place in many IEP-NRI unites, mainly in Integrated Environmental Research and Sustainable Development Centres.

Exposure to environmental hazards, in turn, leads to a wide range of health **effects**. These may vary in type, intensity and magnitude depending upon the type of hazard to which people have been exposed, the level of exposure and the number of people involved.

Therefore, in order to correctly quantify and qualitatively assess the health effects associated with exposure to environmental stressors, in particular related to air quality and climate change, high-quality and spatial resolution data developed in the IEP-NRI in the chain Driving force - Pressure - State - Exposure framework are of key importance.

Based on developed and adapted to Polish conditions statistical methods and advanced models in IEP-NRI, is possible preparing science based knowledge recommendations and measures proposals for decision-makers and stakeholders, with the aim of maximizing positive health effects and minimizing environmental negative impact on health.

REFERENCES

WHO 1999, Protection of the Human Environment Occupational and Environmental Health Series. WHO 2001, Health Impact Assessment (HIA).

WHO 2021, WHO global air quality guidelines: particulate matter (PM2.5 and PM10), ozone, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide and carbon monoxide.

Tavoos et el. 2021, Air Pollution Health Risk Assessment (AP-HRA), Principles and Applications. Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health 2021, 18, 1935

Hambling et al. 2011, A Review of Frameworks for Developing Environmental Health Indicators for Climate Change and Health. Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health 2011, 8



Relationship between concentrations of selected gaseous air pollutants and quality of life in patients with bronchial asthma

Bartosz Balcerzak¹, Monika Ścibor¹

bartosz.balcerzak@uj.edu.pl ,monika.scibor@uj.edu.pl ¹Jagiellonian University Medical College, Institute of Public Health, Faculty of Health Sciences, Department of Environmental Health, Skawińska Str. 8, 31-066 Krakow, Poland

INTRODUCTION:

It is generally known that one of the adverse effects that air pollution causes in asthmatic patients is the decrease of health related quality of life (HRQoL), nevertheless the results of the actual measurement clarifying the interaction between air pollution and HRQoL are still scarce. This knowledge gap has a negative impact on air quality management, especially in the case of vulnerable groups whose well-being should be protected by air quality standards.

AIM OF STUDY:

The aim of the study was to estimate the potential impact of selected gaseous air pollutants (NO, NO₂, NO_x, SO₂, CO) on HRQoL of asthma patients.

MATERIALS AND METHODS:

The study was conducted in Krakow, one of the cities in Europe where air quality standards, especially in winter, are most often exceeded.). The group of 300 individuals with partially controlled asthma was recruited by medical doctor and the data from the fixed-site monitors were used to assessed their exposure level in the place of residence. As a standardised tool to measure the health related quality of life we used the Asthma Quality of Life Questionnaire (AQLQ).

RESULTS:

The statistically significant adverse effect on HRQoL was found in the case of nitrogen oxides (NO, NO₂, NOx) of which the concentrations exceeded the values that could be seen as an moderate level of exposure. Most of these affect all domains of AQLQ (symptoms, emotional function, environmental stimuli, activity limitation). For gases with concentrations that do not usually exceed the values set as air quality standards (SO2, CO), the results are inconclusive.

CONCLUSIONS:

Our studies have shown that concentrations of gaseous air pollutants, which tend to exceed air quality standards, negatively affect not only the respiratory function of people with asthma, but also their quality of life. This should be taken into account when developing environmental health policies, aimed at protecting the health of vulnerable groups.

This research was financed by the grant of the Polish National Science Centre no. DEC-2011/03/BNZ7/00644

REFERENCES:

- 1. Theofilou, P. (2013) 'Quality of Life: Definition and Measurement', *Europe's Journal of Psychology*, 9(1), pp. 150–162. doi: 10.5964/ejop.v9i1.337.
- Etzel, R. A. (2003) 'How Environmental Exposures Influence the Development and Exacerbation of Asthma', *Pediatrics*, 112(1), p. 233. Available at: http://search.ebscohost.com/login.aspx?direct=true&db=hxh&AN=10145229&site=ehost-live (Accessed: 28 October 2018).
- 3. Global Initiative for Asthma. Global Strategy for Asthma Management and Prevention, 2020. Available from: www.ginasthma.org
- 4. Bowatte G, Lodge CJ, Knibbs LD, Erbas B, Perret JL, Jalaludin B, et al. Traffic related air pollution and development and persistence of asthma and low lung function. Environ Int. 2018;113:170–6.



- 5. Orellano, P. et al. (2017) 'Effect of outdoor air pollution on asthma exacerbations in children and adults: Systematic review and multilevel meta-analysis', PloS one, 12(3), p. e0174050. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0174050.
- 6. Kowalska, Małgorzata & Skrzypek, & Kowalski, Michał & Cyrys, Josef. (2020). Effect of NOx and NO2 Concentration Increase in Ambient Air to Daily Bronchitis and Asthma Exacerbation, Silesian Voivodeship in Poland. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health. 17. 754. 10.3390/ijerph17030754.
- Ashutosh, Kumar MD Nitric oxide and asthma: a review, Current Opinion in Pulmonary Medicine: January 2000 Volume 6 - Issue 1 - p 21-25
- 8. Ścibor M, Malinowska-Cieślik M. The association of exposure to PM₁₀ with the quality of life in adult asthma patients. *Int J* Occup Med Environ Health. 2020;33(3):311-324. doi:10.13075/ijomeh.1896.01527



The association between the concentration of particulate pollutants (PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀) in the air and health outcomes relevant to asthma control

Monika Ścibor¹, Bartosz Balcerzak¹

<u>monika.scibor@uj.edu.pl</u>, <u>bartosz.balcerzak@uj.edu.pl</u> ¹Jagiellonian University Medical College, Institute of Public Health, Faculty of Health Sciences, Department of Environmental Health, Skawińska Str. 8, 31-066 Krakow, Poland

INTRODUCTION:

Particulate matter (PM) has the most damaging effects on human health among all air pollutants. This is especially true for members of vulnerable groups. It seems that health of people with asthma should be strongly effected, however, the results of previous studies on the association of air concentrations of particulate matter (PM) with health outcomes, such as impaired pulmonary function, symptom frequency, and medication use are inconsistent.

AIM OF STUDY:

The goal of our study was to increase knowledge about the relationship between these health effects, that are important for asthma self-management or control, and recent concentrations of fine (PM_{2.5}) and coarse (PM₁₀) particles in the air.

MATERIALS AND METHODS:

We conducted our study in one of the most polluted cities in Europe. The novelty of this study was the inclusion of a homogeneous group of patients with diagnosed and controlled asthma. Patients recorded their symptoms, inhaler use, and peak expiratory flow (PEF) measurements in a diary for two weeks. Data on particulate air pollution were obtained from stationary monitoring stations.

RESULTS:

We have shown that particulate pollutants, both PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$, significantly affect the deterioration of respiratory function (PEF), the frequency of early asthma symptoms, as well as the asthma quick-relief inhaler use. Moreover, these effects are observed not only on the day of exposure, but also on the following day.

CONCLUSIONS:

Negative effect of air pollution is observed during the day of exposure and during the following day. However, the air quality from two days ago does not seem to affect asthma patients anymore. Easily obtainable information on local real-time levels and forecasts of particulate matter air pollution are crucial for proper asthma self-management.

This research was financed by the grant of the Polish National Science Centre no. DEC-2011/03/BNZ7/00644



The influence of COVID-19 pandemic on deposited dose of outdoor particulate matter in human respiratory tract: a case study from Krakow, Southern Poland

L. Samek¹, J. Bartyzel¹, V. Martins², M. Lazaridis³, M. Zimnoch¹, A. Ryś¹, S.M. Almeida²

Lucyna.Samek@fis.agh.edu.pl, Jakub.Bartyzel@fis.agh.edu.pl, vania.martins@ctn.tecnico.ulisboa.pt, mlazaridis@tuc.gr, Zimnoch@agh.edu.pl, TurekFijak@agh.edu.pl, smarta@ctn.tecnico.ulisboa.pt

¹Faculty of Physics and Applied Computer Science, AGH University of Science and Technology, Al. Mickiewicza 30, 30-059 Krakow, Poland

²Centro de Ciencias e Tecnologias Nucleares, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Universidade de Lisboa, Estrada Nacional 10, Km 139.7, 2695-066 Bobadela LRS, Portugal

³School of Environmental Engineering, Technical University of Crete, Chania 73100, Greece

ABSTRACT

High air pollution is still observed in many Polish cities especially during wintertime. The PM₁₀ concentration in Krakow was lowering by about 50% during the last decade. The restrictions in the activity connected to COVID-19 pandemic also has influence on the level of particulate matter pollution. The aim of this study was to present the hourly variations of mass concentrations of different size fractions of airborne particulate matter (APM) as well as the hourly deposited dose of particles in human respiratory tract (HRT). The main point of the presented results was to show assessments of dose for the year 2019 (before pandemic) and 2022 (during pandemic) in Krakow, Poland. Hourly particle mass data of 10 size fractions of APM were collected in 2019 and 2022. Hourly deposited dose for particle mass was determined by dosimetry model ExDoM2 for male adults. Three peaks of particle mass hourly deposited doses were observed in the morning (6-9) at noon (12-14) and in the evening (17-21) for fine and coarse fractions. The hourly deposited dose in human adult male respiratory tract was in the range of 0.4 to 3.5 µg for fine fraction. The main difference in hourly dose in the tracheobronchial region and in the alveolar–interstitial region calculated for 2019 and 2022 was in the morning (6-9). For the year 2022 hourly dose was higher than for 2019. Hourly dose of coarse mass was higher in extra thoracic airways in 2022 than 2019, specially during higher activity. It was in the range 2-10 µg. Higher hourly deposited dose in mass were in the year 2022, compared to 2019 for fine fraction. Lower value of dose was in 2022 than in 2019 for coarse fraction. The total dose received by male adults was lower in 2022 than in 2019, especially in the morning, noon and in the evening.

Acknowledgments

The bilateral cooperation project (no BPN/BPT/2021/1/00001 in Poland and no 2021.09406.CBM in Portugal) between Poland and Portugal partially financed this work together with the subsidy of the Ministry of Science and Higher Education, grant number 16.16.220.842. Conflicts of Interest: The authors declare that they have no know conflict of interest or personal relationships that could have appeared to influence the work reported in this paper.



Ultrafine particles (UFP) – recent trends and regulatory activities

Lucia Bustin¹, Torsten Tritscher¹, Sebastian H. Schmitt¹, Oliver F. Bischof¹

lucia.bustin@tsi.com, torsten.tritscher@tsi.com, sebastian.schmitt@tsi.com, oliver.bischof@tsi.com ¹TSI GmbH, Neukoellner Str. 4, 52068 Aachen, Germany

KEY WORDS: Ultrafine Particles, Particle Number Concentration, Particle Size Distribution, Monitoring

For many years, mass-based particulate matter PM2.5 and PM10 measurements have been standardized (DIN EN 12341:2014) for the regulatory quantification and monitoring of particles in ambient air. However, recent studies reported that ultrafine particles, which are defined as particles equal or smaller than 0.1 μ m, seem to be a better indicator of harmful air pollution in urban areas. Therefore, the measurement of the particle number concentration (PNC), which is most representative of ultrafine particles (UFP) has gained much interest and importance.

Reports such as Leipzig Environmental Zone from 2017 focusing on UFP and their harmful effects that have been made publicly available helped spread the word on the relevance of UFP monitoring. In 2019, a team of experts summarized the current knowledge on UFPs in a white paper on ambient ultrafine particles (Cassee et al., 2019). This report has been cited by the World Health Organization in the WHO Global Air Quality Guidelines published in September 2021. For the first time, these guidelines mention the need to expand the common air quality monitoring networks by integrating UFP measurements. It recommends to include size-segregated particle size distributions (PSD) and real-time PNC measurements in addition to simultaneous measurements with other airborne pollutants and characteristics of PM.

In order to harmonize and standardize these measurements. the European Committee for Standardization (CEN) has published the technical specification CEN/TS 16976:2016 for PNC measurements in ambient air using a Condensation Particle Counter (CPC). Based on it, a German standard DIN EN 16976 'Ambient air Determination of the particle number concentration of atmospheric aerosol' is currently being finalized. In addition, the CEN/TS 17434 technical specification for measuring the particle size distribution of ambient air by Scanning Mobility Particle Sizers (SMPS, or 'Mobility Particle Sizer Spectrometer', MPSS, in regulatory terms) was published in 2019.

Finally, the proposal for a Directive of the EU Parliament and of the Council on ambient air quality and cleaner air for Europe (COM/2022/542 final) was published in October 2022. The intention of this document is to align EU air quality standards much more closely with WHO the aforementioned recommendations.

Against the background of all these regulatory activities, we present the technical solution for reproducible sampling, conditioning and measurement of UFP as well as the necessary data handling. The complete measurement solution from TSI (see Fig. 1) is compliant



Fig. 1 CEN-compliant solution for UFP measurements of PSD and PNC including the dedicated sampling system.

with the aforementioned CEN technical specifications and it meets requirements of the ACTRIS European Research Infrastructure Consortium.

REFERENCES

Cassee, F.R., Morawska, L., Peters, A. 2019. Ambient ultrafine particles: evidence for policy makers, White Paper, European Federation of Clean Air and Environmental Protection Associations, Pfintal, Germany, https://research.qut.edu.au/ilaqh/2019/11/08/white-paper-on-ambient-ultrafine-particle-evidence-for-policy-makers-published-on-the-efca-website/

CEN/TS 16976:2016. (soon: DIN EN 16976) Ambient air. Determination of the particle number concentration of atmospheric aerosol

CEN/TS 17434:2019. Ambient air. Determination of the particle number size distribution of atmospheric aerosol using a Mobility Particle Size Spectrometer (MPSS).

DIN EN 12341:2014. Ambient air - Standard gravimetric measurement method for the determination of the PM_{10} or PM2,5 mass concentration of suspended particulate

Loeschau et al.2017 . Leipzig environmental zone, final report, State Office for the Environment, Agriculture and Geology https://publikationen.sachsen.de/bdb/artikel/29757

WHO global air quality guidelines 2021, https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240034228



Dane satelitarne w monitorowaniu składu chemicznego atmosfery – szacowanie emisji NO_x ze źródeł punktowych

Bożena Łapeta¹, Jolanta Godłowska², Monika J. Hajto¹, Kamil Kaszowski²

bozena.lapeta@imgw.pl, jolanta.godlowska@imgw.pl, monika.hajto@imgw.pl, kamil kaszowski@imgw.pl ¹ Zakład Teledetekcji Satelitarnej, IMGW-PIB, ul. P. Borowego 14, 30-215 Kraków, Poland ² Zakład Meteorologii, Klimatologii i Ochrony Atmosfery, IMGW-PIB, ul. P. Borowego 14, 30-215 Kraków , Poland

KEY WORDS: nitrogen oxides, emission variability, emission inventory, TROPOMI

ABSTRACT

Satellite data play an important role in monitoring the atmosphere by providing information on its chemical composition on a regional and global scale. Suffice it to mention the contribution of satellite data to the discovery and monitoring of the ozone hole phenomenon. However, the poor spatial resolution of these data has significantly limited the possibility of using them to detect and inventory sources of gas emissions, including greenhouse gases and/or sources of atmospheric pollution. Operational availability of Sentinel-5P/TROPOMI level-2 products provided an unique opportunity to study atmospheric composition with spatial resolution of 3.5x7km (3.5x5.6km since August 2019). This allows for better detection and estimation of NO₂ emission from point emitters using satellite data.

Sentinel-5P/TROPOMI NO₂ tropospheric column content data were used to estimate the NO_x life time and the emission from selected large point sources (power plants) located in Poland applying two developed methods: background 5 percentile (BM5) and search streak (SSM) ones.

The calculations were performed for five selected power plant point emitters for selected meteorological conditions (temperature, cloudiness, wind and circulation type), what enabled to decrease the influence of long-distance transport as well as the emission from other sources. The satellite derived NOx emission values were compared with E-PRTR data and the measurements performed at the power plants using infrared absorption method.

Moreover, the error analysis for both methods was performed. The obtained results indicated that the actual emission from point emitters is overestimated by satellite derived one and the accuracy of the SSM method was slightly better for almost all analysed emitters.

The methodologies as well as the obtained results will be presented and discussed.



Spatial differentiation of air pollution with particulate matter PM₁₀ in winter in the area of Krakow against the background of atmospheric circulation conditions

Małgorzata Falarz

malgorzata.falarz@us.edu.pl

University of Silesia in Katowice, Faculty of Natural Sciences, ul. Będzińska 60, 41-200 Sosnowiec

KEY WORDS: particulate matter PM10, Kraków area, atmospheric circulation

The main aims of the research are: 1) understanding the spatial diversity of air pollution with PM10 in winter in the area of Krakow, 2) indicating baric situations in which high PM10 values occur. The average daily values of particulate matter in the period from December to February at eight measuring stations located in Krakow in 2016-2022 (2017-2022 for Wadów, 2019-2022 for Swoszowice) were analyzed. Measurement data was taken from the GIOŚ website. The following were examined: average value of particulate matter during winter, average number of days with a value of > 50 μ g/m³, number of days for the alert level (> 150 μ g/m³). The dependencies of the average value of PM10 and values above the norm on the relative height of the measuring point, its distance from the city center and the direction of location relative to the center were analyzed.

Mean PM10 concentration during the winter period ranges from 47 μ g/m³ (Swoszowice, Wadów) to 66 μ g/m³ (al. Krasińskiego). The maximum values exceeded 300 μ g/m³. The number of days with values above the average daily norm ranged from 31 in Wadów (at the station located the furthest from the center) to 47 at al. Krasińskiego (in the center of Krakow). Three stations recorded values exceeding the norm for more than 35 days during the winter. The alert level was recorded on average for 2-4 winter days, with a maximum at Krasińskiego Avenue and Bujak Street, south of the city center. The longest sequence of alarm values was recorded on 27.01.2017. to 3.02.2017. (8 days). The average PM10 value for winter and the number of days with PM10 > 50 μ g/m³ show a negligible inverse relationship with the distance from the city centre (r = -0.67; n=8) and the relative height of the measuring point (r= -0.45; n=8). No dependence of the PM10 value on the direction of station location relative to the center was found. 86% of cases with PM10 alarm values occurred in an anticyclone situation. 63% of these cases occurred when a high-pressure wedge or anticyclone with an advection from the southwest or west over southern Poland were observed.

There is a fairly significant variation in the values of PM10 particulate matter in winter in the area of Krakow. However, the dependencies of PM10 characteristics on the distance from the city center and the relative height of the measuring point are weak.



Preliminary studies on the emission of selected atmospheric pollutants from self-heating coal waste landfills

Karolina Paszcza

karolina.paszcza@us.edu.pl

University of Silesia in Katowice, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Institute of Earth Sciences, 60 Będzińska Str. 41-200 Sosnowiec, Poland

KEY WORDS: self-heating, coal waste dumps, atmospheric pollutants

Hard coal mining landfills are an inevitable element of the landscape of highly industrialized regions, such as Upper Silesia. The stored rocks, due to the content of organic carbon, are reactive and undergo several transformations over time. Among them, the process of spontaneous heating of waste is particularly dangerous (e.g. Drenda et al. 2007; Misz-Kennan, Fabiańska, 2010; Fabiańska et al., 2017, Różański, 2018).

Emission of a wide range of substances into the atmosphere as a result of self-heating has only recently begun to be recognized as a significant environmental and health problem (e.g. Fabiańska et al., 2018; Munawer, 2018; Li et al., 2021). Research to date has focused mainly on gases (e.g. Fabiańska et al., 2013; Kruszewski et al., 2018, 2020; Wasilewski, 2020). Little is known about the extent of the composition and migration of volatile organic compounds and substances adsorbed on dust, and the transformations they may undergo during such migration, and hence our knowledge of their impact on the environment is limited.

Three measurement campaigns were carried out at the landfill in the north-western part of the city of Bytom, taking into account: concentrations of particulate matter (PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, PM_1), selected gases (e.g. CO_2 , H_2S , TVOC, etc.), samples of nanoparticles were taken and their amounts in the environment were determined. Suspended particulate matter samples were collected for further testing in stationary laboratories. After a preliminary analysis of the results, it was found that the concentrations of suspended particulate matter were significantly exceeded. The recorded values are on average 10224 μ g/m³ for PM₁₀, 1930 μ g/m³ for PM_{2.5}, and 5590 μ g/m³ for PM₁. The highest measured value was 152492 μ g/m³ for PM₁₀, exceeding the standard more than 150 times. According to the Air Quality Index, air quality is very bad and harms health (GIOŚ, 2023).

Acknowledgments

The author thanks for the opportunity to use the equipment of the University Laboratories of Atmosphere Control (ULKA) of the University of Silesia in Katowice. The author thanks Mrs. dr hab. prof. UŚ Mariola Jabłońska for substantive care, Mr. mgr inż. Mirosław Szczyrba, and Mr. dr Tomasz Krzykawski for technical assistance.

REFERENCES

Drenda J., Różański Z., Słota K., Wrona P., 2007, Zagrożenie pożarowe na zwałowiskach odpadów powęglowych, Górnictwo i Geoinżynieria, rok 31, zeszyt 3/1

Fabiańska M.J, Ciesielczuk J., Kruszewski Ł., Misz-Kennan M., Blake D. R., Stracher G., Moszumańska I., 2013, Gaseous compounds and efflorescences generated in self-heating coal-waste dumps - A case study from the Upper- and Lower Silesian Coal Basins (Poland), International Journal of Coal Geology, pp. 116-117, 247-261.

Fabiańska M.J., Misz-Kennan M., Ciesielczuk J., Pierwoła J., Nitecka N., Brzoznowski J., 2017, Thermal history of coal wastes reflected in their organic geochemistry and petrography; the case study: The Katowice-Wełnowiec dump, Poland, International Journal of Coal Geology, pp. 18411–26.

Fabiańska M.J., Ciesielczuk J., Nádudvari Á., Misz-Kennan M., Kowalski A., Kruszewski Ł., 2018, Environmental influence of gaseous emissions from self-heating coal waste dumps in Silesia, Poland, Environmental Geochemistry and Health, 41, pp. 575–601.

Kruszewski Ł., Fabiańska M.J., Ciesielczuk J., Segit T., Moszumańska I., 2018, First multi-tool exploration of a gas-condensatepyrolysate system from the environment of burning coal mine heaps: An in situ FTIR and laboratory GC and PXRD study based on Upper Silesian materials, Science of the Total Environment, pp. 640–641, 1044-1071.

Kruszewski Ł., Fabiańska M.J., Segit T., Kusy D., Motylińki R., Ciesielczuk J., Deput E., 2020, Carbon nitrogen compounds, alcohols, mercaptans, monoterpenes, acetates, aldehydes, ketones, SF6, PH3, and other fire gases in coal-mining waste heaps

of Upper Silesian Coal Basin (Poland) – a re-investigation by means of in situ FTIR external database approach, Science of The Total Environment, pp. 698, 134274.

Li A., Chen Ch., Chena J., Leia P., 2021, Environmental investigation of pollutants in coal mine operation and waste dump area monitored in Ordos Region, China, RSC Adv., 11, pp. 10340.

Misz Kennan M., Fabiańska M. J., 2010, Thermal transformation of organic matter in coal waste from Rymer Cones (Upper Silesian Coal Basin, Poland), International Journal of Coal Geology, vol. 81(4), pp. 343-358.

Munawer M. E., 2018, Human health and environmental impacts of coal combustion and post-combustion wastes, Journal of Sustainable Mining, 17(2), pp. 87-96.

Różański Z., 2018, Fire hazard in coal waste dumps – selected aspects of the environmental impact, IOP Conf. Ser.: Earth Environ. Sci., 174, 012013.

Wasilewski S., 2020, Monitoring the thermal and gaseous activity of coal waste dumps, Environmental Earth Sciences, 79:474. https://powietrze.gios.gov.pl/pjp/content/health informations



Waste fires in Poland – magnitude and range of impact on atmosphere

Jan Stefan Bihałowicz¹, Wioletta Rogula-Kozłowska¹, Adam Krasuski¹, Zdzisław Salamonowicz¹

jbihalowicz@sgsp.edu.pl (jbihalowicz@apoz.edu.pl), wrogula@sgsp.edu.pl (wrogula@apoz.edu.pl), akrasuski@sgsp.edu.pl (akrasuski@apoz.edu.pl), zsalamonowicz@sgsp.edu.pl (zsalamonowicz@apoz.edu.pl) ¹The Main School of Fire Service, Slowackiego 52/54, 01-629 Warsaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: landfill fire, atmospheric dispersion, range of impact, environmental impact assessment

Pollutants emitted into the atmosphere during fires are a threat of special concern since they can be transported over a long distance. Mechanisms in the atmosphere can dilute or concentrate pollutants. In general, models of atmospheric dispersion are based on long-term measurements of meteorological parameters; however, fire, as a spontaneous phenomenon does not obey "average" meteorological conditions, and dispersion needs to be modeled with more specific data. Analysis of the data shows that landfill fires constitute a significant share of the largest fires in Poland (Bihałowicz et al. 2021a, Bihałowicz 2022a). The study provides spatial analyses performed using geographic information system (GIS) software on the landfill fires in 2018 in Poland. The composition and amount of substances emitted in landfill fires are site-specific, while during all waste fires, particulate matter is emitted (Bihałowicz et al. 2021a). Hence the study copresence simulations of PM10 dispersion in atmospheric air from the 79 biggest waste fires that took place in 2018 in Poland. The dispersion of PM was evaluated using HYSPLIT simulations based on meteorological data observed during the fire. The total emission was evaluated based on the data of the State Fire Service in Poland (KG PSP 2020) according to the methodology provided by (Bihałowicz et al. 2021a). During the simulations, the range and area of impact of each fire were determined after processing HYSPLIT results in GIS software as described in (Bihałowicz et al. 2021b, Bihałowicz 2022b). The range and area are related by elemental mathematical functions only for low concentrations; hence both of them are required to evaluate the impact of fire on the atmosphere. The result of 79 simulations showed that pollutants from waste fires are typically transported in a different direction from the usual direction of winds in Poland (usually opposite direction). The results also showed that waste fires contribute to the transboundary transport of pollutants and cause increases in concentration on the European scale (Bihałowicz et al. 2021b, Bihałowicz 2021c).

Acknowledgments

The work was supported within PRELUDIUM 19 funding scheme (pre-doctoral grant) awarded to Jan Stefan

Bihałowicz (2020/37/N/ST10/2997).

REFERENCES

Bihałowicz, J. S., Rogula-Kozłowska, W., & Krasuski, A. 2021a, Contribution of landfill fires to air pollution–An assessment methodology, Waste Management, Vol. 125, pp. 182-191

Bihałowicz, J. S., Rogula-Kozłowska, W., Krasuski, A., & Salamonowicz, Z. 2021b, The critical factors of landfill fire impact on air quality, Environmental Research Letters, Vol. 16, No. 10, p. 104026

Bihałowicz, J. S. 2021c, The cross-boundary impact of the landfill fires in Poland on air quality, Science. Business. Society., Vol. 6, No. 1, 11-14

Bihałowicz, J. S. 2022a, Waste fires in Poland and some of their environmental implications: a ten-year perspective, Journal of Ecological Engineering, Vol. 23, No. 11, pp. 147-157

Bihałowicz, Jan Stefan, 2022b. Assessment of the landfill fires on atmospheric air quality Ocena wpływu pożarów składowisk odpadów na stan jakości powietrza atmosferycznego (Zenodo). Zenodo. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.7421943

KG PSP, 2020. Interwencje PSP: lata 2010-2019 zestawienia [WWW Document]. URL (accessed 18.01.2020). https://www.kgpsp.gov.pl/panstwowa_straz_pozarna/interwencje_psp.

Application of field olfactometry in the identification of fugitive odour emission sources in municipal waste management facilities

Izabela Sówka¹, Marcin Pawnuk¹, Dominik Dobrzyniewski², Bartosz Szulczyński², Urszula Miller¹, Małgorzata Paciorek³

izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, marcin.pawnuk@pwr.edu.pl, domdobrz@student.pg.edu.pl, bartosz.szulczynski@pg.edu.pl, urszula.miller@pwr.edu.pl, malgorzata.paciorek@ekometria.com.pl

¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

² Faculty of Chemistry, Gdańsk University of Technology, ul. Gabriela Narutowicza 11/12, 80-233 Gdańsk, Poland ³Environmental Studies and Measurements Bureau EKOMETRIA Ltd., ul. Elbląska 66, 80-761 Gdansk, Poland

KEY WORDS: odour emission sources, field olfactometry, IDW

INTRODUCTION

Waste treatment processes are one of the major sources of odorous emissions into the air. Due to the very often, unorganized, and variable and dependent on meteorological conditions and the fractional composition of waste, the nature of emissions, field olfactometry is considered as an optimal odour concentration measurement method, both for economic reasons and allowing rapid assessment of the variability of odour concentrations in time and space, for the complex profile of odour emissions. (Byliński et al., 2016, Pawnuk et al., 2023). The odour concentration values obtained from measurements using field olfactometry can also be used to analyse the time and spatial distribution of the odor impact range.





RESEARCH AREA AND PRELIMINARY RESULTS ANALYSIS

Studies using field olfactometry were conducted in two waste management facilities (WMPs) located in the Pomeranian (WMP1) and Lower Silesian (WMP2) provinces. During the measurements conducted, we identified, respectively, composting piles (WMP1) and aerobic stabilisation area (WMP2) as dominant sources of odour emissions. In WMP1, the highest odour concentrations were recorded in composting piles in the range of 22.27 up to 43.49 ou/m³. Odour concentrations at 4 points located around the aerobic stabilisation area (WMP2) valued at 43.49 ou/m³. In addition, the use of the inverted weighted distance (IDW) method allowed spatial visualisation of the distribution of emission sources and determination of the variability of odour concentrations in the area of the analysed plants - selected examples of distributions for WMP1 and WMP2 (Fig. 1). The obtained results indicate the existence of clear trends in the measured concentrations of odours, e.g., increased concentrations occur in places where there is a large concentration of organic waste.



REFERENCES

Pawnuk M., Sówka I., Naddeo V., 2023, The Use of Field Olfactometry in the Odor Assessment of a Selected Mechanical– Biological Municipal Waste Treatment Plant within the Boundaries of the Selected Facility—A Case Study, Sustainability, 15(9):7163

Byliński H., Kolasińska, P., Gębicki, J., Dymerski, T., Namieśnik, J., 2016. Identification of aromatic compounds in odours mixture by gas chromatography and field olfactometry techniques. Proceedings of the 12th ISC Modern Analytical Chemistry, 108-112



Distinct differences in atmospheric aerosol optical properties within boundary layer in Polish cities

Maciej Karasewicz¹, Afwan Hafiz¹, Zuzanna Rykowska¹, Łucja Janicka¹, Artur Tomczak¹, Emeka Ugboma¹, Dongxiang Wang¹, Iwona S. Stachlewska¹

maciej.karasewicz@fuw.edu.pl, afwan.hafiz@fuw.edu.pl, z.rykowska@student.uw.edu.pl ¹Institute of Geophysics, Faculty of Physics, University of Warsaw, Ludwika Pasteura 5, 02-093 Warsaw

KEY WORDS: atmospheric boundary layer, air pollution, atmospheric aerosol, Mie-Raman lidar

In general, the atmospheric boundary layer (ABL) being the closest to the Earth surface is regarded as containing the majority of air pollution, which can spread across the entire layer. *In situ* measurements with instruments localized close to the ground surface in a dense web of devices give the 2-dimensional structure of horizontal pollutants dispersion. Information about the vertical structure of the ABL in terms of pollutant distribution can be obtained using the high spatial and temporal resolution of active remote sensing measurements (Stachlewska, 2021).

We present the results of the lidar data analysis in terms of the vertical structure of air pollution within ABL. The data were collected during the POLIMOS SMOG Campaigns conducted in winter season in Wrocław (2022), Kraków (2022), and Zabrze (2021) with the ESA Mobile Raman Lidar (EMORAL). The gradient method was used to obtain the height of ABL for 24 hours of measurements during similar meteorological conditions in each city (Figure 1). The synergistic Lidar, Radar, Microwave Radiometer algorithm (LiRaMi) was used to estimate the abundance of aerosol in ABL, their size and shape. The *quasi* scattering ratio $q^{uasi}SR$, color ratio $q^{uasi}CR$, and particle depolarization ratio $q^{uasi}\delta_p$ at 532 nm were used respectively (Wang et al., 2020).





The analysis shows significant differences between the values of quasiSR and $quasi\delta_p$ and their distribution within the ABL at each location with a higher abundance of less depolarizing spherical particles in Kraków and a lower amount of slightly depolarizing spherical particles in Wrocław. In addition, the analysis shows that the influence of the daily transformation cycle of the ABL on its optical properties is of importance.

Acknowledgments

We thank the POLIMOS SMOG Campaigns local coordinators Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz and Tymoteusz Sawiński at Uniwersity of Wrocław (Wrocław 2022), Jarosław Nęcki and Mirosław Zimnoch at AGH University of Science and Technology in Kraków (2022), and Krzysztof Klejnowski at Institute of Environmental Engineering IEE-PAS in Zabrze (2021).

We would like to thank the Opto-Electronics Section (TEC-MME) at the European Space Research and Technology (ESTEC) of the European Space Agency (ESA) for providing the ESA Mobile Raman Lidar EMORAL.

This work was financed by the European Space Agency (ESA-ESTEC) (POLIMOS, 4000119961/16/NL/FF/mg). The LiRaMi algorithm was developed within the National Science Center (Preludium-15UMO-2018/29/N/ST10/02628). The ABLH algorithm was developed within the joint Lithuanian-Polish research project DAINA-2 BIOSURE, supported by the National Science Centre of Poland (grant no. 2020/38/L/ST10/00480) and Research Council of Lithuania (Grant no. S-LL-21-7).

REFERENCES

Stachlewska, I. S., (2021). A thorough understanding of smog is the way to effective action!, Raport TOGETAIR, Section: AIR, Chapter: Smog and emissions from the municipal sector, pp. 9, https://raport.togetair.eu/air

Wang, D., Stachlewska, I. S., Delanoë, J., Ene, D., Song, X., and Schüttemeyer D., (2020). Spatio-temporal discrimination of molecular, aerosol and cloud scattering and polarization using a combination of a Raman lidar, Doppler cloud radar and microwave radiometer, Opt. Express 28, 20117-20134.



Role of long-range transport in source apportionment of black carbon at the urban background and urban polluted sites

Iwona S. Stachlewska¹, Agnė Minderytė², Emeka A. Ugboma¹, Steigvilė Byčenkienė²

iwona.stachlewska@fuw.edu.pl, agne.minderyte@ftmc.lt, emeka.ugboma@fuw.edu.pl, steigvile.bycenkiene@ftmc.lt, ¹Institute of Geophysics, Faculty of Physics, University of Warsaw, Ludwika Pasteura 5, 02-093 Warsaw ²SRI Center for Physical Sciences and Technology (FTMC), 10257 Vilnius, Lithuania

KEYWORDS: black carbon apportionment, air mass transport, urban environment, air quality

Our work was aimed at answering the question how the local near-surface air quality in terms of the black carbon (BC) can be affected by long-range transport. Is the air transported over a particular site able to ventilate the pollution or, contrary, to significantly increase it? And if yes, what is the spatial scale of such an effect? Can two urban sites see this as a correlated measurable effect? Would this be different at background and polluted urban site? Would it depend on the black carbon source?

The black carbon source apportionment method (Minderytė et al., 2022) was used to categorize sources into biomass burning (BB) and fossil fuel (FF) combustion based on the diurnal cycle aethalometer measurements and a pre-defined source-specific absorption Ångström exponent (AAE) for an urban background site in Vilnius, Lithuania and urban polluted site in Warsaw, Poland for data collected in May-August 2022.

We propose a new approach to analyze the air-mass backward trajectories at both locations: the obtained 72h trajectories, one set per day at 12 UTC (Minderyte et al., 2023), were inspected in terms of their spatio-temporal uniformity and assigned to predefined categories based on thresholds. In category A, a similar aerosol particles source was possible due to similar/overlapping transport pathways arriving at both sites (~50% of data). For category B, trajectories had strictly differing source origin and pathways (only in ~20% of data). The remaining days were not classified.

Both sites had similar contributions, significantly lower for BCBB (13-19 %) than for BCFF (81-87 %). The BC values were in general higher for the more polluted site in Warsaw. As expected, there were no patterns of similarities in the diurnal cycles at each site for the data classified in category B regardless of which apportionment one compares (BCFF or BCBB). For category A, patterns of similarities (both due to the ventilation process (decrease of BC) or boost of pollution (an increase of BC) were obtained, whereby they were more significant for the BC_{FF} than for the BC_{BB}. This indicates that biomass burning from long-range transport was not as important as that from local sources, e.g. 1st May in Warsaw in relation to the May Days (Majówka) and 24th June in Vilnius in relation to Midsummer (Sobótka). For biomass burning the similarities were in ventilation/decrease. For fossil fuel combustion is affected by long-range pollution both in ventilation and pollution boost.

Such study is reported for the first time for the two sites and is relevant for in this region of Europe there is a very limited number of observations of this kind, yes this is the region regarded as problematic in terms of air quality.

Acknowledgements

This work was funded by the joint Lithuanian-Polish research project DAINA-2 BIOSURE, supported by the National Science Centre of Poland (grant no. 2020/38/L/ST10/00480) and Research Council of Lithuania (Grant no. S-LL-21-7).

REFERENCES

Minderytė, A., Pauraite, J., Dudoitis, V., Plauškaitė, K., Kilikevičius, A., Matijošius, J., Rimkus, A., Kilikevičienė, K., Vainorius, D., & Byčenkienė, S. (2022). Carbonaceous aerosol source apportionment and assessment of transport-related pollution. Atmospheric Environment, 279, 119043. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.atmosenv.2022.119043

Minderytė, Agnė; Byčenkienė, Steigvilė & Stachlewska, Iwona, (2023). "Black Carbon properties for warm season May-August 2022 at two urban sites in Vilnius (Lithuania) and Warsaw (Poland).", https://doi.org/10.18150/BCUBJK, RepOD, V1

The impact of a foehn wind on PM₁₀ concentrations in Kraków area, Poland

Anita Bokwa¹, Piotr Sekuła², Zbigniew Ustrnul^{1,2}, Mirosław Zimnoch³, Bogdan Bochenek²

anita.bokwa@uj.edu.pl, piotr.sekula@imgw.pl, zbigniew.ustrnul@uj.edu.pl, zimnoch@agh.edu.pl, bogdan.bochenek@imgw.pl

¹Jagiellonian University, Faculty of Geography and Geology, Institute of Geography and Spatial Management, 7 Gronostajowa St., 30-387 Kraków, Poland

²Institute of Meteorology and Water, Management, National Research Institute, 61 Podleśna St., 01-673 Warszawa, Poland

³AGH University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Physics and Applied Computer Science, Department of Applied Nuclear Physics, 19 Reymonta St., 30-059 Kraków, Poland

KEY WORDS: UBL dynamics, PM10, AROME model

Kraków, Poland, is a city located in the large Wisła (Vistula) valley. During the cold season (which is also the heating season), air quality in Kraków is often poor, due to several reasons, and the most problematic air pollution is particulate matter delivered mainly by burning fossil fuels in small heating facilities. The city has unfavourable natural ventilation conditions and the present paper explores the effect of a foehn wind from the Tatra Mountains (the local wind name in Polish: halny) on PM₁₀ concentrations. Air temperature inversions occur often in Kraków and enhance the air pollution problems. Strong foehn winds were supposed to improve PM dispersion conditions. In order to verify that hypothesis, 14 long episodes of halny from the periods Sep 2017 - Apr 2018 and Sep 2018 - Apr 2019 were analyzed. They represent cold season when halny occurs the most often. Data used included measurements of PM10 concentrations in seven points in Kraków, and in terms of meteorological elements, air temperature and/or relative humidity were measured at 15 ground stations and at a mast up to 100 m a.g.l., while wind speed and direction was measured at seven ground stations only. Additionally, model analysis results were used. A non-operational configuration of the AROME CMC (the Application of Research to Operations at Mesoscale canonical model configuration) 1 km x 1 km was applied. A conceptual model concerning the impact of halny on urban air pollution was developed. The occurrence of a particular effect of halny on the PM₁₀ spatial-temporal pattern depends on its mode of transfer through the city: a. halny flows above the valley where a strong cold air pool and a return flow can be found; b. halny enters the valley from the eastern, wider part or from the valley top and destroys the cold air pool; c. gravity waves generated by halny are strong enough to enter the western narrower part of the valley and cause large spatial differences in turbulence parameters within the city. The first transfer mode worsens air pollution dispersion conditions throughout the city and leads to large increases in PM₁₀ levels (from below 50 to 150-200 $\mu g \cdot m^{-3}$), the second mode improves dispersion and leads to large decreases in PM₁₀ levels (from 150-200 to below 50 µg·m⁻³) throughout the city, and the third generates large spatial differences in PM₁₀ levels (50-70 µg·m⁻³) within the city. There is no single effect of *halny* on air pollution dispersion conditions.

Acknowledgments

The content of the presentation is based on the paper by Sekuła et al. (2021).

REFERENCES

Sekuła P., Bokwa A., Ustrnul Z., Zimnoch M., Bochenek B. 2021, The impact of a foehn wind on PM₁₀ concentrations and the urban boundary layer in complex terrain: a case study from Kraków, Poland, Tellus B, Vol. 73, 1933780

Stable isotopic signatures of methane from solid waste treatment facilities

Yaroslav Bezyk^{1,4}, Maciej Górka², Łukasz Kruszewski³, Jarosław Nęcki⁴, Izabela Sówka¹, Paweł Jagoda⁴

bezyk@agh.edu.pl, maciej.gorka@uwr.edu.pl, lkruszewski@twarda.pan.pl, necki@agh.edu.pl, izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, pjagoda.agh.edu.pl

¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

²Institute of Geological Sciences, Faculty of Earth Science and Environmental Management, University of Wroclaw, Cybulskiego 32, 50-205 Wroclaw, Poland

³Institute of Geological Sciences, Polish Academy of Sciences, Research Centre in Warsaw, Twarda 51/55, 00-818 Warszawa, Poland

⁴Faculty of Physics and Applied Computer Science, Department of Applied Nuclear Physics, AGH University of Krakow, 30-059 Krakow, Poland

KEY WORDS: methane, carbon isotopes, landfills, waste management

INTRODUCTION

Methane (CH₄) is the second most important anthropogenic greenhouse gas (GHG) after carbon dioxide (CO₂) emitted from a variety of anthropogenic sources (Friedlingstein et al., 2020; Saunois et al., 2020). The waste sector represents the thirdlargest source of anthropogenic methane emissions in Poland, responsible for around 8.4 % of the total CH₄ in 2021, which makes it a considerable contributor of GHGs in the atmosphere (Poland's National Inventory Report, 2023). In particular, landfill methane emission categories are spatially not well allocated and relative proportions by specific source types are not well distinguished. Thus, a more detailed waste sources apportionment, primarily based on isotopic signatures (δ^{13} C) of CH₄, can provide information on the processes responsible for CH₄ production and its evolution, necessary for accomplishing methane reduction targets in landfills.

RESEARCH AREA AND METHODS

The aim of this study was to identify sources of GHG emissions across the municipal solid waste treatment plant (MSWTP) and estimate methane excess from the landfill site and its distribution in MSWTP surroundings. Ambient GHG measurements were based on multiple surveys using ground-based detection of CH₄ and CO₂ hotspots across the landfill site and samples collected directly from determined emission sources. To assess seasonal variation in methane, sampling was performed in several measurement campaigns: in autumn (November), winter (December and January), and summer (June) during the 2021–2022 season. The applied equipment included LGR- ICOSTM M-GGA-918 Analyzer mobile system for detailed real-time measurements of CH₄, CO₂ mole fractions and a laboratory-based Picarro Cavity Ring-Down Spectroscopy Analyzer (Model G2201-i) for characterization of carbon isotopic signatures (δ^{13} C) of CH₄ waste sources.

RESULTS

The results of the ground-based measurements revealed the dominance of several specific individual sources of CH₄ within the waste treatment facility. The landfill active quarter and its surroundings, in particular uncovered operational areas and side slopes of waste dump, leaking wells of biogas collection network, as well as modules of aerobic stabilization of fermented waste, including open-air composting area and leachate tanks, are the major sources of methane emissions from the MSWTP. The excess of CH₄ measured at close distance (~10 – 20 m) from the selected sources inside the MSWTP reached up to 46.1 – 56.3 ppm. In most cases, however, it was not observed significant variation in atmospheric CH₄ concentration in the vicinity of the waste landfill site. The higher concentration of atmospheric CH₄ above background, which ranged from 2.1 to 3.1 ppm, during the studied period, was only found near the facility fence line. The active zones (specific individual sources) of the waste treatment plant showed distinct carbon isotopic signatures of methane, δ^{13} C-CH₄ values of -58.3 ± 1.1 ‰ and -62.7 ± 0.7 ‰ for gas extraction wells in the landfill quarter, and biogas produced in composting facilities, respectively. Methane escaping from active zones into the atmosphere (at 1.5 m AGL) was more depleted in ¹³C than in the surrounding sites. Spatial differences in δ^{13} C of atmospheric CH₄ in the range between -49.7 and -55.1 ‰, were also observed during the winter and summer surveys. Overall, as compared to measurements performed in other landfills, this analysis demonstrates that elevated CH₄



comes only from active zones of the MSWTP and have no meaningful site impact on the air quality in the surrounding atmosphere.

REFERENCES

Friedlingstein, P., O'Sullivan, M., Jones, et al., 2020. Global Carbon Budget 2020. Earth System Science Data 12, 3269–3340. https://doi.org/10.5194/essd-12-3269-2020

Saunois, M., Stavert, A.R., Poulter, B., Bousquet, P., et. al., 2020. The Global Methane Budget 2000–2017. Earth System Science Data 12, 1561–1623. https://doi.org/10.5194/essd-12-1561-2020

Poland's National Inventory Report, 2023. Greenhouse Gas Inventory for 1988-2021. Submission under the United Nations. Framework Convention on Climate Change, 2023. Warsaw.



Using meteorological normalization to identify the effects of reducing air pollution emissions in Krakow

Mateusz Rzeszutek¹, Robert Oleniacz¹, Marian Mazur¹

rzeszut@agh.edu.pl, oleniacz@agh.edu.pl, mmazur@agh.edu.pl

¹AGH University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Geo-data Science, Geodesy and Environmental Engineering, Department of Environmental Management and Protection, Mickiewicza 30 Av., 30-059 Krakow, Poland

KEY WORDS: particulate matter, meteorological normalization, air concentration trends, machine learning

Air quality depends on many factors, including emissions, meteorological conditions, and terrain. The first two variables are unstable because they change over time and space. For this reason, identifying the effects of individual variables on air quality is difficult and requires appropriate methods (Oleniacz et al. 2016). Meteorological normalization can be used to identify effects resulting only from changes in air pollutant emissions. Meteorological normalization allows us to obtain air pollutant concentrations equivalent to averaged meteorological conditions (Grange, Carslaw 2019). The result is a time series of air pollutant concentrations that depend only on emissions.

The purpose of the study was to identify the effects of the corrective actions carried out in Krakow to reduce particulate matter emissions in the period 2011-2018. As part of the study, receptor models of PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} concentrations were developed for individual air quality monitoring stations (MpKrakAlKras, MpKrakBujaka, MpKrakBulwar). Models were developed using the "Random Forest" ensemble learning method (Breiman 2001). The developed models were used to make 400 predictions of PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} concentrations at each time point under random meteorological conditions (resampling). The resulting 400 forecasts for each time step were averaged. Time series of PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} concentrations were obtained for the average meteorological conditions. Trends in PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} trends were calculated using the simple non-parametric linear regression method "Theil-Sen estimator" (Kunsch 1989).

Elimination or replacement of more than 32,000 low emission sources in the period 2011 to 2018 resulted in a significant reduction in the concentrations of PM₁₀ (17-27 %) and PM_{2.5} (11-26 %) in Krakow. The estimated trends decreased and were 1.16-2.16 μ g/m³ and 0.51-1.39 μ g/m³ for PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5}, respectively. Elimination of low-emission sources of 1 MW power resulted in a reduction of PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} concentrations by 0.067-0.116 μ g/m³ and 0.031-0.074 μ g/m³, respectively. Analysis of the time series of particulate matter concentrations suggested that the effects of lowering air pollution concentrations in Krakow were also due to changes in industrial activities.

Acknowledgments

The work was carried out as part of research associated with the Ministry of Science and Higher Education subsidy to maintain scientific potential (Contract no. 16.16.150.545)

REFERENCES

Breiman L. 2001, Random Forests, Machine Learning, Vol. 45, pp. 5-32

Grange S.K. Carslaw D.C. 2019, Using meteorological normalisation to detect interventions in air quality time series, Science of the Total Environment, Vol. 653, pp. 578-588

Oleniacz R. Bogacki, M. Szulecka A. Rzeszutek M. Mazur M. 2016, Assessing the impact of wind speed and mixing-layer height on air quality in Krakow (Poland) in the years 2014-2015, Journal of Civil Engineering, Environment and Architecture, Vol. 33, No. 63, pp. 315-342

Kunsch H.R. 1989, The jackknife and the bootstrap for general stationary observations, The Annals of Statistics, Vol. 17, pp. 1217-1241

Cyanobacteria and microalgae in atmospheric aerosols in the coastal zone of the Gulf of Gdańsk

Anita Lewandowska¹, Kinga Areta Wiśniewska¹, Sylwia Śliwińska-Wilczewska², Marta Staniszewska¹, Sagnik Dey^{3,4}, Sharadia Dey⁵, Arup Mitra^{5,6}, Agata Błaszczyk⁷, Bidisha Chatterjee⁵

anita.lewandowska@ug.edu.pl, kinga.wisniewska@phdstud.ug.edu.pl, sylwia.sliwinska-wilczewska@ug.edu.pl, marta.staniszewska@ug.edu.pl

¹ University of Gdansk, Faculty of Oceanography and Geography, Department of Chemical Oceanography and Marine Geology, Al. Marszałka J. Piłsudskiego 46, Poland

²University of Gdansk, Faculty of Oceanography and Geography, Department of Marine Ecosystems Functioning, Al. Marszałka J. Piłsudskiego 46, Poland

³Centre for Atmospheric Sciences, Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi, Hauz Khas, New Delhi-110016, India ⁴Centre of Excellence for Research on Clean Air (CERCA), Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi, Hauz Khas, New Delhi-110016, India

⁵Department of Environmental Studies, St. Xavier's College (Autonomous), Kolkata, 30 Mother Teresa Sarani, Kolkata – 700016, West Bengal, India

⁶Department of Microbiology, St. Xavier's College (Autonomous), Kolkata, 30 Mother Teresa Sarani, Kolkata – 700016, West Bengal, India

⁷Department of Marine Biology and Biotechnology, Faculty of Oceanography and Geography, University of Gdańsk, Al. Marsz. Piłsudskiego 46, 81-378 Gdynia, Poland

Apart from viruses and bacteria, cyanobacteria and microalgae present in the atmosphere may pose a threat to the human health by inducing illnesses and diseases. Thus the main goal of the present study was the determination of the daily and seasonal qualitative and quantitative variabilities of these microorganisms in the air of the Gulf of Gdańsk coastal zone. Bioaerosols were collected during vegetative and non-vegetative seasons, between January and December 2020 using Tisch six-stage microbiological impactor, which can be treated as a substitute for the respiratory tract. A total of 296 samples were collected during the day and 276 samples during the night. In addition the qualitative and quantitative analyses of cyanobacteria and microalgae in rain samples collected during the summer phytoplankton bloom season (May–September 2019) was performed. Rain was sampled with bulk collector with the funnel of 0.314 m² area. In total, 20 rainwater samples were collected. Quantitation of Microcystin-LR equivalents were performed in all samples using a colorimetric MC-LR, enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay (ELISA) kit (Abnova, Taipei, Taiwan).

The results showed that cyanobacteria and microalgae were present in the air of the southern Baltic Sea region all year round. The most abundant phylum was cyanobacteria, which constituted 63% of all detected phyla, while picocyanobacteria Synechococcus sp. dominated. The significant percentage of green algae in the taxonomic composition was also noted (34%). The increase in cyanobacteria and microalgae number and taxonomic diversity in the air occurred during periods of intense phytoplankton blooms in the Baltic Sea. The maximum abundance of these microorganisms was noted in July (1685 cells m⁻³). The most effective meteorological factor that leads to the removal of up to 87% of cyanobacteria and microalgae from the atmosphere was rainfall.

Several harmful taxa were noted in bioaerosols and rain samples collected in the Gulf of Gdansk region. Among the harmful organisms present in aerosols, including Amphora sp. Bracteacoccus sp., Chlorococcum sp., Chlorosarcinopsis sp., Oocystis sp., Stichococcus sp., Nodularia sp., Nostocsp., Synechocystis sp., Chrysochromulina sp., and Gymnodinium sp. approximately 30.0% were recorded in particles small enough to reach secondary bronchi (<2.1 μ m). The study confirmed also the ability of these microorganisms to produce the toxin microcystin-LR (MC-LR), which has a high potential negative impact on human health.

The highest concentrations of MC-LR were recorded in airborne Synechococcus sp. CCAA 46 (Wiśniewska et al. 2022 a, b).

REFERENCES

Wiśniewska K., Śliwińska-Wilczewska S., Lewandowska A. 2022a, Washout efficiency of airborne cyanobacteria and microalgae in the southern Baltic Sea region. Scientific Reports, Vol. 12, pp.2029, https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-022-06107-9

Wiśniewska K., Śliwińska-Wilczewska S., Mireille Savoie, Lewandowska A. 2022b, Quantitative and qualitative variability of airborne cyanobacteria and microalgae and their toxins in the coastal zone of the Baltic Sea, Science of the Total Environment, Vol. 826, pp.154152, http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2022.154152

FUNDING

This research was funded by BMN, grant number 539-O160-B432-20 and NCN PRELUDIUM 17, grant number UMO-2019/33/N/ST10/00585. In addition, the Indian authors were funded by the Department of Science and Technology, Govt. of India under the Indo-Poland International program. Sagnik Dey acknowledges funding from IIT Delhi for the Institute Chair fellowship. The Polish authors were funded under the Indo-Poland Bilateral NAWA program (PPN/BIN/2019/1/00037).



Stability of Sudeten forest ecosystems in the context of the ecological disaster and contemporary climate change

Marek Błaś¹, Bartosz Jasiński¹

marek.blas@uwr.edu.pl, bartosz.jasinski@uwr.edu.pl

¹University of Wrocław, Department of Climatology and Atmosphere Protection, Kosiby 8 street, 51-621 Wrocław, Poland

KEY WORDS: forest ecosystems, ecological disaster, climate change, Sudetes

INTRODUCTION

Forest ecosystems of the Sudetes have undergone enormous transformations under the influence of anthropogenic factors over the past several hundred years. In the lower subalpine forest zone, primeval forests were cut down in the 17th and 18th centuries and replaced with spruce monocultures. It was revealed in a particular way during the ecological disaster caused by "acid deposition", the efficiency of which in the Western Sudetes reached levels not found anywhere else in the world. Between 1980-1990, deforestation and areas affected by severe negative changes covered more than 50% of forest areas in this region. The remedial action taken, e.g. the reduction of industrial emission and the redefining the spruce monocultures in terms of species and structure yielded quick results and improved the condition of ecosystems. Finally, the last three decades of instrumental measurements clearly document the progressing process of global warming. In the mountainous regions of central Europe, the following phenomena can be observed: unprecedented scale of warming, a downward trend in precipitation totals in spring, decreasing snowiness of winters and constantly growing threat of drought.

The main task that the authors of the project set themselves is not only to describe the impact of climate change on the stability of spruce ecosystems as a whole. Their primary objective is to highlight the differences in incremental response separately: in natural stands, monoculture stands of foreign origin and in stands with various degrees of degradation in the period of the ecological disaster.

MATERIAL AND METHODS

The data come from 71 meteorological stations located in the Sudetes and covers the 60-year period 1961–2020 (IMGW, CHMU and DWD measurement network). The database consists of mean monthly air temperatures (25 stations) and monthly precipitation totals (71 stations). It was used to calculate indices for 1-, 3- and 6-monthly timescales to determine the occurrence of drought: SPI (Standardized Precipitation Index), RPI (Relative Precipitation Index) and SPEI (Standardized Precipitation Evapotranspiration Index). In order to estimate the impact of drought on the Norway spruce (*Picea abies*), the following indices of forest drought were calculated for each station: EQ (Ellenberg index), FAI (Forestry Aridity Index) and AI (De Martonne Aridy Index).

All 166 core samples, used in the present study, were collected in 16 locations in October 2022. To ensure proper quality and to eliminate the age factor in the gathered data, the measured tree-ring width values were transformed through quality checking with COFECHA software as well as the ARSTAN program. The measurement series were individually detrended using a cubic smoothing spline with a 50% frequency response cutoff equalling 67% of the series length.

RESULTS

The risk of atmospheric drought has increased in the study area, which is mainly caused by air temperature rise. Precipitation based indices show only minor changes in drought occurrence. SPEI index, based on both air temperature and precipitation indicate that the frequency of dry months increased a lot in the last decade, all over the study area. At some stations, it was more than triple in comparison to previous decades. SPI (indicator based only on precipitation) calculated for the 3-monthly timescale points to statistically significant negative trends for the Western Sudetes, although Sen's slope values are as low as - 0.02 for several stations. Therefore, the risk of atmospheric drought in the Western Sudetes increases dangerously and is the highest in spring and early summer.

Preliminary analysis of tree cores showed that a progressing rise in air temperature contributes to improving the condition of forest ecosystems in the upper subalpine forest (2000-2017), especially along the tree-line zone. These dependencies are reversed in the lower parts (group B) and clearly visible in the case of foothills (group A), where the thermal conditions are increasingly difficult for the development of spruce and in the abnormally warm and dry years even oppressive. In the last decade, the growth response of spruce for group A has fallen below the level observed during the ecological disaster (1980-1995), while group B ecosystems are approaching this level. It is also worth emphasizing that the ecological disaster (intense deposition of atmospheric pollutants) of the 80s of the 20th century first started in the upper subalpine forest and was the most intense there, while the contemporary decline in the growth reaction of spruce is the earliest and most intense in the foothills and the lower montane.


36

Phytoremediation as a passive tool to improve air quality

Ewa Podhajska 1, Anetta Drzeniecka-

Osiadacz 2, Aleksandra Halarewicz 3, Dariusz Grech 4, Bronisław Podhajski 5, Magdalena Zienowicz 6, Przemysław Bąbelewski 7, Marek Liszewski 8

¹Department of Landscape Architecture, Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Sciences, Grunwaldzka Str. 55, 50-357 Wrocław, Poland, ²²Department of Climatology and Atmosphere Protection, Institute of Geography and Regional Development,University of Wrocław, Kosiby 8 str., 51-621 Wrocław, Poland; ³Department of Botany and Plant Ecology, Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Sciences, Grunwaldzki Sq. 24a, 50-363 Wrocław, Poland; ⁴Institute of Theoretical Physics, Faculty of Physics and Astronomy, University of Wrocław, Pl. M. Borna 9, 50-204 Wrocław, Poland; ⁵FCBA Institut Technologique 10 rue Galilée; 77420 Champs sur Marne; France; ⁶Department of Horticulture, Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Sciences, Grunwaldzki 24A, 50-375 Wrocław, Poland; ⁷Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Science, Institute of Agroecology and Plant Production,. Grunwaldzki Sq. 24a, 50-363 Wrocław, Poland

KEY WORDS: phytoremediation, urban ecosystem services, particulate matter, passive design methods, Computational Fluid Dynamics model

Phytoremediation is an example of biological-based biotechnology that uses plants to remove contaminants from different environments: soil, water, and atmosphere (Lee et al., 2020). Vegetation introduced into urban areas has a passive, positive impact by activating phytoremediation, becoming a tool for air pollution control, noise reduction, mitigation of the urban heat island phenomenon, and ensuring the desired biodiversity.

This paper aims to present a methodical design of a small-scale urban green area with increased phytoremediation potential. The applied compilation-based method to intensify the regenerative potential of the shaped green area, determining both the quantitative potential of improving air quality and simultaneously identifying qualitative aesthetic features, comes out of recognition of the psychophysical nature of air pollution impacts on human health.

In the study, we discuss the aspects of the phytoremediation processes concerning traffic-related particulate matter by assessing the spatial variability of PM2.5 concentration for different greenery scenarios. A potentially appropriate selection of vegetation has the purpose of optimizing the air phytomelioration processes in urban areas. The design of the specific structure of greenery allows for synchronously activating dispersion and deposition processes to develop a multidirectional interaction between plant barriers and the plume of pollutants. The proposed design solutions were checked by multi-criteria evaluation of scenarios with different variable values (vegetation parameters and environmental parameters) using the CFD model (ENVI-met software). In the pilot facility, the concentration of PM2.5 in the most favorable arrangement of vegetation (GI scenario) reached a 7-8% reduction of concentration compared to the initial situation in a baseline scenario.

REFERENCES

Lee, B. X. Y., Hadibarata, T., & Yuniarto, A. (2020). Phytoremediation mechanisms in air pollution control: a review. Water, Air, & Soil Pollution, 231(8), 437.



Ambrosia pollen concentrations in south-east Poland – does the spatial differentiation exist?

Katarzyna Kluska¹, Idalia Kasprzyk¹, Dominika Stachnio¹, Agnieszka Mokrzyńska¹

kborycka@ur.edu.pl, ikasprzyk@ur.edu.pl ¹University of Rzeszów, Institute of Biology, Zelwerowicza 4, 35-601 Rzeszów

KEY WORDS: Ambrosia, back-trajectory model, pollen concentration

The main aim of current study was to try verify the hypothesis about existence of the spatial differentiation of Ambrosia pollen concentrations between stations located several dozen kilometers one from the other as well as between the stations located at two different height. We also tried to verify if the source of pollen inflow in two sites in south-east Poland is similar and whether discontinuous pollen monitoring is sufficient for estimation the allergic situation instead of continuous one.

The aerobiological monitoring was carried out in 2020 in Rzeszów- three stations of continuous monitoring, including two at two different height (roof and "nose" level) and in Uherce Mineralne- monitoring carried out three times a day used portable device at "nose level". The estimation of the source of *Ambrosia* pollen inflow was done using back-trajectory model HYSPLIT.

The highest concentrations of ambrosia pollen were registered at the end of August in Rzeszów and Uherce and It was noticed that they appeared few hours earlier in Uherce than in Rzeszów. The results of HYSPLIT back-trajectory model indicated similar sources of pollen inflow for both sites. The significant positive correlation existed between concentrations from four stations. It was noticed that during three days concentrations differed significantly between sites. During these days the directions of air masses incoming to Rzeszów and Uherce were different. The Wilcoxon pair-wise test indicated that there were no significant differences between concentrations from stations located in Rzeszów at two different height.

The highest concentrations of *Ambrosia* pollen grains appear in Rzeszów and Uherce at a similar time. The general similarity in the sources of pollen inflow also exists. However, some days the direction of air masses trajectory differs that results in great differences of pollen concentrations between sites despite their close range. For evaluation allergic situation, it is possible to carry out discontinuous pollen monitoring instead of continuous monitoring and it is also possible to conduct monitoring at the "nose" level because of similarity of concentration values between stations at roof and "nose" level.



The proximity of alder pollen sources in different districts of Rzeszów city- is it important for allergy risk?

Katarzyna Kluska¹, Magdalena Wójcik¹, Idalia Kasprzyk¹

kborycka@ur.edu.pl, mwojcik@ur.edu.pl, ikasprzyk@ur.edu.pl ¹University of Rzeszów, Institute of Biology, Zelwerowicza 4, 35-601 Rzeszów

KEY WORDS: Alnus, pollen concentration, urban space

Whereas the allergenicity of Alnus pollen is high, the main aim of current study was to verify the hypothesis that the significant differences exist between alder pollen concentrations in the urban space and that these differences are connected with proximity and size of the pollen sources.

The preliminary study was carried out in Rzeszów in 2020 at 8 measurement points during the alder pollen season. The points differed in terms of proximity and size of the pollen sources and were located at 4 different city districts. Four of them were located close to the alder trees (calling as "with alders") and another four were distant from alder trees 500 m at least (calling as "without alders"). The 20-minutes suction on microscopic slides had been doing in each of the points twice a day (before and after noon) at "nose level" using portable volumetric spore trap. The values of pollen grains counted under microscope were expressed as main pollen grains concentrations per hour. The results were compared with the concentrations registered by volumetric spore trap (the continuous pollen monitoring). The phonological observation were also carried out.

The nonparametric tests indicated that no significant differences exist in the concentration values between city districts and between points "with" and "without alders". The significant differences existed only for concentrations before and after noon. The lowest concentration sum was obtained for the point with the lowest number of alder trees. At the beginning of pollen season, the higher concentrations were registered at the locations with the trees of extremely early beginning of pollination. The average pollen concentrations from the measurement days were proportional to average diurnal concentrations from the continuous monitoring.

Despite the occurring of black alder trees in clusters in few points of the city, their proximity has little importance for pollen concentrations values. However, the lowest concentrations sum is clearly visible in the points with extremely few number of trees. It is also worthy of attention that higher pollen concentrations occurred earlier at the points with the trees extremely early began the pollen release.



The occurrence of boletes spores in the air in relation to weather and land use

Magdalena Wójcik¹, Idalia Kasprzyk¹

mwojcik@ur.edu.pl, ikasprzyk@ur.edu.pl,

¹ University of Rzeszów, College of Natural Sciences, Institut of Biology, ul. Zelwerowicza 4, 35-601 Rzeszów, Poland

KEY WORDS: basidiospores, meteorological parameters, land cover type, temperate zone

Basidiomycetes produce and release into the environment huge numbers of spores, the concentration of which in the air is variable and depends on the movement of air masses during the day and the night, as well as weather parameters and the type of land development. Although they are present in the air in considerable concentrations, they are not often the subject of aerobiological studies. The aim of the study was the spatio-temporal analysis of the concentration of Boletus type spores in the air in relation to meteorological parameters and the type of land use. The research was carried out in 2019 – 2021 years with the use of the volumetric method. The volumetric traps were located at the roof and ground level in a village and a city (SE Poland), in areas with different forests and agriculture areas covers. It was observed that the highest concentrations of Boletus type spores were in late summer and early autumn, when the forests are intensively explored by mushroom pickers. Higher concentrations of spores were usually found in the countryside, where the availability of organic matter necessary for the development of fungi is high. However, there are no significant differences between the dates of the beginning of the spore season and their maximum concentrations in the air. It has been proven that the intensity of spore release by porcini mushrooms into the air between individual years can vary significantly. The analysis of circadian cycles indicated that high concentrations of Boletus type spores may occur twice a day, at night and in the early morning. Air temperature and air humidity most strongly influenced the concentration of spores. Due to the considerable concentrations of boletes spores in the air and their allergenic potential, it is worth including information about this type of spores in messages for allergy sufferers.



4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Distribution of boletes spores in a beech forest

Magdalena Wójcik¹, Idalia Kasprzyk¹

mwojcik@ur.edu.pl, ikasprzyk@ur.edu.pl,

¹University of Rzeszów, College of Natural Sciences, Institut of Biology, ul. Zelwerowicza 4, 35-601 Rzeszów, Poland

KEY WORDS: basidiospores, aerobiology, Boletus

Boletes are ectosymbiotes of trees, mainly deciduous, and forests are the main source of their airborne spores occurrence. Basidiospores are mechanically launched over several milimeters after maturity, but the scale of their dispersion depends on air movement and may be greater (Halbawachs and Bässler 2015). Vertical, horizontal and turbulent air flows are vectors of sporomorphs dispersion and thanks to such mechanisms, mushroom spores can get out of the forest (Galan and Pringle, 2017, Freundorfer et al. 2019). Aerobiological monitoring was carried out at several sites in a beech forest and outside, what allowed to characterize the spatial differentiation of airborne boletes spores concentrations and to verify the thesis that a small percentage of airborne spores is observed outside the forest. Burkard portable samplers were used. The patterns of airborne spores at the sites located in the forest and at its edge were very similar but at/within? a distance of 1500 meters spores were noted for a longer time. Spores concentrations recorded in the forest were 8 times higher than outside, and at the days of very high concentrations, the hourly peaks noted outside the forest were delayed by several hours in relation to the time of maximum concentrations recorded in the forest. These findings confirm that the main source of airborne spores was the forest and anemometric conditions in the forest may hinder their long-distance dispersal (Puchalski and Prusinkiewicz 1990). During the season of mushrooms picking (www.bdl.lasy.gov.pl/portal/mapy), the bolete spore concentrations in the forest were unexpectedly high. It was noted that maximum spore concentration exceeded 16,000 in $1m^3$ of air. It is reported the allergy to Boletus spores (Rivera-Mariani et al. 2015), therefore it is necessary to inform people about the possibility of overexposure to these aeroallergen, which can be released in huge amount during mushroom picking, within the forest trips.

REFERENCES

Freundorfer A., Rehberg I., Law B.E., Thomas C., 2019. Forest wind regimes and their implications on cross-canopy coupling. Agric. For. Meteorol., 279, 107696

Golan J.J., Pringle A. 2017. Long-Distance Dispersal of Fungi. Microbiol. Spectr., 5(4).

Halbwachs H., Bässler C. 2015. Gone with the wind – a review on basidiospores of lamellate. Mycosphere, 6(1), 78-112

Puchalski T., Prusinkiewicz Z. 1990. Ekologiczne podstawy siedliskoznawstwa leśnego. PWRiL, Warszawa

Rivera-Mariani F..E, Vysyaraju K., Negherbon J,. Levetin E., Horner W.E., Hartung T., Breysse P.N. 2014. Comparison of the interleukin-1β-inducing potency of allergenic spores from higher fungi (basidiomycetes) in a cryopreserved human whole blood system. Int. Arch. Allergy. Immunol., 163(2), 154-62

www.bdl.lasy.gov.pl/portal/mapy



Aerobiology in forensic science – prospects and perspective

Cezary Adamski¹, Agnieszka Grinn-Gofroń¹

cezar6798@gmail.com, agnieszka.grinn-gofron@usz.edu.pl ¹Institute of Biology, University of Szczecin, ul. Wąska 13, 71-415 Szczecin, Polska

KEY WORDS: fungi, postmortem interval, spores, forensic mycology

In this presentation we will mainly focus on the use of fungi (colonies, thallus fragments, and spores).

Aerobiology can contribute to a variety of forensic investigations, including psychoactive substances and toxins, determination of postmortem intervals from mould growth on corpses, hazards from mould growth in buildings, providing trace evidence linking people and objects with places using aiborne spores.

Research is starting to be undertaken to explore the use of molecular data on fungi in the characterisation of soils. In addition, where there are health concerns possibly associated with mould growth in buildings, publicly available and universal rules for sampling and data interpretation should be developed. In order to avoid valuable information being overlooked, there is a need for investigating officers and those involved in forensic medicine, especially pathologists and toxicologists, to be aware of the evidential value of fungi and spores.

Pollen grains and fungal spores are valuable as evidence because they are invisible to naked eyes, it's impossible to get rid of them all from clothing, footwear, vehicles. They are resistant to acids and hydroxide, so it's impossible to destroy them. They are commonly in air and soil, but most of them are falling relatively near from its maternal plant or fungus. Spores and pollen grains from every genus has its unique shapes, sizes and structures, which allow us to assign them to specific taxa.

In particular, they should not overlook opportunities to recover spores from human remains, to examine any mould colonies growing on corpses, and to analyse respiratory tract and selected organ (stomach, intestines) contents for fungal material and spores. Fungal spores and pollen might be valuable source of information geographical origin and what route drugs and people have travelled. This kind of evidences might be useful in connecting suspects with crime scene and weapons or disprove this connection. Palynological evidence might be crucial in finding location of burried cadavers, but also verifying whether the murder was committed at a particular location or the corpse was store and moved. Using knowledge and methods of forensic mycology, we are also able to determine time of death with usage of mycological analysis of fungal colonies and spores and pollen grains found on remains.

The most commonly used method in forensic palynology is visual analysic to determine taxonomic affiliation, based on specific morphological characteristics, by light microscopy. Light microscopy make it possible to determine to which genus particular pollen grain/spore belongs to. Scanning electron microscopy making it possible to match it to particular species. In culture-based methods fungi and bacteria are grown under controlled conditions of temperature and humidity to form colonies. Distinct species produce morphological different colonies that allow identification through macroscopic observation based on among other things: form, size, elevation and colour of the colonies. Other methods used to identification are spectroscopic methods, immunological techniques (e.g. ELISA), PCR and its varieties, DNA sequencing.

REFERENCES

Hawksworth D.L., Wiltshire P.E.J. 2011, Forensic mycology: the use of fungi in criminal investigations, Forensic Science International, Vol.206, pp.1-11.

Coyle H.M. 2005. Forensic Botany. Principles and applications to criminal casework. CRC Press, United States of America.

Luhung I, Wu Y, Ng CK, Miller D, Cao B, Chang VW. Protocol Improvements for Low Concentration DNA- Based Bioaerosol Sampling and Analysis. PLoS ONE. 2015; 10(11):e0141158.

Doughty, D. C., & amp; Hill, S. C. (2020). Raman spectra of atmospheric particles measured in Maryland, USA over 22.5 h using an automated aerosol Raman spectrometer. Journal of Quantitative Spectroscopy and Radiative Transfer, 244, 106839, doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jqsrt.2020.106839.

Dwie dekady monitoringu pyłkowego w Łodzi – implikacje dla diagnostyki i terapii

Barbara Majkowska-Wojciechowska, Zofia Balwierz

Klinika Immunologii i Alergii Uniwersytetu Medycznego w Łodzi Stowarzyszenie Pomocy Chorym na Astmę i Choroby Alergiczne w Łodzi

WSTĘP

Monitorowanie stężeń pyłku roślin w powietrzu atmosferycznym ma kluczowe znaczenie dla wspomagania diagnostyki, profilaktyki, monitorowania i leczenia alergii i astmy oskrzelowej, a także oceny kierunków zmian klimatycznych. Tereny zielone są uważane za kluczowe elementy ochronne w obszarach miejskich. Mogą sprzyjać minimalizacji zanieczyszczeń, buforowaniu temperatury powietrza, hałasu i erozji gleby. Pomimo niezaprzeczalnych korzyści dla ludzi, mogą wiązać się z obawami związanymi z ekspozycją na pyłek roślin. Badania z wielu krajów wykazały, że zmiany klimatyczne wywołują wzrost produkcji pyłku i jego alergenność, co może zwiększać częstość występowania chorób alergicznych u ludzi.

Celem pracy była ocena trendów zmian ekspozycji na pyłek roślin w ciągu dwóch dekad badań, prowadzonych w centrum Łodzi w latach 2003-2022.

METODY

Badania prowadzono metodą wolumetryczną przy użyciu próbnika Lanzoni, w Łodzi (51° 46'17,5 "N, 19° 28'29" E), w latach 2003-2022. Pomiary dotyczyły analizy średnich dobowych stężeń pyłku dla 21 taksonów roślin: Corylus, Alnus, Juniperus/Taxus, Populus, Ulmus, Salix, Acer, Fraxinus, Betula, Carpinus, Quercus, Fagus, Pinaceae, Poaceae, Rumex, Plantago, Urticaceae, Chenopodiaceae, Artemisia, Ambrosia; oraz 2 taksonów zarodników grzybów mikroskopowych: Alternaria i Cladosporium. Trendy zmian stężeń pyłku były obliczane za pomocą regresji liniowej i kwadratowej w programie Statistica 13.

WYNIKI

Wśród taksonów drzew, najwyższe stężenia pyłku odnotowano dla Betula, Pinaceae i Alnus; najniższe dla Fagus, Ulmus i Corylus. Wśród roślin zielnych dominował pyłek Urtica i Poaceae. Najniższe poziomy stwierdzono dla Plantago i Chenopodiaceae. Stężenia zarodników Cladosporium były bardzo wysokie, około 40 razy wyższe niż Alternaria. Odnotowano istotny trend wzrostu stężeń Alternaria. Natomiast nie stwierdzono istotnych trendów zmian dla połączonej grupy badanych drzew. Wśród badanych taksonów drzew istotne, wzrostowe trendy stężeń uzyskano dla pyłku 5/14 pojedynczych rodzajów: Juniperus/Taxus, Acer, Fagus i Pinceae. Spośród roślin zielnych istotny wzrost stężeń uzyskano dla 2/7 taksonów: Plantago i Urtica, a malejący dla Rumex. Natomiast w odniesieniu do całego zbioru pyłku roślin zielnych nie stwierdzono istotnych zmian.

WNIOSKI

Na przestrzeni dwóch dekad badań, w powietrzu atmosferycznym Łodzi, dominowały zarodniki Cladosporium. Ogólna dystrybucja zarodników Cladosporium, sum badanych taksonów pyłku drzew i roślin zielnych była stosunkowo stabilna, nie wykazała istotnych zmian pomimo pogarszających się warunków hydrologicznych w Polsce centralnej, praktyk regularnego koszenia zieleni miejskiej i wycinania drzew. Z uwagi na wieloletnie trendy istotnie wzrastających stężeń pyłku kilku taksonów, do diagnostyki alergologicznej należałoby włączyć ekstrakty pyłku tych roślin, np. Juniperus/Taxus i Urtica.



Impact of climate change on allergenic pollen concentrations in the air in Wrocław for the years 2003-2022

Szymon Tomczyk¹, Małgorzata Malkiewicz¹, Małgorzata Werner¹

szymon.tomczyk@uwr.edu.pl, <u>małgorzata.malkiewicz@uwr.edu.pl</u>, <u>małgorzata.werner@uwr.edu.pl</u> ¹Faculty of Earth Sciences and Environmental Management, University of Wrocław

KEY WORDS: pollen, pollen season, pollen maximum, pollen minimum, pollen calendar, allergy, climate change, global warming

Climate change impacts the modern world significantly. The trend of increasing air temperature is so significant that even though all countries will meet their climate commitments, it will not be possible to avoid maintaining global warming at 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels, as shown in the latest IPCC report (IPCC, 2023). Global warming will also have a significant impact on the plant world, which includes pollen. This is especially important for people who suffer from pollen allergies. An increase in air temperature may affect the intensity and length of the pollen season, as well as the allergenicity of pollen grains, which is particularly important for allergy sufferers (Ziska i in., 2019). In the context of researching the impact of global warming on pollen counts, it is extremely important to monitor pollen concentrations in the air. The most common measurements are made using the volumetric method (Lanzoni and Burkard trap) (Weryszko-Chmielewska, 2007).

In Wrocław, measurements have been carried out since 1994, in cooperation with the Centre for Environmental Allergen Research in Warsaw. Initially, pollen monitoring was carried out with the VST-1 device, and since 2003 with the Burkard trap. The aim of this study was to characterise changes in pollen seasons (length, intensity, start and end dates) for various taxa, with particular emphasis on allergenic pollen. The analysis was carried out for the city of Wrocław for the period 2003-2022. The study also used a graphical method and developed pollen calendars for the entire study period and for four 5-year periods. The results indicate that some plant taxa were characterised by a faster onset of the pollen season in recent years compared to previous years. This was particularly visible for alder, hazel and yew, therefore trees that flower early in the year. The data also allows us to conclude that the pollen season became longer. Furtheremore the maximum daily pollen concentration was also higher for 2018-2022 compared to the previous years. For some plant species (including birch), this was up to twice as high as in the previous 5-year period. The total annual value of airborne allergenic pollen has also increased in recent years. The results confirm the negative effects of global warming on the plant pollen season, which may result in a further increase in the number and intensity of inhalant allergies.

References:

A Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), 2023, Synthesis Report of the Sixth Assessment Report Ziska L. H. i in., 2019, Temperature-related changes in airborne allergenic pollen abundance and seasonality across the northern hemisphere: a retrospective data analysis, The Lancet Planetary Health, 3(3), pp. 124-131 Elżbieta Weryszko-Chmielewska (ed.), 2007, Aerobiologia, Uniwersytet Przyrodniczy w Lublinie, s.. 152



Sources of allergenic pollen in urban environment: detection of plane trees using open access remote sensing data

Kacper Sobieraj¹, Paweł Bogawski¹, Łukasz Grewling^{1,2}

kacsob1@amu.edu.pl, bogawski@amu.edu.pl, lukasz.grewling@amu.edu.pl ¹Adam Mickiewicz University in Poznań, Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań ²Adam Mickiewicz University in Poznań, Laboratory of Aerobiology, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań

KEY WORDS: bioaerosol, aerial images, predictive modeling

Platanus x acerifolia is a common ornamental tree in Poland, producing a large amount of wind-transported pollen, which contains proteins inducing allergy symptoms. Allergy sufferers can limit their contact with pollen by avoiding places with high pollen concentrations that are mainly restricted to the vicinity of plane trees. Creating detailed street greenery inventory is expensive and time-consuming. Fine remote sensing data gives an opportunity to detect the location of specific plants. However, acquiring high resolution spatial data of a good quality also incurs costs and requires regular updates. Therefore this study explores potential of using access free, remote sensing data to detect plane trees in highly urbanized environment of Poznań. Airborne LiDAR was used to find treetops, which part of (n = 2628) were subsequently marked as: young plane, mature plane, other trees, artifacts. Spectral and spatial variables were extracted from circular buffers (r = 1 m) around the treetops to minimize the influence of shadows and crown overlapping. Random forest machine learning algorithm was applied to assess the importance of variables and classify the treetops in three plots. The model performed well during 10-fold cross validation (OA \approx 92%, $\kappa \approx$ 89%), however when implemented in a broader area, the best model detected more plane trees than really present in the study area. Nevertheless, modeled plane tree location and density agreed well with pollen influx in the study area. The results show that the open-access geodata in Poland, can be applied to recognize major local sources of plane pollen. We also identified some limitations, for example radial shifts in orthoimages, which cause spatial misalignment between LiDARderived treetops and the orthoimage pixels representing them. Finally, we proposed a spatially continuous index of airborne pollen occurrence probability.



Birch pollen concentration at the ground level: spatial variation and relation to roof data

Paweł Bogawski¹, Kacper Sobieraj¹, Agata Szymańska²

bogawski@amu.edu.pl, kacsob1@amu.edu.pl, agatusia@amu.edu.pl ¹Adam Mickiewicz University in Poznań, Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań ²Adam Mickiewicz University in Poznań, Laboratory of Aerobiology, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań

KEY WORDS: bioaerosol, allergen exposure, Betula sp.

Birch trees are common in northern and central Europe; they are also frequently planted in cities as ornamental plant because of the resistance to air pollutants and ability to grow on poor soils. A birch tree produces large quantities of allergenic pollen with 20% prevalence (and increasing) among inhalant allergy patients. Patients could reduce their symptoms by avoiding exposure to airborne birch pollen grains using pollen forecasts. However, forecasts are prepared based on the pollen data collected at the high-building roof level; but people live, work and rest on the ground level so there is a forecast-observation mismatch. Airborne birch pollen concentration is typically considered relatively uniform with low differences between roof and ground level and also between sites nearby. However, we suspect that sparse distribution of birch trees and also the presence of building will cause some differences in pollen concentrations even in a study area of ~ 200 x 200 m. We hypothesized that birch pollen concentration will differ significantly between 5 sites located within the study area including significant difference between roof and ground level. We collected the data between 18th April and 9th May 2023 using Burkard Portable Volumetric Traps placed on tripods. We changed microscopic slide every hour, then fixed with fuchsin-stained glycerin gelatin and counted pollen under the optical microscope. Interestingly, some ground sites differed between each other in concentrations but none of them was statistically different from roof concentrations. The ground/roof ratio depended greatly on the position of the groundtraps and varied from 0.53 to 1.47. Correlation between sites reached 0.82 – 0.95. Also, we detected several unusual peaks at ground level but not at roof level what may be an evidence that birch pollen concentration differ spatially and vertically.

This research was funded by National Science Centre, Poland, grant no. DEC-2021/43/D/ST10/01427.



Immunological response to birch pollen allergens against the background of air pollution. Preliminary results

Dorota Myszkowska¹, Daniel Bulanda², Małgorzata Bulanda¹, Ewa Czarnobilska¹, Maria Czarnobilska³, Wojciech Dyga¹, Artur Górecki⁴, Jacek Waga⁵, Monika Ziemianin¹

dorota.myszkowska@uj.edu.pl, daniel@bulanda.net, gosia.lesniak@uj.edu.pl, ewa.czarnobilska@uj.edu.pl, maria.czarnobilska@uj.edu.pl, wojciech.dyga@uj.edu.pl, artur.gorecki@doctoral.uj.edu.pl, zhwaga@cyf-kr.edu.pl, monika.wandas@uj.edu.pl

¹Jagiellonian University Medical College, Department of Clinical and Environmental Allergology, Botaniczna 3, 30-508 Kraków, Poland,

²AGH University of Science and Technology, Department of Biocybernetics and Biomedical Engineering al. Mickiewicza 30, 30-059 Krakow, Poland

³Jagiellonian University Medical College, Department of Pathophysiology, Czysta 18, 31-121 Kraków, Poland ⁴Jagiellonian University, Faculty of Biology, Institute of Botany, Gronostajowa 3, 30-387, Kraków, Poland ⁵University of Agriculture, Department of Physiology, Plant Breeding and Seed Science, Podłużna 3, 30-239 Kraków, Poland,

KEY WORDS: birch, pollution, BAT, SDS-PAGE

INTRODUCTION

Abiotic pollution, as a stress factor, may affect pollen protein profile, resulting in a different immune response of individuals with birch allergy. The goal of the study is to estimate, whether the observed differentiation in physic-chemical properties of birch pollen proteins is associated with the variability of their immunoreactivity and allergenicity.

METHODS

Birch pollen material was collected in 2022, at selected sites in Kraków and at the less polluted areas, 80 km of the city. The study group contains 23 individuals with symptoms of respiratory allergy and confirmed allergy to birch pollen, while to the control group, 17 persons without birch allergy were included. The following analyses were performed in pollen samples: Bet v1 concentration (ELISA Assay); total protein content (Bradford method); slgE concentration against the main birch allergens (Enzyme-Allergo-Sorbent-Test); Basophil Activation Test (BAT) after in vitro cells stimulation by birch pollen extracts; immunoblotting with patients sera of individual subunits of proteins separated by SDS-PAGE electrophoresis.

RESULTS

The birch pollen season in 2022 was typical in Kraków, except at Seasonal Pollen Integral (SPIn), three times as high as the mean value for 1991-2021. Total protein content ranged from 641,67 µg/ml to 2068,59 µg/ml and was significantly higher in pollen samples in Kraków vs out of Kraków (p=0,04), while for Bet v1 concentration the differences were not statistically significant. SDS-PAGE of birch pollen proteins showed general similarities of the obtained protein spectra. Only few differences in staining intensity of some, individual bands were observed. Contrary, electrophoretic patterns of immunoblotting after SDS-PAGE showed great differences in immunological response in birch allergic patients analyzing separated protein subunits and fractions. The percentage of activated basophils was significantly higher in sensitive persons compared to the control group, and after the stimulation by pollen collected in the more polluted environment.

CONCLUSION

The preliminary results confirm that air pollution emphasizes the immunological response of allergic persons to the natural pollen allergens.

Acknowledgments

The study was supported by the grant of the National Science Centre, 2021/41/B/NZ8/00981.

Analiza wyników testów skórnych w kontekście badań aerobiologicznych w Łodzi

Barbara Majkowska-Wojciechowska, Zofia Balwierz, Maciej Kulma, Filip Cybulski, Marcin Kurowski, Maciej Chałubiński

Klinika Immunologii i Alergii Uniwersytetu Medycznego w Łodzi Stowarzyszenie Pomocy Chorym na Astmę i Choroby Alergiczne w Łodzi

WSTĘP

Alergia jest poważną chorobą układu oddechowego. Pomimo coraz szerszego arsenału badań diagnostycznych stosowanych w opiece nad chorymi z alergią, klasyczne testy skórne (SPT), interpretowane zgodnie z objawami wywoływanymi w czasie ekspozycji na alergeny, są wciąż najczęściej wykorzystywanymi i obiektywnymi narzędziami identyfikacji czynników środowiskowych wyzwalających objawy alergii. Celem badań była analiza częstości i dystrybucji uczuleń wobec paneli ekstraktów alergenów wziewnych w odniesieniu do płci wieku i jednostek chorobowych zdiagnozowanych przez lekarzy alergologów i stopnia ekspozycji na pyłek roślin.

METODY

Przeprowadzono retrospektywną analizę wyników punktowych testów skórnych (SPT) u 1711 pacjentów (zakres wieku: 2,57 – 86,42 lat), poddanych diagnostyce w latach 2017–2020. SPT wykonywano przy użyciu zestawu firmy Allergopharma dla jedenastu ekstraktów alergenów wziewnych: roztoczy Dermatophagoides pteronyssinus i D. farinae, pyłku olszy, leszczyny, brzozy, traw (mix), żyta, bylicy, kota, psa, Alternaria. Wartości jedenastu zmiennych zależnych w postaci średnic bąbli uzyskanych w SPT zredukowano do czterech niezależnych głównych składowych przy pomocy analizy czynnikowej. Następnie składowe te wykorzystano do testowania różnic między średnimi wyróżnionych poziomów zmiennych niezależnych. Profile uczuleń oceniano w populacji wszystkich badanych, a także w podgrupach, z podziałem na płeć i podgrupy wieku badanych oraz jednostek chorobowych. W pracy korzystano też z danych zarejestrowanych w bazie stężeń pyłku Ośrodka Monitorowania Aeroalergenów Kliniki Immunologii i Alergii UM w Łodzi z lat 2003-2022.

WYNIKI

Najwyższe częstości uczuleń w testach SPT uzyskano dla ekstraktów pyłku żyta, brzozy i tymotki: odpowiednio 57,22% i 47,34% 44,8%. Następnie olszy 41,32%, leszczyny 38,34% i bylicy 31,85%. Uczulenia monowalentne stwierdzono głównie wobec pyłku traw/zbóż dla 4,97% (n=55). Za pomocą analizy czynnikowej wyodrębniono cztery niezależne główne składowe. Stwierdzono, że średnice bąbli dla traw są wyższe u mężczyzn (p<0,0001). Wśród wyróżnionych trzech kategorii wiekowych, dla uczuleń na pyłek drzew wykazano zależność między kolejnymi grupami wiekowymi. Istotne zróżnicowania wystąpiło między średnimi wartościami średnic bąbli drzew, a I/II grupą wiekową (p=0,005) oraz między I i III grupą wiekową (p<0,0001). W przypadku traw największa wartość średnicy bąbli była w kategorii II.

WYNIKI TESTÓW SKÓRNYCH, A ALERGIA

Szansa zachorowania na alergiczny nieżyt nosa (J30) była najwyższa, bo ponad 3 razy większa przy uczuleniu na trawy (OR = 3,24 (2,58-4,05); p<0,00001, ponad 2 razy wyższa na alergeny pyłku żyta, leszczyny i olszy niż u osób bez tego rodzaju uczuleń. U chorych z astmą dominowało uczulenie na alergeny psa i kota oraz roztoczy. Ryzyko zachorowania na atopowe zapalenie skóry było najwyższe u chorych uczulonych na pyłek brzozy i olszy. W odniesieniu do pozostałych jednostek chorobowych: J31, J32, J,33, R05, stwierdzono, zależności ujemne, Np. u osób z polipami nosa szansę uczulenia na trawy oszacowano jako czterokrotnie niższą niż u osób bez polipów. Dla jednostek chorobowych L50, T78 zależności były nieistotne.

WYNIKI TESTÓW SKÓRNYCH, A EKSPOZYCJA NA PYŁEK ROŚLIN

Średnie stężenia pyłku roślin było najwyższe dla brzozy, następnie dla pokrzywy, sosnowatych, olszy i dębu, jesionu i traw, ale częstość uczuleń bezpośrednio nie pokrywała się z hierarchią stężeń pyłku w powietrzu atmosferycznym w Łodzi.

WNIOSKI

Rozpoznanie uczulających alergenów – czyli ekspozycyjnych czynników ryzyka rozwoju objawów ma kluczowe znaczenie dla diagnostyki alergii. Profile uczuleń określane za pomocą podstawowego panelu testów skórnych różnicuje pacjentów w zależności od płci, grup wiekowych i poszczególnych jednostek chorobowych o podłożu alergicznym. Jednak poziom ekspozycji na pyłek nie był bezpośrednio związany z częstością wyników testów skórnych, czyli jego alergogennością.



4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Air quality versus health of winter rapeseed crops

Joanna Kaczmarek¹, Magdalena Wójcik², Beata Żuraw³, Aneta Sulborska-Różycka⁴, Zbigniew Karolewski⁵, Idalia Kasprzyk², Andrzej Brachaczek^{6,7}, Leszek Menzel⁷, Akinwunmi O. Latunde-Dada⁸, Małgorzata Jędryczka¹

jkac@igr.poznan.pl, mwojcik@ur.edu.pl, beata.zuraw@up.lublin.pl, karolew@up.poznan.pl, kasprzyk@ur.edu.pl, andrzej.brachaczek@innvigo.com, leszek.menzel@corteva.com, olulatundedada@hotmail.com, mjed@igr.poznan.pl ¹Institute of Plant Genetics, Polish Academy of Sciences, Strzeszynska 34, 60-479 Poznan, Poland ²University of Rzeszów, College of Natural Sciences, Institute of Biology, Zelwerowicza 4, 35-601 Rzeszów, Poland ³University of Life Sciences in Lublin, Faculty of Environmental Biology, Department of Hydrobiology and Protection of Ecosystems, Dobrzańskiego 37, 20-262 Lublin, Poland ⁴University of Life Sciences in Lublin, Faculty of Environmental Biology, Department of Botany and Plant Physiology,

Akademicka 13, 20-950 Lublin, Poland ⁵University of Life Sciences, Faculty of Agriculture, Horticulture and Bioengineering, Department of Phytopathology and

Seed Production, Dąbrowskiego 159 60-594 Poznan, Poland ⁶Innvigo Ltd., Al. Jerozolimskie 178, 02-486 Warsaw, Poland ⁷Corteva Agrisciences Ltd., Józefa Piusa Dziekońskiego 1, 00-728 Warsaw, Poland ⁸Rothamsted Research, AL5 2JQ Harpenden, Hetrfordshire, United Kingdom, Poland

KEY WORDS: oilseed rape, *Leptosphaeria maculans, Leptosphaeria biglobosa, Plenodomus lingam, Plenodomus biglobosus,* SPEC system

Aeroplankton includes numerous airborne macro- and microorganisms, such as pollen grains, fungal spores, bacteria and viruses, many of which contain allergenic proteins adverse for human health. The concentration of these airborne pathogens can be determined using aerobiological methods with various levels of precision. The detection of pollen grains and airborne spores is based on air sampling with Hirst type suction traps. The detection of plant pathogens transmitted by air as spores or other propagules permits the development of forecasting methods. Decision support systems based on pathogen biology are greatly supported in all environmentally friendly policies of the European Union, such as the Green Deal. In Poland the monitoring system of airborne plant inoculum using a network of 9–10 volumetric spore samplers has been constantly operating since autumn 2004. This System for Forecasting Disease Epidemics (in Polish: System Prognozowania Epidemii Chorob, SPEC) has been focused on Plenodomus lingam (formely: Leptosphaeria maculans) and P. biglobosus (L. biglobosa), two pathogens of oilseed rape, responsible for the stem canker disease, which brings huge economic losses. The ascospores of both species are mostly discharged in the autumn and partially also in early spring. The latter brings less harm to plants and results with small decrease of yield, in contrast to plant infections in the autumn. In SPEC system tapes from volumetric traps are processed for spore counts followed by DNA extraction which enables the determination of pathogen species by quantitative Real-Time PCR. The presentation will show the organisation and results of the SPEC system over the last 20 years and the examples of its use in agricultural practice. The use of aerobiological data may help to undertake proper decisions in plant protection and save the environment by the reduction of unnecessary pesticide sprays.



Modeling the impact of changing the method of heating apartments in Krakow in the years 2012-2018 on the level of PM₁₀ concentrations

Jolanta Godłowska¹, Wiesław Kaszowski¹, Kamil Kaszowski¹

jolanta.godlowska@imgw.pl, wieslaw.kaszowski@imgw.pl, kamil.kaszowski@imgw.pl ¹Instytut Meteorologii I Gospodarki Wodnej – Państwowy Instytut Badawczy, Zakład Meteorologii, Klimatologii i Ochrony Atmosfery, ul. Podleśna 61, 01-673 Warszawa, Polska

KEY WORDS: emissions from heating systems, air quality modeling, emissions reduction

ABSTRACT

Kraków, a large city with substantial emissions from communal, traffic, and industrial sources, faces unique environmental challenges. Its urban fabric and the land relief limit the city's ability to ventilate and remove pollutants. Notably, pollution concentration standards have frequently been exceeded, prompting the city government to ban the use of solid-fuel heating equipment within city limits starting in 2019. Economic incentives, such as subsidies for adopting new heating methods, were introduced to facilitate this change. An assessment of the effectiveness of these interventions in reducing PM10 (particulate matter) emissions was conducted utilizing data on the quantity and location of solid fuel furnaces and boiler houses from 2012, 2015, and 2018. AROME/MM5/CALMET/CALPUFF models (Scire et al., 2000a, 2000b) were deployed to estimate PM10 emissions from these heating sources for the respective years, considering meteorological data from a relatively cold year (2012) and a warm year (2018). This analysis was carried out using a 100 m resolution grid, allowing the precise calculation of daily and annual average PM10 concentrations, maximum daily PM10 concentrations, and the environmental effect, defined as the average annual PM10 concentration difference for the periods 2012-2015, 2015-2018, and 2012-2018. Emission data collected at the end of 2018 based on information on active furnaces and boiler houses were also integrated into the FAPPS air quality forecasting system, significantly improving Kraków's air quality predictions (Godłowska et al., 2022). The findings revealed a significant environmental effect due to the elimination of solid fuel heating sources between 2015 and 2018. Specifically, PM10 emissions were reduced fourfold in terms of average annual concentrations. Moreover, all daily averages fell below 27 µg/m³, and maximum daily PM10 concentrations dropped from 254 (170) µg/m³ in 2015 to 66 (44) µg/m³ in 2018 in the cold (warm) meteorological year for 10% of the city's area.



Fig.1. Maps of the environmental effects achieved by the removal of solid fuel furnaces between January 2012 and December 2015 (left) and December 2015 and December 2018 (right)

Acknowledgments

We would like to thank the Municipality of Kraków, Department of Air Quality of the Municipality of Kraków for preparing and providing data on the number and distribution of stoves and boiler houses in Kraków in 2012, 2015 and 2018, and permission to publish the results of the prepared study.

REFERENCES

Godłowska J., Kaszowski K., Kaszowski W. 2022, Application of the FAPPS system based on the CALPUFF model in short-term air pollution forecasting in Krakow and Lesser Poland, Archives of Environmental Protection, Vol. 48, no. 3, pp. 109–117

Scire J. S., Robe F. R., Fernau M. E., Yamartino R. J., 2000a: A user's guide for the CALMET Meteorological Model (Version 5.0). Earth Tech, Inc., Concord, MA (www.src.com/calpuff/download/CALMET_UsersGuide.pdf).

Scire J. S., Strimaitis D. G., Yamartino R.J., 2000b: A user's guide for the CALPUFF Dispersion Model (Version 5.0). Earth Tech, Inc., Concord, MA (www.src.com/calpuff/download/CALPUFF_UsersGuide.pdf).



Application of a dynamic air quality mapping system (DMJP) for monitoring and assessing the impact of odour facilities

Aleksandra Kowalska¹, Iwona Rackiewicz², Marek Rosicki², Tomasz Przybyła², Piotr Michałek²

aleksandra.kowalska@um.bydgoszcz.pl, rackiewicz@atmoterm.pl, rosicki@atmoterm.pl, przybyla@atmoterm.pl, michalek@atmoterm.pl

> ¹Bydgoszcz City Hall, 1 Jezuicka Street, 85-102 Bydgoszcz, Poland ²Atmoterm S.A., 4 Łangowskiego Street, 45-031 Opole, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality, odour, modelling

Odour nuisance from municipal facilities is often a significant local problem faced by local authorities across the country. The lack of odour standards and complaints from people exposed to unpleasant odours make it necessary to look for methods to monitor this phenomenon. This article presents the results of a research and development project aimed at developing, on behalf of the Bydgoszcz City Hall, a local odour monitoring system for a wastewater treatment plant using low-cost sensors and modelling techniques for the dispersion of pollutants in the atmosphere. The research used the dynamic air quality mapping system (DMJP), developed as part of the NCBR-funded ISSOP project, for which experience had been gathered from previous work on air quality monitoring in urban areas for PM10 and PM2.5 pollution.

The concept for a monitoring system for odours from the Bydgoszcz municipal wastewater treatment plant assumed the use of low-cost sensors to measure two odour-forming substances characteristic of wastewater treatment plants, i.e. hydrogen sulphide (H_2S) and ammonia (NH_3). As part of the pilot study, a prototype version of the device was made, including the selection of sensors. After testing and calibration, the sensors were mounted, and the modelling (CALPUFF model) and the data presentation system for the concentrations of the analysed substances was launched. The tests were conducted for 12 months.

The developed odour monitoring system from the wastewater treatment plant can be used by the operators of the wastewater treatment plants to continuously monitor the state of air quality around the studied facility and by the local authorities to keep the residents informed about current and forecast odour pollution.



Application of ADMS-Urban for an area with a high contribution of residential heating emissions – model verification and sensitivity study for PM_{2.5}

Paweł Porwisiak¹, Małgorzata Werner¹, Maciej Kryza¹, Helen ApSimon², Huw Woodward², Daniel Mehlig², Lech Gawuc³, Tymoteusz Sawiński¹

pawel.porwisiak@uwr.edu.pl, malgorzata.werner@uwr.edu.pl, maciej.kryza@uwr.edu.pl, h.apsimon@imperial.ac.uk, huw.woodward@imperial.ac.uk, d.mehlig18@imperial.ac.uk, lech.gawuc@kobize.pl, tymoteusz.sawinski@uwr.edu.pl ¹University of Wrocław, Faculty of Earth Sciences and Environmental Management, Kosiby 8, 51-621 Wrocław, Poland ²Imperial College London, Centre for Environmental Policy, London SW7 1NE, UK

³Institute of Environmental Protection–National Research Institute, Krucza 5/11D, 00-548 Warsaw, Poland.

KEY WORDS: PM2.5, modelling, local scale, ADMS-Urban, Poland

ABSTRACT

Air pollution poses a significant risk to both human health and the environment in the contemporary world. Among the various pollutants, particulate matter with a diameter less than 2.5 µm (PM2.5) is regarded as the most hazardous. It has been implicated in over four million global fatalities in 2019 alone. This research paper divulges the outcomes of modeling the spatialtemporal fluctuations of PM2.5 concentrations within the confines of Wroclaw, a city situated in Poland, Central Europe. The model's output was evaluated through comparison with collected data from two government-operated monitoring stations within the city. For this study, we used the ADMS-Urban model and tested two different sources of background data (low-cost sensors and the EMEP MSC-W atmospheric chemistry transport model). The statistical analysis conducted in the paper indicates that the model reproduces the temporal variability of PM2.5. The conclusions from this research indicate that the average annual PM2.5 concentration within Wroclaw is 13.87 μ g/m3, with the concentration peaking in the month of March. The spatial dispersion reveals the highest PM2.5 concentrations primarily in the southern and western zones of the city, with additional elevated concentrations observed sporadically throughout the city. The study unveils that approximately 1.28% of Wroclaw's area experiences PM2.5 concentrations exceeding the EU's annual limit of 20 µg/m3. When considered in relation to the WHO's suggested annual average level of 5 µg/m3, Wroclaw city experiences exceedances throughout. When background concentrations are excluded from the model, the annual average PM2.5 concentration across the city is noted to be reduced by more than 80%. A thorough investigation into the city's emission structure indicates that the residential sector contributes around 75% of the total annual average PM2.5 concentrations within Wroclaw, while the transportation and industrial sectors are accountable for nearly 18% and 2% respectively.



High resolution GHG dispersion modeling in urban environment – case study from Krakow

Miroslaw Zimnoch¹, Michal Galkowski^{1,2}, Piotr Sekula^{1,3}, Alicja Skiba¹, Zbigniew Gorczyca¹

zimnoch@agh.edu.pl, galkowski@fis.agh.edu.pl, sekula@agh.edu.pl, Alicja.Skiba@fis.agh.edu.pl, Zbigniew.Gorczyca@agh.edu.pl ¹AGH University of Krakow, Faculty of Physics and Applice Computer Science, Krakow, Poland ²Max Planck Institute for Biogeochemistry, Jena, Germany ³Institute of Meteorology and Water Management, National Research Institute, Krakow, Poland

KEY WORDS: greenhouse gases, anthropogenic emissions, biogenic emissions, hi-resolution modelling, urban atmosphere

ABSTRACT

The severity of the observed climate change during recent years is encouraging policy makers to reinforce mitigation efforts across multiple temporal and spatial scales. To ensure the effectiveness of the actions undertaken, reliable tools based on atmospheric observations are required to assess the observed changes and the primary factors driving these changes. One of the most important task within the scope of these efforts is the estimation of carbon emissions. Atmospheric transport models constitute a key element of anthropogenic emissions monitoring and verification systems. Although urban areas are responsible for significant portion of anthropogenic emissions, significant challenges and modelling and development of observation networks limited our ability to precisely assess fluxes at respective scales.

Here we present the application of a high resolution GHG (Greenhouse Gas) dispersion modelling framework based on the WRF-Chem model in the urban area of Krakow, the second largest city of Poland, located in Małopolskie voivodeship. The results demonstrate the preliminary results of the CO₂ dry mole fraction simulations obtained using the developed system and evaluate the model performance in two aspects critical for model performance for modelling of GHGs, (i) parametrisation of the urban boundary layer dynamics and (ii) spatio-temporal distribution of CO₂ emitted from the point-like strong power-generation emission source located in the vicinity of the city. The evaluation of model performance was done using vertical CO₂ profiling campaigns supported by carbon isotope analysis and application of the isotope-mass balance (Zimnoch et al. 2018), allowing to determine the urban boundary layer dynamics, and also to evaluate contribution of anthropogenic and biogenic carbon to the city atmosphere. Measurement campaigns were performed in 2021 as part of the EU-founded CoCO2 (Prototype System for Copernicus CO₂ service, Horizon 2020) research project. The preliminary results showed that the model was able to correctly represent the vertical CO₂ structure; however, the analysis of isotopic signals has indicated an underestimation of biogenic signals in the city atmosphere.

Acknowledgments

The presented work was funded by the CoCO2 project, which has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under Grant Agreement No. 958927 and the "Excellence Initiative - Research University" programme at AGH University of Krakow. This research was partially supported by PLGrid Infrastructure.

REFERENCES

Zimnoch M., Necki J., Chmura L., Jasek A., Jelen D., Galkowski M., Kuc T., Gorczyca Z., Bartyzel J., and Rozanski K. "Quantification of Carbon Dioxide and Methane Emissions in Urban Areas: Source Apportionment Based on Atmospheric Observations." Mitigation and Adaptation Strategies for Global Change 24, no. 6 (June 12, 2018): 1051–71. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11027-018-9821-0.



55

Effect of data separation on the effectiveness of modeling NO_x concentrations in an urban agglomeration

Joanna A. Kamińska¹, Joanna Kajewska-Szkudlarek²

joanna.kaminska@upwr.edu.pl, joanna.kajewska-szkudlarek@upwr.edu.pl

¹Department of Applied Mathematics, Wroclaw University of Environmental and Life Sciences, Grunwaldzka Street 53, 50-357 Wroclaw, Poland; ORCID 0000-0002-0157-516X

²Institute of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Environmental and Life Sciences, Grunwaldzki Square 24, 50-363 Wroclaw, Poland; ORCID 0000-0002-0253-8133

KEY WORDS: nitrogen oxides, machine learning, meteorological factor, data splitting

The issue of air quality modelling is widely discussed in the literature. One of the trends is the analysis of the relationship/influence of environmental factors on the concentration of pollutants in the air using various machine learning methods. The main problem of these models is their poor fit and interpretation potential (Kamińska and Turek 2020). We proposed a splitting of the data, which grouped the moments in time in a given way. The 13 variables used in the modelling were selected from 23 available by the iterative method using Random Forest (RF) (Kamińska and Kajewska-Szkudlarek 2023). They describe the characteristics of the environment such as: meteorological conditions (wind direction and speed, air temperature, atmospheric pressure, sunshine, relative humidity), traffic intensity and time variables (hour, working/week-day).

We considered two splitting methods: cluster analysis (using C&RT algorithm) and decision tree (DT). In the decision tree method, there was only one splitting variable $NO_{x_{t-1}}$. This means that in this method, the only splitting criterion is the last measured concentration of NOx (the value from one hour earlier). This method produced eight NOx_{t-1} intervals covering \mathbb{R}_+ , with boundary points at 47.04, 82.1, 117.3, 162.5, 242.6, 355.4, and 526.8 µgm⁻³. As a result of the cluster analysis, 8 clusters were also obtained. Each cluster describes different ambient conditions that most strongly influence the current concentration of NOx, taking into account traffic volume, meteorological conditions, and time of day.

For each of the two received splitting, each time into 8 subsections, we created machine learning models: Random Forest (RF), Artificial Neutral Network (ANN) and Support Vector Regression (SVR). For comparison purposes, we also built models for a full dataset without splitting. The goodness of model fit was measured by 4 popular measures summarized in Tab.1. In each case, the model based on the SVR technique was the weakest fit. ANN and RF methods show a similar level of fit. Interesting conclusions can be drawn from the analysis of the fit of individual models for each of the subsets.

The best fit in CA splitting method was obtained, for both type of models, for afternoon traffic peak periods under different ambient conditions (MAPE 14-18%). Worse fit was recorded for night times conditions (MAPE 22-25%). Models fit for C&RT splitting method was almost uniformly distributed across subsets (MAPE 16.7-20%) except one cluster contains mainly afternoon peak hours with low traffic (MAPE 22.6 and 23%).

The results show that both approaches to model specification may be effectively used to improve the quality of modelling of *NOx* concentrations in urban areas. The choice of approach should be determined by the purpose of the analysis. If the forecast is to be used only to provide instantaneous information, for example, to provide public warnings, then methods based on C&RT will be sufficient. However, if the goal of the analysis is to identify particular ambient conditions that favour the achievement of a particular level of air quality, with an analysis of the influence of individual factors, and the creation of scenarios for development planning or other city management actions, then models based on CA provide the possibility of obtaining such information.

	Table	. Goodness of fit measure	s for analysed models
--	-------	---------------------------	-----------------------

	Goodness of fit measures	RF	ANN	SVR
	R^2	0.869	0.872	0.840
C&RT	MADE $[\mu gm^{-3}]$	21.0	20.6	24.8
CANI	MAPE [%]	17.2	16.8	23.7
	RMSE [μgm^{-3}]	33.9	34.0	38.1
	R^2	0.842	0.878	0.836
CA	MADE $[\mu gm^{-3}]$	21.7	21.5	27.4
CA	MAPE [%]	17.3	17.3	34.7
	$RMSE \ [\mu gm^{-3}]$	40.4	34.3	39.7
	R^2	0.852	0.856	0.678
Full	MADE $[\mu gm^{-3}]$	21.8	22.2	42.0
dataset	MAPE [%]	17.5	18.9	91.6
	RMSE [μgm^{-3}]	36.5	35.8	53.5

REFERENCES

Kamińska, Joanna A., and Joanna Kajewska-Szkudlarek. 2023. "The Importance of Data Splitting in Combined NOx Concentration Modelling." *Science of The Total Environment* 868:161744. doi: 10.1016/J.SCITOTENV.2023.161744.

Kamińska, Joanna Amelia, and Tomasz Turek. 2020. "Explicit and Implicit Description of the Factors Impact on the NO2 Concentration in the Traffic Corridor." *Archives of Environmental Protection* 46(1):93–99. doi: 10.24425/aep.2020.132530.



4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

A novel approach to low-stack emission management

Łukasz Adamkiewicz¹, Dominika Mucha^{1,2}, Katarzyna Maciejewska^{1,2}

lukasz.adamkiewicz@cleanaircentre.eu ¹European Clean Air Centre, ul. Felicjanek 10/6, 31-104 Cracow, Poland ²Warsaw University of Technology, The Faculty of Building Services, Hydro and Environmental Engineering, pl. Politechniki 1, 00-661, Warsaw, Poland

The aim of the study was to develop new tools for analysing air quality scenarios for the residential emission sector.

The existing databases and information have been used: The Central Register of Building Emissions (GUNB), Clean Air Programme (NFOSiGW), Report on emission factors for sources of combustion of solid fuels (Żelinski et al. 2021), sociological research amongst household owners (Pytliński et al., 2021), analysis of energy demand for households (KAPE), analysis of emission factors for ecodesign boilers (Krpec et al., 2023), efficiency of boilers from European Monitoring and Evaluation Programme guidebook (EMEP).

This robust approach allows for analysis of the impacts of different quantitative emission scenarios on the commune level (the smallest administrative unit). Authors have prepared a dataset compatible with the KOBIZE CBE (Krajowy Ośrodek Bilansowania i Zarządzania Emisjami, Centralna Baza Emisji), which is responsible for national emission inventory in Poland. Three computation tools were created to calculate specific for each commune: emission factors, energy demand, scenarios for fuel mix. 1st tool calculates average emission factors for coal and biomass, based on the local (municipal) structure of boilers and on the individual emission factors assigned to various devices, including condensable fractions of particulate matter. In the 2nd tool, in order to assess the impact of thermomodernization, the age structures of buildings in each county (higher tier then commune) were used. The energy demand reductions were assessed based on the KAPE analysis, describing heat energy consumption of houses divided into 3 thermal insulation classes and 6 age groups. Results from these two previous models provide input data for the third one, i.e. the scenario tool, that accounts: share in coal and biomass fuel mix of outdated boilers and 5 or ecodesign class, reductions in energy demand, scenario assumptions (number of replaced boilers), and conversion rate per class of boilers. The products of the scenarios include: new energy mix and emission factors per each commune. This data is further fed into KOBIZE CBE model to produce emission raster data for air quality modelling.

Four 4 scenarios have been calculated: Natural, Ambitious, Compliance and Biomass. Each had an implementation date of 2030. The main variable of each scenario was the replacement rate of outdated solid fuel boilers. The rate of exchange was based on the hitherto performance (statistics of devices replacement) of the Clean Air Programme and the quota of boilers to be replaced according to the data from The Central Register of Building Emissions.

The developed tools are at the stage of prototypes, however they have already been assessed with different KOBIZE analyses which confirm that they provide an important improvement to the existing approach, i.e. spatial differentiation, while at the same time they take into account already available public data.

REFERENCES

GUNB - Główny Urząd Nadzoru Statytycznego https://ceeb.gov.pl/, unpublished data prepared for the purpose this study

NFOSiGW – Narodowy Fundusz Środowiska I Gospodarki Wodnej https://polskialarmsmogowy.pl/statystyki/, unpublished data prepared for the purpose this study

Jacek Żeliński, Katarzyna Rychlewska, Katarzyna Matuszek, Jolanta Telenga-Kopyczyńska, Piotr Hrycko, Opracowanie wskaźników emisji dla źródeł spalania paliw stałych w sektorze komunalno-bytowym MODUŁ I, II i III, 2021

Łukasz Pytliński, Anna Dworakowska, Andrzej Guła, Domy Jednorodzinne w Polsce. Źródła Grzewcze, Stan Energetyczny, Priorytety Inwestycyjne 2021

KAPE – Krajowa Agencja Poszanowania Energii, unpublished data prepared for the purpose this study

Kamil Krpec et al., Determination of emission factors for selected boilers for solid fuels, 2023

EMEP - EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2019, 1.A.4.a.i, 1.A.4.b.i, 1.A.4.c.i, 1.A.5.a, Small combustion

4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Copernicus Atmosphere Monitoring Service – implementation of National Collaboration Programme for Poland

Joanna Strużewska¹, Karol Przeździecki¹, Marcin Kawka¹, Grzegorz Jeleniewicz¹, Maciej Jefimow¹, Aleksandra Starzomska¹, Piotr Drzewiecki¹, Aneta Gienibor¹, Monika Grzegorczyk¹, Jacek Kamiński¹

joanna.struzewska@ios.edu.pl

¹Department of Atmospheric and Climate Modelling, Institute of Environmental Protection - National Research Institute

KEY WORDS: CAMS Service, National Collaboration Programme, national uptake, CAMS products, air quality downscaling, emissions, Sentinel 5P

Copernicus Atmosphere Monitoring Service (CAMS) is one of the thematic areas of the European Copernicus Earth Observation Programme. CAMS offers a wide range of high-quality products developed in the scope of sub-services such as air quality forecasts, emission data and satellite observations. To promote a tailored application of CAMS products the National Collaboration Programme was introduced in 2022.

The CAMS National Collaboration Programme for Poland has been launched in May 2023 and the pilot phase will last 18 months.

The primary objective of the National Collaboration Programme for Poland is to improve the uptake of CAMS products at national, regional and local levels. We aim to build and disseminate a user-driven database of ready-to-use CAMS products for Poland. Five users/stakeholder groups have been identified: public administration, researchers, secondary education, NGOs and the general public. To enhance user engagement, we will invite the interested institutions to co-design a list of applications and CAMS products that might be used in Poland in the long term.

All the activities envisaged within this project will be built around the data centre that will serve the information on air quality and emissions based on the products provided in the scope of CAMS services for the area of Poland. The project will ensure that the maximum benefit is derived from CAMS products and services. We will support the direct use of CAMS regional analysis, and pollen forecast, and facilitate the initiate uptake of Sentinel 5P observations for analysis of the atmospheric chemical composition over Poland. Downscaling methodology for CAMS regional air quality products over Poland will be developed to refine the resolution and address local problems. Also, we will promote the use of CAMS emission products in Poland and provide feedback based on local and national knowledge of the relevant CAMS services. As a part of the general society's involvement, we will design and implement educational programs and courses targeted at secondary schools.

The CAMS National Collaboration Programme gives a unique opportunity to promote the CAMS Service product and to define new applications. Our objective is to build a community of CAMS product users in Poland. The project is expected to contribute to national emission control and air quality and various air quality-related impact assessment studies, including health effects and cost-benefit analysis.

As the scientific community is an essential and competent user of CAMS products, we would like to provide a comprehensive overview of the project to initiate the discussion and to invite existing CAMS users to present their experiences at the first users workshop planned in November 2023.

Acknowledgments

This work is carried out in the scope of CAMS2_72PL Service



Opportunity to conduct research on atmospheric pollution using a hot air balloon

Mariola Jabłońska¹, Janusz Janeczek¹

mariola.jablonska@us.edu.pl, janusz.janeczek@us.edu.pl

¹University of Silesia in Katowice, Faculty of Natural Sciences, University Laboratories of Atmospheric Survey, ul. Będzińska 60, 41-200 Sosnowiec, Poland

Air quality is extremely important for the environment and human health, particularly in urban areas. That is why air quality monitoring is carried out constantly in numerous European cities. In Poland monitoring stations usually provide data on concentrations of PM10, PM2.5, and selected gases (CO, SO2,NOx, and BaP). Monitoring stations are usually located in spots representative for the urban background air pollution and do not provide information on spatial distribution of air pollutants. Nevertheless, data they collect are often the basis for modelling the emission source categories of atmospheric pollutants. There is limited information on the real-time horizontal and vertical extent of air pollutants from the emission sources. This information can be gained by using mobile research platforms.

The University of Silesia in Katowice owns the only Polish manned hot air balloon as a research platform equipped with onboard multipurpose instruments for interdisciplinary atmospheric study. During the balloon flight it is possible to do *in-situ*: measurements of solid particles concentration in the range of 10 nm to 10 µm in aerodynamic diameter, simultaneously with their sampling; analyses of various gases and their sampling into Tedlar bags for further study; measurements and collection of bioaerosols (pollen, bacteria, and fungal spores). Real-time meteorological data are also gathered during each flight. All instruments are calibrated for reliable measurements at high altitudes. Measurements and sampling can be done safely at altitudes up to 4000 m above ground level. The balloon has a large lifting capacity of up to 1200 kg that allows for additional research equipment to be uploaded if needed, e.g. for remote sensing. The advantage of hot air balloon as a research platform over the unmanned aerial vehicles (UAV) is the ability of the former to carry out different measurements and sampling simultaneously and continuously for up to 4 hours. There are no propellers that disturb air movement. The balloon flies alongside the flow of air masses, which enables tracing the spatial and temporal dispersion of air pollutants at different altitudes. This capability of the balloon platform has been confirmed during recent research flights over Upper Silesia, Warsaw and Wroclaw. Data obtained with help of the hot air balloon can serve to both creating and verifying numerical models of vertical and horizontal dispersion of airborne pollutants.



Application of field olfactometry and gas sensors in odorous samples analyzes

Justyna Jońca¹, Marcin Pawnuk¹, Urszula Miller¹, Izabela Sówka¹

justyna.jonca@pwr.edu.pl, izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, marcin.pawnuk@pwr.edu.pl, urszula.miller@pwr.edu.pl ¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: odor nuissance, odor concentration, field olfactometry, gas sensors, volatile organic compounds

Odors emitted from Waste Management Plants raise social concerns regarding the well-being of employees working at these facilities and residents of nearby areas (Pawnuk et al., 2022). Therefore, reduction of unpleasant odors is a priority for this branch of industry. It is also necessary to provide verification of the effectiveness of these efforts. Olfactometry (*i.e.* dynamic and field olfactormetry) is the most popular method of odorous samples investigations. It allows to determine the concentration, intensity and hedonic quality of the analyzed odor, but information on its chemical composition cannot be obtained in this way. Analytical methods (*e.g.* GC-MS, gas sensors), in turn, allow to measure the concentration of individual odorants, but this does not tell us much about the odor impact. Therefore, sensory and analytical methods should not be treated as competitive techniques but rather used simultaneously as complementary approaches to odorous samples investigations (Jońca et al., 2022). Such strategy was employed for the investigation of three Waste Management Plants (WMP1, WMP2 and WMP3) in terms of odor and odorants concentration using field olfactometry and gas sensors, respectively. The measurements were taken during autumn (WMP1, WMP2 and WMP3), winter (WMP1) and spring (WMP1) seasons and therefore, gave the possibility to compare the odor and odorants concentrations at these three sites (autumn measurements) and to investigate the seasonal variability of these parameters at the WMP1 site.

The highest D/T that can be measured with the field olfactometer (Nasal Ranger) used in this study was 60 which corresponds to odor concentration of 78.49 ou/m³ (Pawnuk et al., 2023). During autumn investigations, such high odor concentrations (*i.e.* 78.49 ou/m³ and above) were recorded at 13 out of 36 measurement points (36.1%) for the WMP1. This parameter was significantly higher for the WMP2, *i.e.* 15 out of 26 measurement points (57.7%) and slightly lower for the WMP3, *i.e.* 6 out of 21 measurement points (26.6%). For the WMP1, the highest odor concentrations were observed inside the aerobic bioreactors and the waste aerobic stabilization area; for the WMP2 – at the sorting facility, the composting yard and the waste storage yard; and for the WMP3 – at the sorting facility, the composting hall and waste reception hall for anaerobic treatment. The seasonal investigations at the WMP1 revealed that, the odor and odorants concentration are generally lower during winter than for the rest of the year. This is in accordance with our previous results (Pawnuk et al., 2023).

Measurements with the specific sensors revealed that the volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are mainly responsible for the perceived odors. Indeed, as the VOCs concentration increases, the odor concentration increases as well. Various correlation coefficients (Pearson's, Spearman's, and Kendall's) were analyzed while searching for the relationships between VOCs and odor concentration. The Spearman's tests gave the highest correlation coefficient for all investigated facilities, *i.e.* 0.696 (WMP1), 0.741 (WMP2) and 0.973 (WMP3). Strong correlation coefficient was also achieved with the Kendall's tests, *i.e.* 0.568 (WMP1), 0.606 (WMP2) and 0.924 (WMP3). The weakest correlation coefficients may be further improved by the application of a field olfactometer with the higher D/T range. Indeed, at VOCs concentration of around 0.6 ppm, the measured D/T was often at its maximal value of 60. Meanwhile, much higher VOCs concentrations (up to 10 ppm) were frequently recorded with the PID (photo-ionization detector) sensor and especially at the WMP2.

In summary, the obtained results revealed significant diversification of odor and VOCs concentrations that depended on the waste treatment processes, the meteorological parameters, and the technological regime. Importantly, the correlation tests indicated that VOCs and odor concentration are correlated but the relationship between those parameters is not linear. Therefore, although the PID sensor can not replace well established olfactometry measurements, the VOCs measurements could be a useful tool to verify the effectiveness of odor nuisance minimization procedures put in place at the site of interest.

REFERENCES

Jońca J., Pawnuk M., Arsen A., Sówka I., 2022, Electronic noses and their applications for sensory and analytical measurements in the Waste Management Plants—A Review, Sensors, Vol. 22, No.4, 1510

Pawnuk M., Sówka I., Naddeo V., The Use of Field Olfactometry in the Odor Assessment of a Selected Mechanical–Biological Municipal Waste Treatment Plant within the Boundaries of the Selected Facility—A Case Study, Sustainability 2023, Vol. 15, No.4, 7163

Pawnuk M., Szulczyński B., den Boer E., Sówka I., 2022, Preliminary analysis of the state of municipal waste management technology in Poland along with the identification of waste treatment processes in terms of odor emissions, Archives of Environmental Protection Vol. 48 no. 3 pp. 3–20



4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Measurement of particulate matter gaseous compounds and odor identification based on the experience of Atut Ltd.

Krzysztof Pawłowski

e-mail: krzysztofpawlowski@atut.lublin.pl Atut Ltd, ul. B. Prusa 8, 20-064 Lublin, Poland

Particulate matter measurement is carried out in the PM1, PM2.5, PM4, PM10 fractions using TSI construction solutions. We offer DustTrak Environmental Monitor EDTDRX[™] with MCERT certification, portable versions DRX [™] model 8533, 8533EP, 8534, personal aerosol analyzer SIDEPAK[™] model AM520i with DATALOGGER WITH LOCAL WEB INTERFACE AND INTERNET ACCESS TO THE CLOUD Atut Smart City-D and BlueSky Air QualityMonitor 8145 and 8143.



We present the highly advanced gas pollutant measurement technology on the example of OPSIS design solutions using the DOAS method.

We measure odor compounds from installations that are highly harmful to the environment based on our own designs of APFinder and SmartCity measuring devices using VOC sum detectors (PID sensors).

Full separation of odor-generating compounds is obtained using the Z-Nose gas chromatograph /electronic nose/.

zNose chromatographs are a family of gas chromatographs equipped with modern SAW (Surface Acoustic Wave) detectors operating based on the surface acoustic wave phenomenon. Both laboratory models and fully adapted to work in the field are available.





Are the government's air quality improvement programs having a measurable effect? – Air quality changes in Warsaw and surrounding areas

Dominika M. Szczepanik¹, Karol Deptuła¹, Iwona S. Stachlewska¹

dominika.szczepanik@fuw.edu.pl, karol_04_11_89@o2.pl, iwona.stachlewska@fuw.edu.pl ¹Institute of Geophysics, Faculty of Physics, University of Warsaw, Ludwika Pasteura 5, 02-093 Warsaw

KEY WORDS: air quality, smog, analysis

With growing awareness of the dangerous effects of high concentrations of air pollutants, the Ministry of Climate and Environment, alongside local governments, has taken measures to improve air quality. To this end, several programs have been launched, such as "Czyste Powietrze", "Stop Smog", "Mój prąd", "Energia Plus", "Ciepłownictwo Powiatowe" or "GreenEvo", aimed at municipalities and counties, especially residents of single-family homes and contractors. In addition, more provincial dietines are adopting Anti-Smog Resolutions. However, are these measures producing measurable effects? This work presents the results of an analysis of open-access data from selected air quality monitoring stations of the Chief Inspectorate of Environmental Protection (https://powietrze.gios.gov.pl/) in both urban and suburban background areas of Warsaw.

The analysis carried out covers winter periods (December-February) over the years 2016-2021 for seven measurement stations - an urban traffic station (Warszawa, Aleja Niepodległości), two urban background areas (Warszawa Kondratowicza and Wokalna) and four suburban areas located north (Legionowo), east (Otwock), south (Konstancin Jeziorna) and west (Piastów) of Warsaw. A selection of the occurrence of smog in Warsaw is supplying this study. For those episodes, an analysis of the prevailing meteorological conditions was carried out, along with verification of the directions of air mass inflows in the lowest layers of the atmosphere based on the backward trajectory HYSPLIT model. The analysis indicates an improvement in the air quality both in urban and suburban areas in terms of particulate matter PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5}. However, for some pollutants (e.g. benzo(a)pyrene), the concentrations remain at high levels. Over the years, the number of smog episode occurrences decreased, and their presence is related to temperature inversions and lack of wind.

Acknowledgments

Measurement data from air quality monitoring stations of the CIEP was analyzed. Meteorological data from the IMGW - PIB stations, were used. The HYSPLIT transport and dispersion model from NOAA Air Resources Laboratory (ARL) via the READY portal (http://www.ready.noaa.gov) was applied to determine the potential directions of air mass inflows.



Air quality and health effects related to pollution as an indicator of the progress of energy transformation

Janusz Zyśk¹, Ewa Adamiec², Elżbieta Jarosz-Krzemińska², Artur Wyrwa¹, Mateusz Rzeszutek³, Jakub Bartyzel⁴, Robert Brzoza-Woch⁵, Tomasz Pełech-Pilichowski⁵

¹AGH University of Science and Technology in Krakow, Faculty of Energy and Fuels, al. Mickiewicza 30 30-059 Krakow, Poland

²AGH University of Science and Technology in Krakow, Faculty of Geology, Geophysics, and Environmental Protection, al. Mickiewicza 30 30-059 Krakow, Poland

³AGH University of Science and Technology in Krakow, Faculty of Geo-Data Science, Geodesy, and Environmental Engineering, al. Mickiewicza 30 30-059 Krakow, Poland

⁴AGH University of Science and Technology in Krakow, The Faculty of Physics and Applied Computer Science, al. Mickiewicza 30 30-059 Krakow, Poland

⁵AGH University of Science and Technology in Krakow, Faculty of Computer Science, Electronics, and Telecommunications, al. Mickiewicza 30 30-059 Krakow, Poland

Most countries in the world are undergoing energy transformation, moving away from the emission sources based on fossil fuels and developing zero-emission sources, such as renewable energy. The European Union is aspiring to be a leader in taking climate change actions by implementing very ambitious plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 55% by 2030 in relation to 1990 and trying to reach a target of net zero emissions by 2050. The AGH University of Science and Technology is launching the project "Energy Transformation Observatory as an instrument to support the socio-economic development of Poland" under the GOSPOSTRATEG' program "Social and economic development of Poland in the conditions of globalizing markets". The aim of the project is to develop unique tools and models for assessing the energy transformation in the following areas: economic, climate and environmental, social and technical.

A detailed database of energy conversion technologies will be developed for various sectors, such as: energy, households, transport, industry, agriculture. This database will be developed based on literature review and the measurements of such an emission factors as particulate matter, sulfur oxides, nitrogen oxides, carbon dioxide and methane.

Simulations of the pollutant's dispersion in the atmosphere will be carried out using the Polyphemus air quality system. The simulation area will cover Poland with high resolution and will include an analysis of pollutant concentrations resulting from emissions from individual sectors (e.g. households). Calculated concentrations, dose-response functions, methodology of health effects assessment developed by the EPA and WHO, and the population will be used to assess the health effects (years of life lost, restricted activity day, cases of various diseases, hospital admissions) related to a given sector. The obtained results will allow to determine the health effects and the resulting concentrations per emission unit.

The health effects will be evaluated and the total external costs for the use of individual technologies in Poland will be developed. Based on the obtained results of external effects and costs for the Polish population and emissions of individual energy technologies, unit external costs for individual technologies will be calculated (external costs per unit of energy (input and/or output) and per person).



What will be the low emission zone in Wrocław?

Józefina Sobiegraj

Jozefina.Sobiegraj@um.wroc.pl Urząd Miejski Wrocławia, Biuro Zrównoważonej Mobilności

KEY WORDS: low emission zone

The amendment to the Act on electromobility and alternative fuels in 2021 gave local governments the opportunity to use another tool to improve the quality of air, which are low emission zones (LEZ). Cities and municipalities in Poland have gained greater freedom in making decisions regarding the creation and operation of low emission zones. The city of Wroclaw also decided to take advantage of this opportunity. In June 2022, measurements of exhaust emissions from road transport in the city center were commissioned and a report was commissioned, which contains recommendations regarding the implementation of the clean transport zone in the capital of Lower Silesia. The most dangerous pollutants emitted by vehicles are nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5). According to the research, the most pollutants of this type are emitted by old petrol and diesel vehicles, manufactured before 2005.

In December 2022, a document was presented: Low emission zone in Wroclaw. Vehicle exhaust emission test report and recommendations for the establishment of CTZ. It presents three proposals for clean transport zone areas. Each of the variants presented the area of the zone and the criteria for entering it. According to the assumptions of the above-mentioned document, the clean transport zone in Wroclaw should come into force in 2025, and its criteria should be tightened in 2028 and 2032. Currently, consultations with residents are being conducted on the recommendations presented in the Report.

REFERENCES

Strefa czystego transportu we Wrocławiu. Raport z badań emisji spalin pojazdów oraz rekomendacje w zakresie utworzenia SCT. 2022 r.

https://www.wroclaw.pl/beta2/files/dokumenty/244195/PSPA_Strefy_Czystego_Transportu_Emisje_Wroclaw_Raport.pdf



Part II Poster session



4th Symposium Air Quality and Health, Wrocław, 03-05.07.2023

Exposure of inhabitants of Silesia to B[a]P and volatility of PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀ concentrations

Dorota Kaleta¹, Barbara Kozielska¹

dorota.kaleta@polsl.pl, barbara.kozielska@polsl.pl

¹Silesian University of Technology, Department of Air Protection, 22B Konarskiego St., 44-100 Gliwice, Poland

KEY WORDS: benzo[a]piren, air pollution, risk assessment

ABSTRACT

Air pollution is the most serious environmental health threat in the modern world. This is a major cause of various diseases and premature deaths. In 2016, it was estimated that air pollution was the cause of 4.2 million premature deaths caused by cardiovascular diseases, i.e., heart diseases and strokes, as well as respiratory diseases, predominantly lung diseases and lung cancer. The pollutants with the most serious impacts on human health are particulate matter (PM), PM10-bound benzo[a]pyrene (B[a]P), nitrogen dioxide and ground-level ozone. Both particulate matter and benzo[a]pyrene are classified by the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) as carcinogenic to humans (Group 1). B[a]P has been recognized as a good and sufficient indicator of human exposure to priority polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) present in the air, for many years.

Negative health effects are more frequently observed in of European countries characterized by significant pollution. Exceedances of the daily limit value recommended by the EU for PM10 ($50 \ \mu g \cdot m^{-3}$) occur throughout the continent. However, the highest concentrations are observed in Northern Italy, Croatia, Bulgaria, Serbia, Kosovo, Turkey, Bosnia and Herzegovina, North Macedonia and Poland. Poland is considered to be a country with some of the severest problems related to air pollution in the EU, mainly due to such pollutants as PM2.5, PM10 and benzo[a]pyrene pollutants. According to the ranking pre-pared by the World Health Organization (WHO), 36 out of 50 cities with the worst air quality in the EU are located in Poland, most of them in Upper Silesia.

The aim of this study was to examine the variability in the PM and PM10-bound B[a]P concentrations at 11 monitoring stations and to analyze the risk of developing cancer resulting from inhalation exposure to B[a]P among the inhabitants of Upper Silesia.

In many Silesian cities, the average annual concentrations of PM10, PM2.5 and B[a]P were much higher than those recorded in other European countries. At each station, the average daily PM10 concentrations were exceeded on 12 to 126 days a year. Taking into account the WHO recommendation for PM2.5, the highest recorded average daily concentration exceeded the permissible level by almost 40 times.

In the Silesian Voivodeship, in in recent years the average annual concentration of PM10-bound B[a]P ranged from 2.48 to 13.18 ng·m⁻³. The highest B[a]P concentrations were recorded in Rybnik, which exceeded the limit value by 109 times recommended by the WHO of 0.12 ng·m⁻³.

The lifetime cancer risk (LCR) of inhalation exposure was estimated on the basis of the concentration of PM10-bound B[a]P in the atmospheric air in the Silesian Voivodeship. The LCR values were calculated for three scenarios: (a) annual, (b) the heating season and (c) the non-heating season. In the area of the Silesian Voivodeship, the LCR of the inhalation exposure to B[a]P was at an acceptable level. The calculated lifetime cancer risk (LCR) associated with the exposure to B[a]P in the Silesian Voivodeship suggested 30–429 cases per 1 million people in the heating sea-son depending on the scenario used for the calculations (IRIS, EPA or WHO).



Preliminary assessment of the influence of meteorological conditions on the variability of concentrations and composition of particulate matter in indoor and outdoor air in the area of a selected health resort

Beata Merenda¹, Izabela Sówka¹, Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz², Tymoteusz Sawiński², Lucyna Samek³, Katarzyna Styszko⁴

beata.merenda@pwr.edu.pl, izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, anetta.drzeniecka-osiadacz@uwr.edu.pl, tymoteusz.sawinski@uwr.edu.pl, lucyna.samek@fis.agh.edu.pl, styszko@agh.edu.pl ¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Wroclaw, Poland

² Faculty of Earth Sciences and Environmental Management , University of Wroclaw, Poland

³ Department of Medical Physics and Biophysics, AGH University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Physics and Applied Computer Science AGH, Krakow, Poland

⁴ Faculty of Energy and Fuels, Department of Coal Chemistry and Environmental Sciences, AGH University of Science and Technology, Krakow, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality, meteorological conditions, health resorts

INTRODUCTION

Air quality is one of the major environmental hazards in the world and is the cause of an increased incidence of cardiovascular and respiratory diseases and an increased risk of cancer and premature death (WHO 2006). These factors should be considered in terms of 28 both outdoor air quality (Act of July 28th, 2005) and indoor air quality particularly in resort areas, where the adequate quality of the environment, including climatic conditions and ambient air quality, is crucial in providing comprehensive health care (Sówka et al. 2019). In both in indoor and outdoor air, meteorological conditions play a key role in the distribution of pollutants, including particulate matter.

RESEARCH AREA AND METHODS

Air quality assessment was carried out at Szczawno-Zdroj Health Resort based on measurements made during three measurement campaigns (two winter: 2021, 2022 and one summer: 2021). Particulate matter sampling was carried out according to PN-EN 12341 (PN-EC 12341, 2014-07), while the concentrations of the measured elements were quantified by energy-dispersive X-ray fluorescence (EDXRF). Ion concentrations were determined by isocratic ion chromatography using an ICS-1100 instrument (Thermo Scientific, Sunnyvale, USA). The air quality measurements were complemented by measurements of the air temperature indoors and outdoors. As supplementary data, data from SEM and meteorological data from the nearest foothill stations of the Institute of Meteorology and Water Management (Jelenia Góra and Klodzko) and wind direction data, illustrating the main direction of advection, from the IMWM observatory on Śnieżka were used. Furthermore, the results of the back trajectory simulations for selected days, developed based on the HYSPLIT model in the online version (Stein et al. 2015), were used for the analyses.

PRELIMINARY RESULTS

The study shows that the highest indoor particulate matter concentrations were recorded in winter 2021 for PM_{10} 49.8 µgm⁻³ for $PM_{2.5}$ 42.2 µgm⁻³ and for PM_1 23.1 µgm⁻³, outdoors the maximum value for PM_1 was 39.9 µgm⁻³, and that S, Fe, Zn, Si, and Pb, as well as SO42-, Cl-, NO2-, Ca+, K+ were predominant in the PM_{10} fraction and Cl in the PM_1 fraction in indoor air for the winter measurement campaign. The concentrations of individual dust fractions in the 2 winter seasons in indoor and outdoor air indicated a very strong correlation with each other, indicating the presence of the stack effect during winter and the infiltration of pollutants into the building. The greatest influence on air quality during the winter season was the wind speed (both as a daily average and maximum value), as well as the minimum temperature during the day.

REFERENCES

WHO 2006, Air quality guidelines for particular matter, ozone, nitrogen dioxide, and sulphur dioxide.

Act of 28th July, 2005, on a spa treatment, spas and spa protection areas and spa municipalities. Journal of Laws (2021 item 1301).

Sówka I., Kobus D. Skotak K., Zathey M., Merenda B., Paciorek M. 2019, Assessment of health risk related to air pollution in selected Polish health resorts, Journal of Ecological Engineering, 10, 132-145.

PN-EC 12341, 2014-07, Powietrze atmosferyczne - Standardowa grawimetryczna metoda pomiarowa do określania stężeń masowych frakcji PM10 lub PM2,5 pyłu zawieszonego.

Stein, A. F., Draxler R. R., Rolph G. D., Stunder B. J. B., Cohen M. D., Ngan F. 2015, NOAA's HYSPLIT Atmospheric Transport and Dispersion Modeling System, Bull Am Meteorol Soc, vol. 96, no. 12, pp. 2059–2077.



Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons in particulate matter of a rescue and firefighting unit as a source of health hazard for firefighters

Marzena Rachwał¹, Joanna Rakowska¹

mrachwal@sgsp.edu.pl, jrakowska@sgsp.edu.pl ¹The Main School of Fire Service, Institute of Safety Engineering, 52/54 Słowackiego St., 01-629 Warsaw

KEY WORDS: polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs); particulate matter (PM); occupational exposure

Among the many different chemicals in the air, polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) pose a serious threat to human health. The carcinogenicity of PAHs in humans has been evidenced in cases of colon, skin, lung, bladder and kidney cancer (Hwang et al. 2021). Firefighters are exposed to them both during fire suppression and in fire vehicles and fire stations due to inhalation of the fumes from contaminated clothing and personal protective equipment.

This study aimed to estimate the concentrations of different PM fractions and PAHs air pollution in a fire station unit (FSU) garage as well as to evaluate the associated firefighters' carcinogenic risk. The health risk assessment was performed based on the 15 PAHs listed as priority by the US EPA (Keith 2015). To evaluate the toxicity and assess the risks of a mixture of chemicals, the toxic equivalent (TEQ), the incremental lifetime cancer risk (ILCR) and the non-cancerogenic hazard quotient index (HQ) from PAH inhalation over the period of professional activity were calculated (Zhao et al. 2020).

Air samples were collected for 4 months in a garage of the FSU in a small town, located in an urban–rural area. PM sampling was performed using optical and gravimetric methods, while PAH concentrations were measured using the gas chromatography method with mass spectrometry (GC/MS).

The concentration of PM4 and TSP in the fire station garage was 7 and 9 times higher than outside, respectively. The calculated values of health hazard risks associated with the exposure to PAHs in PM4 and TSP were: TEQ up to 10.36 and 23.33, ILCR up to 3.45 and 4.65 and HQ up to 0.42 and 0.57, respectively. Results indicated that firefighters are a professional group with very high health risk, especially to neoplastic diseases and different kinds of cancers caused by inhalation of toxic PAHs.

Acknowledgments

This research was funded by the Polish Ministry of the Interior and Administration, grant numbers UPB/22/000220, UPB/21/000900 and UPB/21/000970.

REFERENCES

Hwang, J.; Xu, C.; Agnew, R.J.; Clifton, S.; Malone, T.R. 2021, Health Risks of Structural Firefighters from Exposure to Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis, Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health, No. 18, 4209.

Keith, L.H. 2015, The Source of U.S. EPA's Sixteen PAH Priority Pollutants, Polycyclic Aromatic Compounds, No. 35, pp. 147–160.

Zhao, T.; Yang, L.; Huang, Q.; Zhang,W.; Duan, S.; Gao, H.;Wang,W. 2020, PM2.5-Bound Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs) and Nitrated-PAHs (NPAHs) Emitted by Gasoline Vehicles: Characterization and Health Risk Assessment, Science of the Total Environment, No. 727, 138631.



The role of fine particles in urban air pollution

Barbara Błaszczak¹, Krzysztof Klejnowski¹

barbara.blaszczak@ipispan.edu.pl, krzysztof.klejnowski@ipispan.edu.pl

¹Institute of Environmental Engineering of the Polish Academy of Sciences, 34 M. Skłodowska-Curie Str., 41-819 Zabrze,

Poland

KEY WORDS: particulate matter, fine particles, particle number concentration, high pollution periods

Despite extensive activities in the area of reducing emissions related to industrial and household activities, the problem of exceeding the limit values for particulate matter (PM) applies to almost all zones in the country (Błaszczak et al. 2020). The harmfulness of aerosols depends not only on its chemistry but also on the size distribution. In this context, the smallest particles of PM, with a diameter of 2.5 μ m and smaller (PM_{2.5}, PM₁), are particularly dangerous, because they are able to persist in the air for a long time, can penetrate the lower respiratory tract, and constitute a carrier of various potentially toxic substances (Landkocz et al. 2017, Masiol et al. 2017).

This paper presents the results of research conducted at the urban background station in Zabrze, using Fidas[®]200 S optical aerosol spectrometer. Based on the measurement of light scattered at an angle of 90° on individual particles, the device calculates and records continuously the concentrations of PM₁, PM_{2.5}, PM₄, PM₁₀ and TSP as well as the particle number concentration C_n . The study devoted much attention to the analysis of episodes of increased PM concentration, which were identified on the basis of the authors' previous experience (Błaszczak et al. 2020) – as cases with daily PM_{2.5} concentration > 50 µg·m⁻³, lasting for at least 3 consecutive days.

It was found that the average concentration of PM_{2.5} for the annual measurement period (Jun 2022 – May 2023) was 24.19 μ g·m⁻³, which means that the limit value for the average annual concentration (20 μ g·m⁻³) was not met (Directive 2008/50/EC). During the campaign, a total of 42 cases of exceeding the level of 50 μ g·m⁻³ (~12% of the measurement time) were identified. Among them, 7 periods of increased PM concentration were distinguished, the longest of which was in the second half of Nov 2022. Regardless of the averaging period, PM_{2.5} – especially PM₁ – constituted the dominant part of the total suspended particulates (TSP). The shares of these fractions were particularly high in the winter months and in episodes (~83% and ~80%, respectively for PM_{2.5} and PM₁), when the particle number concentration was also very high.

Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the IEE PAS statutory research project no. 1a-128/2021 ("Primary and secondary components of the atmospheric aerosol in the context of the impact on the climate and natural environment of urban and non-urban areas"). The work was also prepared as a part of the research project no. POIR.04.02.00-00-D019/20-00 "ACTRIS – Infrastructure for the study of aerosols, clouds, and trace gases", co-financed by the European Regional Development Fund.

REFERENCES

Błaszczak B., Zioła N., Mathews B., Klejnowski K., Słaby K. 2020. The Role of PM2.5 Chemical Composition and Meteorology during High Pollution Periods at a Suburban Background Station in Southern Poland. Aerosol Air Qual. Res., Vol. 20, pp. 2433-2447

Landkocz Y., Ledoux F., André V., Cazier F., Genevray P., Dewaele D., Martin P.J., Lepers C., Verdin A., Courcot L., Boushina S., Sichel F., Gualtieri M., Shirali P., Courcot D., Billet S. 2017. Fine and ultrafine atmospheric particulate matter at a multiinfluenced urban site: Physicochemical characterization, mutagenicity and cytotoxicity. Environmental Pollution, Vol. 221, pp. 130-140

Masiol M., Hopke P.K., Felton H.D., Frank B.P., Rattigan O.V., Wurth M.J., LaDuke G.H. 2017. Source apportionment of PM2.5 chemically speciated mass and particle number concentrations in New York City. Atmospheric Environment, Vol. 148, pp. 215-229

Directive 2008/50/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 May 2008 on Ambient Air Quality and Cleaner Air for Europe (http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/en/ALL/?uri=CELEX:32008L0050 (26.05.2023))
Differences between variability patterns of pollutants concentrations measured at traffic and urban backgrund stations in Warsaw

Aleksandra Starzomska¹, Joanna Strużewska¹

aleksandra.starzomska@ios.edu.pl, joanna.struzewska@ios.edu.pl ¹Instytut Ochrony Środowiska Państwowy Instytut Badawczy

KEY WORDS: air pollution, traffic emissions, transport sector, air quality monitoring

Air pollution is one of the greatest health and environmental challenges of modern society. In particular, NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 often exceed permissible standards in urban areas. The accumulation of emission sources in Polish cities, including the municipal, transport, industrial and service sectors, results in significantly higher pollutant concentrations compared to rural areas. This is particularly noticeable in the Warsaw agglomeration, where the suburbs of the Polish capital are characterised by high pollutant concentrations, especially in winter. Air quality is also affected by individual heating in this area, while urban heat islands in the city centre can prevent a strong accumulation of pollutants.

Given the large population in the Warsaw conurbation, it is important to assess the impact of the transport sector on mortality and morbidity. Studies suggest that traffic congestion is a significant health risk and that additional urban traffic may increase the risk, depending on the type of roads and other factors.

Presented analyses focuses on the air pollutants variability in Warsaw agglomeration and possible impact of transport sector.

The aim of this study is to compare temporal variability od concentration based on the observation from national air quality monitoring network for the period 2016-2021. The comparison of diurnal, weekly and monthly averages at traffic station and urban background stations let to identify possible contribution from the traffic sector. For NO2 temporal profile is clearly related to traffic intensity, while for PM10 the diurnal variability is weaker and suggest the importance of resuspension. While NO2 and PM10 concentrations are systematically higher at traffic station that at urban background stations, PM2.5 levels are comparable. The results will help to define the emission variability profile for local air quality modelling as well as the expected contribution from non-exhaust traffic emissions.

REFERENCES

Majewski, G. (2005). Zanieczyszczenie powietrza pyłem zawieszonym PM10 na Ursynowie i jego związek z warunkami meteorologicznymi. Warszawa. Przegląd Naukowy. Inżynieria i Kształtowanie Środowiska. s.210-223.

Markowicz K.M., Zawadzka O., Posyniak M., Uscka-Kowalkowska J., 2019, Long-term variability of aerosol optical depth in the Tatra Mountains region of the Central Europe, J. Geophys. Res., 124 (6), 3464-3475.

Smith T.W., C.J. Axon, R.C. Darton, The impact on human health of car-related air pollution in the UK, 1995–2005, Atmospheric Environment, Volume 77, 2013, Pages 260-266, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.atmosenv.2013.05.016.

Zhang K, Batterman S., Air pollution and health risks due to vehicle traffic, Science of The Total Environment, Volumes 450–451, 2013, 307-316, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2013.01.074.



Radon-health hazard gas and tool to evaluate GHG flux

Dagmara Tchorz-Trzeciakiewicz

dagmara.tchorz-trzeciakiewicz@uwr.edu.pl

University of Wrocław, Institute of Geological Sciences, Pl. M. Borna 9, 50-204, Wrocław, Poland

KEY WORDS: radon, GHG, RTM model

Radon is an inert, odourless and tasteless radioactive invisible gas that is a constant component of the air. Its presence in the atmosphere is linked to its concentration in the soil. The concentration of radon in the soil depends on the level of radium, uranium and thorium in the soil or bedrock, which serve as the parent elements of radon. However, the relationship between these parameters is not straightforward due to the influence of air and soil temperature, pressure, humidity, and precipitation on radon movement in the ground and its release into the atmosphere.

Radon poses a health hazard, from a radiation protection perspective. Elevated levels of radon concentration present a health risk for humans. Radon is considered the second leading cause of lung cancer among individuals who smoke cigarettes and the primary cause of lung cancer among non-smokers (Darby et al., 2005; Bochicchio et al., 2013).

Radon gas can be utilized as a tracer to estimate regional greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions using Radon Tracer Method (RTM). If the radon flux from the soil is known, the correlated increase of radon and GHG concentration can be used to estimate the GHG flux. The Radon Tracer Method has been employed for greenhouse and other gas emission and sink estimates by Gaury et al. (1990); Levin et al. (1999); Biraud et al. (2000). In all these studies, the Rn-222 flux from the soil was assumed to be spatially homogeneous with only slight variations on a seasonal timescale. However, recent research has revealed significant spatial variability in radon gas (Szeregavy et al., 2009, Lopez-Coto et al., 2013; Tchorz-Trzeciakiewicz D.E., Rysiukiewicz M., 2021). Therefore, there is a need for improvement and further development of the Radon Tracer Method with a particular emphasis

on spatial variations in radon exhalation from the soil.

REFERENCES

Biraud, S., Ciais, P., Ramonet, M., Simmonds, P. Kazan, V. Monfray, P., O'Doherty, S. Spain, T.G., and Jennings, S.G. 2000. European greenhouse gas emissions estimated from continuous atmospheric measurements and radon 222 at Mace Head, Ireland, J. Geophys. Res. 105(D1), 1351-1366

Bochicchio, F., Antignani, S., Venoso, G., Forastiere, F., 2013. Quantitative evaluation of the lung cancer deaths attributable to residential radon: A simple method and results for all the 21 Italian Regions. Radiat. Meas. 50, 121–126. doi:10.1016/j.radmeas.2012.09.011

Darby, S., Hill, D., Auvinen, A., Barros-Dios, J.M., Baysson, H., Bochicchio, F., Deo, H., Falk, R., Forastiere, F., Hakama, M., Heid, I., Kreienbrock, L., Kreuzer, M., Lagarde, F., Mäkeläinen, I., Muirhead, C., Oberaigner, W., Pershagen, G., Ruano-Ravina, A., Ruosteenoja, E., Rosario, A.S., Tirmarche, M., Tomásek, L., Whitley, E., Wichmann, H.-E., Doll, R., 2005. Radon in homes and risk of lung cancer: collaborative analysis of individual data from 13 European case-control studies. BMJ 330, 223. doi:10.1136/bmj.38308.477650.63

Gaudry, A., Polian, G., Ardouin, B., and Lambert, G.: Radon-calibrated emissions of CO2 from South Africa, Tellus 42B, 9-19, 1990.

Levin, I., Glatzel-Mattheier, H., Marik, T., Cuntz, M., Schmidt, M., and Worthy, D. E. 1999. Verification of German methane emission inventories and their recent changes based on atmospheric observations, J. Geophys. Res., 104, D3, 3447 – 3456

López-Coto, J., Mas, J. L., and Bolivar, J. P.: A 40- year retrospective European radon flux inventory including climatological variability, Atmos. Environ., 73, 22–33, doi.org/10.1016/j.atmosenv.2013.02.043, 2013.

Szegvary, T., Conen, F., and Ciais, P.: European 222Rn inventory for applied atmospheric studies, Atmos. Environ., 43, 1536–1539, doi.org/10.1016/j.atmosenv.2008.11.025, 2009.

Tchorz-Trzeciakiewicz, D.E., Rysiukiewicz, M., 2021. Ambient gamma dose rate as an indicator of geogenic radon potential. Sci. Total Environ. 142771.

The cleaning effect of rainfall – Results of long term measurements of wet deposition in polluted urban environment

Barbara Błaszczak¹, Krzysztof Klejnowski¹, Krzysztof Słaby¹, Barbara Mathews¹

barbara.blaszczak@ipispan.edu.pl, krzysztof.klejnowski@ipispan.edu.pl, krzysztof.slaby@ipispan.edu.pl, barbara.mathews@ipispan.edu.pl

¹Institute of Environmental Engineering of the Polish Academy of Sciences, 34 M. Skłodowska-Curie Str., 41-819 Zabrze, Poland

KEY WORDS: particulate matter, atmospheric precipitation, wet deposition, chemical composition

Precipitation is an important process as a result of which many air pollutants are removed from the atmosphere and deposited onto the ground surface (Michalski, Pecyna-Utylska 2022). Among the many different substances identified in rainwater, sulphates, nitrates and other acidic compounds can have a detrimental effect on vegetation, and can also accelerate the process of soil acidification or corrosion of building structures (Meng et al. 2019). On the other hand, water soluble organic carbon (WSOC) participates in the formation of cloud condensation nuclei and may play an important role in the formation of secondary organic aerosol (SOA) (Aswini et al. 2019).

Systematic studies of wet deposition at the urban background site in Zabrze were initiated in Feb 2020 and continued in subsequent years. The aim of the research was to determine the wet loading of particulate pollutants and, additionally, to analyze the chemical composition of rainwater and suspension collected on the filter – in terms of ionic compounds and carbonaceous matter.

It was found that the sum of atmospheric precipitation clearly decreased in subsequent years, remaining at the following levels: 587.17 nm (2022), 739.23 mm (2021) and 805.71 nm (Feb-Dec 2020). Even greater differences were observed in the wet deposition of dust (D_w), which was 9.87, 24.67 and 33.11 kg·ha⁻¹, respectively. In general, seasonal variability of Dw shows an opposite tendency compared to the PM concentrations, with higher values in the summer months (June-August) and lower values in the autumn-winter period (October-December). However, it was also stated that there is no strong and clear relationship between the sum of precipitation and PM concentration. This allows to conclude that there are other factors – apart from the intensity of precipitation – that determine the stream of wet deposition and the most important include atmospheric transformation processes and variable activity of local emission sources.

Acknowledgments

This work was supported by the IEE PAS statutory research project no. 1a-128/2021 ("Primary and secondary components of the atmospheric aerosol in the context of the impact on the climate and natural environment of urban and non-urban areas").

REFERENCES

Michalski R., Pecyna-Utylska P. 2022. Chemical characterization of bulk depositions in two cities of Upper Silesia (Zabrze, Bytom), Poland. Case study. Arch. Environ. Prot., Vol. 48, No. 2, pp. 106-116

Meng Y., Zhao Y., Li R., Li J., Cui L., Kong L., Fu H. 2019. Characterization of inorganic ions in Rainwater in the megacity of Shanghai: Spatiotemporal variations and source apportionment. Atmos Res, Vol. 222, pp. 12-24

Aswini A.R., Hegde P., Nair P.R., Aryasree S. 2019. Seasonal changes in carbonaceous aerosols over a tropical coastal location in response to meteorological processes. Sci Total Environ, Vol. 656, pp. 1261-1279

Improvement of PM_{2.5} concentration modelling using the Random Forest algorithm

Tetiana Vovk¹, Małgorzata Werner¹, Maciej Kryza¹

334775@uwr.edu.pl, malgorzata.werner@uwr.edu.pl, maciej.kryza@uwr.edu.pl ¹Uniwersytet Wrocławski, Instytut Geografii i Rozwoju Regionalnego, Zakład Klimatologii i Ochrony Atmosfery, ul. Kosiby 8, 51-621 Wrocław, Polska

KEY WORDS: air pollution modelling, PM2.5 prediction models, machine learning for air quality

The recorded concentrations of PM2.5 in Poland are among the highest in the EU countries (EEA 2020). The recommended annual concentration by WHO of 5 μ g*m⁻³ for PM2.5 in 2021 was consistently exceeded throughout the country, causing negative health effects and ongoing concerns for residents (GIOŚ 2021; WHO 2021).

In this study, the Random Forest algorithm in R language was used to improve modelling results of PM2.5 concentrations by the EMEP4PL chemical transport model for monitoring stations in Poland. Data from 2016-2019 for 71 stations were used to train the models. Three approaches were tested, differing in terms of the selected explanatory variables or the number of models used. Each approach underwent 5-fold cross-validation. In the first case, the EMEP4PL model results, along with variables like month, station ID, season, and year, were used as predictors. The second approach added meteorological predictors from the WRF model for the current and previous two days. The third approach utilized all previous predictors and developed 12 separate models for each month. The errors of all models were summarized using the coefficient of determination (R²), root mean square error (RMSE), and normalized mean bias (NMB). Variable importance rankings were also obtained for each case.

Results indicated the significance of meteorological predictors related to air temperature, wind speed, atmospheric pressure, and planetary boundary layer height. All three RF outperformed the EMEP4PL model's prediction alone. When considering both EMEP4PL and meteorology, R² exceeded 0.7, and when modelling was divided into individual months, it reached 0.75 *(Fig. 1)*. R² values for individual stations in the second and third approaches often exceeded 0.5 and occasionally surpassed 0.8. An important result is the elimination of the underestimation of observed concentrations, which was a limitation of EMEP4PL due to e.g., uncertainties in emission estimates.





REFERENCES

GIOŚ 2021, Ocena jakości powietrza w strefach w Polsce za rok 2021 EEA 2020, Air Quality in Europe - 2020 Report WHO 2021, WHO Global Air Quality Guidelin



TROPOMI NO₂ tropospheric column assimilation – a hybrid ensemble-variational approach (4DVar)

Marcin Kawka, Karol Przeździecki, Joanna Strużewska, Wojciech Bagiński, Jacek Kamiński

marcin.kawka@ios.edu.pl Institute of Environmental Protection - National Research Institute

INTRODUCTION

TROPOMI aboard Sentinel-5P is the first representative of the new generation of satellites capable of delivering high resolution (3.5x7.0km) tropospheric NO2 column concentration with a revisit time of one day. Regional CTM models suffer from uncertainty and bias originating from the emission data and errors in meteorological field reproduction.

The idea of data assimilation is to use the observed (satellite-borne) observation to improve the modelling results. There are two main approaches to data assimilation: sequential and variational. In the sequential approach model, trajectories (state variables) are shifted towards the observed ones. An ensemble of models is run to avoid shifting into non-physical values, and the new state variables are chosen among the ensemble results. In contrast, in the variational approach, optimisation is run (minimisation) on a cost function, which describes the bias between the model results and the observation. Based on this minimisation, new model parameters are chosen. This process can occur on a single concentration field (3DVar) or within a temporal assimilation window (4DVar). Both cases require the calculation of gradient (adjoint function), which is not straightforward for large spatiotemporal scale models.

DATA AND METHODS

Our work aimed to apply a hybrid approach – 4DEnVar (Yarce et al., 2021). We run an ensemble of 14 parallel GEM-AQ model runs, differentiating emission data. Within a 48h assimilation window, we minimise the difference between the TROPOMI tropospheric column and the one resulting from the model. We chose new emission data based on this minimisation and used it for subsequent simulation days.

We used the GEM-AQ model (Kaminski et al., 2008) – an online chemical transport model (CTM) with a 10 km resolution and CAMS regional domain. Calculations cover the period from the 2nd to the 22nd of April 2020. Thus, ten subsequent assimilation windows were used (each lasting 48 hours).

RESULTS

We present a spatial comparison with reference simulation (run without assimilation) and a comparison with surface NO2 concentration observation time series for selected locations. Both surface and satellite-borne observation revealed an underestimation of NO2 concentration. The 4DEnVar assimilation scheme tried to compensate for the underestimation and partially succeeded.

CONCLUSIONS

Within 20 days of simulation, we have shown that TROPOMI's tropospheric vertical column density can serve as an independent source of observations for NO2 concentration on a regional scale. However, the 4DEnVar assimilation process has introduced some artefacts. Thus, the algorithm should be implemented robustly. The underestimated concentration is likely due to underestimated emissions in the CAMS emission inventory. The 4DEnVar was revealed to be capable of correcting the concentration magnitude, but it does not affect the dynamics, which are driven by the meteorological component of the modelling system.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work was part of CAMS2_40 Service (WP4042)

REFERENCES

Kaminski, J. W., et al. "GEM-AQ, an on-line global multiscale chemical weather modelling system: model description and evaluation of gas phase chemistry processes." Atmospheric chemistry and physics 8.12 (2008): 3255-3281.

Yarce Botero, Andrés, et al. "Estimating NOx LOTOS-EUROS CTM Emission Parameters over the Northwest of South America through 4DEnVar TROPOMI NO2 Assimilation." *Atmosphere* 12.12 (2021): 1633.



77

Social factor in assessing the olfactory impact of odouremitting facilities

Urszula Miller¹, Marcin Pawnuk¹, Izabela Sówka¹

urszula.miller@pwr.edu.pl, marcin.pawnuk@pwr.edu.pl, izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl ¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: odour nuisance, field research, social studies

INTRODUCTION

The odour impact of odour-emitting objects can affect the perception of odour nuisance by nearby residents. The perception of an odour nuisance can be influenced by many factors, such as individual factors (health condition, age, life activity), as well as the type of odour and its intensity, time of day, and frequency of odour situations/episodes, or characteristics of the area where the odour occurs and odour dispersion processes in air. The range and degree of odour impact can be determined by assessing the intensity and frequency of occurrence of identified odours outside the facility boundaries or by comparing the odour concentration at the receptor points with the established limit values. Research to determine the olfactory impact of odour-emitting objects can be divided into emission and immission measurements.

SELECTED ODOUR IMPACT ASSESSMENT METHODS

Emission measurements include classical analytical methods (GC-MS) and sensory methods (dynamic olfactometry) to determine the concentration of individual odorants in the emitted gases and the odour concentration, respectively. Based on the calculated value of pollutant emissions and analyses using mathematical modelling by obtaining the odour concentrations at the receptor points, it is possible to determine the extent of the facility's impact and to confirm compliance with the standards. Determining the odour impact is also possible by performing immission measurements, for example, by measuring the concentration of selected odour compounds at receptor points using analytical, sensor or field research methods (field measurements, field olfactometry and sociological research, in which questionnaires and odour observation logs are used). It should be noted that the latter are particularly important in determining the actual degree of odour nuisance in a given area.

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE SOCIAL FACTOR IN EVALUATING AND SELECTING A METHOD TO REDUCE ODOUR IMPACTS

In the case of repeated complaints from residents that odorous air quality causes discomfort and is a nuisance, measures aimed at social dialogue are very important. Communication with residents in such cases should be supported by expert knowledge and the results of scientific research, both in the context of identifying and characterising odour emission sources, as well as methods minimising odour nuisance. Involving the local community in monitoring the odour situation and providing information in this regard (e.g., through surveys, mobile applications, observation logs) and communicating the results obtained (e.g., during working group meetings or open meetings) allows one to highlight the existing problem. Therefore, eco-mediations are an important element in socially difficult cases and allow the solution of ecological problems and the making of compromises with respect to all aspects of sustainable development: social, economic, and environmental protection.

Confronting the results of the emission, field and sociological research with the complaints of the residents allows us to show and understand the fullness of the issue. It is important that sociological and field research be preceded by the identification of odour sources based primarily on a thorough field reconnaissance. The research carried out during the reconnaissance makes it possible to specify the dominant types of odour and include them both in the odour observation logs and in field research, and to design a measurement grid. Such a comprehensive approach, combined with statistical and geospatial analyses, allows overlapping and comparing the results of mathematical modelling of odour dispersion (based on emission measurements), e.g., with the results of field research, field olfactometry, and sociological research. Involving the local community in filling out the diaries and participating in meetings of the parties to the conflict allows to verify the real social mood and the scale of the problem. The results of the analyses should be made available to the community along with an indication of specific actions to reduce the odour impact (such as plant operation outside evenings and weekends or odour masking agents during meteorological conditions conducive to the dispersion of odours toward residential buildings).

79

REFERENCES

Ranzato L., Barausse A., Mantovani A., Pittarello A., Benzo M., Palmeri L., 2012, A comparison of methods for the assessment of odor impacts on air quality: Field inspection (VDI 3940) and the air dispersion model CALPUFF, Atmospheric Environment, Vol. 61, pp. 570-579

Sówka I., 2011, Metody identyfikacji odorotwórczych gazów emitowanych z obiektów przemysłowych, Oficyna Wydawnicza Politechniki Wrocławskiej, Wroclaw

Sówka I., Miller U., 2020, Metody sensoryczne w ocenie oddziaływania zapachowego. Wodociągi, Kanalizacja. Vol. 4, pp. 22-23.



The influence of air quality in the heating season on health residents

Monika Wierzbińska¹

mwierzbinska@ath.bielsko.pl ¹Institute of Environmental Protection and Engineering, University of Bielsko-Biala

KEY WORDS: air quality, low-stack emission, respiratory and cardiovascular diseases

Poland has the most polluted air among all European Union member states. The reason is, in particular, low-stack emission, i.e. emission of pollutants from the combustion of solid fuels in the municipal and residential sector, mainly in small home hearths, local central heating boiler rooms, craft plants where solid fuels are burned, especially hard coal, but also wood, peat, and sometimes even waste. The formation of low emission is a complicated process and depends on many factors, such as the type, quantity and quality of the fuel burned, the method and technology of its combustion, many meteorological factors, topography and development, the height and location of emission sources.

The paper attempts to analyze the relationship between the quality of atmospheric air and the number of people who reported to the local clinic diagnosed with respiratory and cardiovascular diseases. The analysis was performed on the example of the city of Żory in southern Poland. Żory is located in the Silesian Voivodeship, and thus the city is located in one of the most polluted voivodeships in Poland. According to the World Health Organization report from 2016, Żory was ranked 49th on the list of the most polluted cities in the European Union.

Air pollution concentrations PM 2.5; PM10; SO2 for the heating seasons was obtained from the database of the monitoring station belonging to the Chief Inspectorate of Environmental Protection. Information on the number of people who consulted a doctor and who were diagnosed with a respiratory or cardiovascular disease was obtained from the local health center.

The analysis was performed for 54 days of the heating season. The graphs show the number of patients who were diagnosed with respiratory and cardiovascular diseases on specific days, and the concentrations of pollutants such as: particulate matter PM2.5 and PM10 and SO2 in the air. In the analyzed period, there were 35 days with exceeding the limit value of PM10 suspended particulate matter in the air, which is 64.8% of the observation time. In the period from 01/11/2021 to 15/01/2022, 1,236 people came to a doctor with respiratory diseases, and 1,037 people with cardiovascular diseases. In the study period, no short-term correlations were observed between air quality in the heating season and the number of people diagnosed with respiratory and cardiovascular diseases.

REFERENCES

Całka M., Pawlica P.J. 2020, Konsekwencje zdrowotne zanieczyszczenia powietrza, Journal of Life and Medical Sciences, Nauki Przyrodnicze i Medyczne, Nr 1/27/2020, pp. 13-21

Głuszek J., Kosicka T. 2019, Wpływ smogu (zanieczyszczonego powietrza) na choroby układu sercowo-naczyniowego, Choroby Serca i Naczyń, Vol. 16, No. 3, pp. 201–206 DOI: 10.5603/ChSiN.2019.0030

Góra D. 2020, Stan zanieczyszczenia powietrza w 2017 roku w województwie śląskim oraz jego wpływ na zdrowie człowieka, Annales Universitatis Paedagogicae Cracoviensis Studia Geographica No. 15 DOI 10.24917/20845456.15.10

Harmata W., Kamionek D. 2021, Ochrona dróg oddechowych — nowe wyzwania, Biuletyn WAT Vol. LXX, No. 1

Jędrak J., Konduracka E., Badyda A.J., Dąbrowiecki P. 2017, Wpływ zanieczyszczeń powietrza na zdrowie

Karaczun Z.M., Michalak W. 2019, Wpływ zmiany klimatu i zanieczyszczenia powietrza na zdrowie mieszkańców Warszawy. https://meinwarschau.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/raport-klimatyczny-warszawa-koalicja-klimatyczna.pdf

Krzyżanowski M. 2016, Wpływ zanieczyszczenia powietrza pyłami na układ krążenia i oddychania. Lek Wojskowy, No. 1, pp. 17-22. https://issuu.com/medycynapraktyczna/docs/__lw_2016_01

Mielecka-Kubień Z., Wójcik A. 2020, Zanieczyszczenie powietrza a stan zdrowia mieszkańców dużych miast województwa śląskiego, Wiadomości Statystyczne. Statystyka w praktyce. The Polish Statistician, Vol. 65, No. 6, pp. 39–51 DOI: 10.5604/01.3001.0014.2344

Pałasz J.W. 2016, Niska emisja ze spalania węgla I metody jej ograniczania, Wydawnictwp Politechniki Śląskiej, Gliwice Strzała K., Strzała-Osuch K., Osuch D. 2019, Śmiertelność z powodu chorób układu krążenia w regionach Polski, Oblicza dobrobytu: wybrane zagadnienia / Strzała Krystyna (eds.), vol. 4, Wydawnictwo Uniwersytetu Gdańskiego, pp. 179-190



Assessment of the diversity of exposure to PM_{2.5} concentrations as a result of the use of various protective face masks during the COVID-19 pandemic

Robert Oleniacz

oleniacz@agh.edu.pl

AGH University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Geo-data Science, Geodesy and Environmental Engineering, Department of Environmental Management and Protection, Mickiewicza 30 Av., 30-059 Krakow, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality, COVID-19, face masks, filtration efficiency, PM2.5 concentration reduction

According to estimates by Msemburi at al. (2023), the COVID-19 infectious disease caused by the new type of coronavirus SARS-CoV-2 caused a significant global excess mortality of about 15 million deaths between 2020 and 2021 alone, including 4.5 million in 2020 and 10.5 million in 2021. During the period of highest risk of illness associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, most countries around the world were required to use face masks or other personal protective equipment in certain situations (Torres-Agullo 2021). This resulted in massive consumption of protective masks, reaching about 129 billion per month (Prata et al. 2020), and forced a significant increase in their production compared to before the pandemic (Aragaw 2020). In order to reduce the inhalation of viral aerosol less than 5 µm capable of penetrating the lower respiratory tract, the use of high-efficiency air-filtering face masks, such as N95 respirators, was particularly recommended (Xu et al. 2020), although non-medical face masks were also considered an effective way to reduce the transmission of respiratory viruses in the community, especially when their wearing was required or common (Howard et al. 2021).

During the COVID-19 pandemic, a great many types of protective face masks were used, such as disposable medical or nonmedical masks, including surgical masks and N95 filtering respirators containing a layer of charged/electrostatic fabric (known as an electret filter, such as charged meltblown polypropylene) significantly improving particle filtration (O'Dowd et al. 2020, Kwong et al. 2021, Xu et al. 2020, Zhang et al. 2020). Much more expensive certified dust or anti-smog respirators were also used, as well as non-certified single- or multi-layer protective masks made from a variety of available materials, including homemade face masks, whose main criteria for assessing suitability by users were usually aesthetics of manufacture, ease of breathing or washability and reusability (Bagheri et al. 2021, Kwong et al. 2021, Pei et al. 2020). In addition to the primary task of reducing the transmission rate of SARS-CoV-2, wearing face masks also made it possible to capture to some extent particulate matter (PM) from the air drawn through the mask, thus reducing inhalation of PM_{2.5}, among other particles (Marsal et al. 2023, Pacitto et al. 2019, Su et al. 2022, Xu et al. 2020, Zhang et al. 2018). Their effectiveness in this regard depends mainly on the type and properties of the materials used (including the thickness and microstructure of the filter layer), the size of the filtered particles, the air intake velocity and humidity, but also on the way the mask is worn, the degree of wear, the method of sterilization and the number of treatment or washing cycles for reuse (Bagheri et al. 2021, Hao et al. 2021, Kwong et al. 2021, Liu et al. 2020, Xu et al. 2020).

The purpose of this study was to present the results of comprehensive measurements of the efficiency of trapping the PM_{2.5} fraction (particles with aerodynamic diameter less than 2.5 µm) by filter materials used in selected face masks (including commercial masks and masks specially made during the COVID-19 pandemic), as well as to estimate the potential reduction of exposure to PM_{2.5} particles by people wearing these masks, taking into account typical PM_{2.5} air concentrations in Poland. The filtration efficiency was determined as a function of the mass of retained and unretained particles on a given filter material using the gravimetric method and a measurement set based on a low-flow dust collector (2.3 m³/h flow rate) with a PM_{2.5} impactor head operating in accordance with EN 12341:2014. Tested filter materials were cut into disks of about 47 mm diameter (at least 4 samples), dried at about 60°C, cooled in a desiccator, weighed and placed in the dust collector in front of a glass microfiber final filter (Whatman[®] GF/A) of known initial mass. The source of PM_{2.5} was indoor air in a well-ventilated laboratory room with a volume of about 64 m³, where the measurement set was run for at least 48 hours. The results obtained were related to previous preliminary studies (conducted even before the COVID-19 pandemic) using a similar methodology, but based on exposure of a dust collector in outdoor air on the roof of a four-story building (Bieniaszewski et al. 2018, 2020), as well as the results of studies conducted with other methods adapted to the needs of a given research program (using particle size analyzers), based on air with real or artificial dust (poly- or monodisperse aerosols).

The conducted tests confirmed (already known to some extent from the literature) the large variation in the effectiveness of some of the tested filter materials in terms of their ability to retain PM_{2.5} particulate matter, depending on the type and number of filter layers and their grammage. These efficiencies for multilayer materials used in filters and respirators of the FFP3, FFP2 and FFP1 filter classes mostly occurred at relatively high levels (on the order of 95-99 %, 85-99 % and 82-98 %, respectively), although for some filters and respirators of the FFP2 filter class declared by the manufacturer, the average efficiency for PM2.5 obtained by the gravimetric method fell below 85 % and even below 70 %. Of the protective masks usually classified as FFP2 class, the relatively inexpensive disposable half-mask KN-95 respirator was particularly popular during the COVID-19 pandemic. However, not all masks of this type available on the Polish market contained a double layer of Meltblown filter (despite such a declaration in the product description). This caused their average effectiveness to decrease from about 90 % (masks with a double Meltblown filter) to about 30-60 % (masks from different suppliers with a single Meltblown filter of various thicknesses). For more than 10 types of medical (including surgical) and non-medical disposable face masks with Meltblown filters tested, as well as reusable double-layer cotton masks with a possible additional replaceable Meltblown filter, their filtration efficiencies for PM_{2.5} ranged from about 40 % to 85 %. The least effective (efficiencies of about 10-40 %) were protective single-, double- or triple-layer masks (of different weights) made of non-woven Wigofil (spunbond type), polyamide fabric, polyester fabric or microfiber (fiber Dryarn[®]). Assuming an average concentration of PM_{2.5} in inhaled air of 20 μg/m³ (a value close to the annual average in Poland for 2021), it can be concluded that face masks put on and worn in a way that guaranteed 100 % tightness during inhalation usually guaranteed a reduction of PM_{2.5} concentration in inhaled air to approx. 0.4-6 μ g/m³ for filters and respirators with a declared filtration class of FFP3, FFP2 or FFP1, 3-12 µg/m³ for medical or non-medical masks with a Meltblown filter and at least two-layer cotton masks, and 12-18 μ g/m³ for the least effective protective masks.

Acknowledgments

The work was carried out as part of research associated with the Ministry of Science and Higher Education subsidy to maintain scientific potential (Contract no. 16.16.150.545).

REFERENCES

Aragaw T.A. 2020, Surgical face masks as a potential source for microplastic pollution in the COVID-19 scenario, Marine Pollution Bulletin, Vol. 159, 111517

Bagheri M.H. et al. 2021, Filtration efficiency, breathability, and reusability of improvised materials for face masks, Aerosol Science and Technology, Vol. 55, No. 7, pp. 817-827

Bieniaszewski K., Kawa W., Słowik J., Oleniacz R. 2018, Efficiency of selected anti-dust face masks used in Poland - intercomparison tests. In: Proceedings of Mezhdunarodnyy forum - konkurs molodykh uchenykh, Problemy nedropol'zovaniya Sergeyev I.B., Sin'kov L.S., Sishchuk Yu.M., (eds.), Sankt-Peterburgskiy Gornyy Universitet, Sankt-Peterburg, pp. 42-44

Bieniaszewski K., Kawa W., Słowik J., Oleniacz R. 2020, Intercomparison study for capability of PM10 and PM2.5 capture by filter materials used in selected face masks, In: Knowledge, Technology and Society Monograph: AGH ISC 2018, Styszko K., Bogacz P. (eds.), AGH University of Science and Technology Press, Krakow, pp. 25-33

Hao W., Xu G., Wang Y. 2021, Factors influencing the filtration performance of homemade face masks, Journal of Occupational and Environmental Hygiene, Vol. 18, No. 3, pp. 128-138.

Howard J. et al. 2021, An evidence review of face masks against COVID-19, Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, Vol. 118, No. 4, e2014564118.

Kwong L.H., Wilson R., Kumar S., Crider Y.S., Reyes Sanchez Y., Rempel D., Pillarisetti A. 2021, Review of the breathability and filtration efficiency of common household materials for face masks, ACS Nano, Vol. 15, No. 4, pp. 5904-5924

Liu C., Dai Z., He B., Ke Q.F. 2020, The effect of temperature and humidity on the filtration performance of electret melt-blown nonwovens, Materials, Vol. 13, No. 21, 4774

Marsal A. et al. 2023, Prenatal exposure to PM_{2.5} oxidative potential and lung function in infants and preschool-age children: A prospective study, Environmental Health Perspectives, Vol. 131, No. 1, 017004

Msemburi W., Karlinsky A., Knutson V., Aleshin-Guendel S., Chatterji S., Wakefield J. 2023, The WHO estimates of excess mortality associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, Nature, Vol. 613, pp. 130-137

O'Dowd K. et al. 2020, Face masks and respirators in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic: A review of current materials, advances and future perspectives, Materials, Vol. 13, No. 15, 3363

Pacitto A. et al. 2019, Effectiveness of commercial face masks to reduce personal PM exposure, Science of the Total Environment, Vol. 650, No. 1, pp. 1582-1590

Pei C., Ou Q., Kim S.C., Chen S.C., Pui D.Y. 2020, Alternative face masks made of common materials for general public: fractional filtration efficiency and breathability perspective, Aerosol and Air Quality Research, Vol. 20, No. 12, pp. 2581-2591

Prata J.C., Silva A.L., Walker T.R., Duarte A.C., Rocha-Santos T. 2020, COVID-19 pandemic repercussions on the use and management of plastics, Environmental Science & Technology, Vol. 54, No. 13, pp. 7760-7765

Su W.C., Lee J., Xi J., Zhang K. 2022, Investigation of mask efficiency for loose-fitting masks against ultrafine particles and effect on airway deposition efficiency, Aerosol and Air Quality Research, Vol. 22, No. 1, 210228

Torres-Agullo A., Karanasiou A., Moreno T., Lacorte S. 2021, Overview on the occurrence of microplastics in air and implications from the use of face masks during the COVID-19 pandemic, Science of the Total Environment, Vol. 800, 149555

Xu J. et al. 2020, Air-filtering masks for respiratory protection from PM_{2.5} and pandemic pathogens, One Earth, Vol. 3, No. 5, 574-589

Zhang H., Liu J., Zhang X., Huang C., Jin X., 2018, Design of electret polypropylene melt blown air filtration material containing nucleating agent for effective PM2.5 capture, RSC Advances, Vol. 8, No. 15, pp. 7932-7941

Zhang J., Chen G., Bhat G.S., Azari H., Pen H. 2020, Electret characteristics of melt-blown polylactic acid fabrics for air filtration application, Journal of Applied Polymer Science, 137(4), 48309



Air quality in seaside resorts

Katarzyna Lisik¹, Robert Cichowicz²

katarzyna.lisik@p.lodz.pl, robert.cichowicz@p.lodz.pl

¹Faculty of Civil Engineering, Architecture and Environmental Engineering, Lodz University of Technology, Al. Politechniki 6, 90-924 Lodz, Poland

²Faculty of Civil Engineering, Architecture and Environmental Engineering, Lodz University of Technology, Al. Politechniki 6, 90-924 Lodz, Poland

KEY WORDS: microclimate, air pollution

ABSTRACT

Many of us are convinced of the beneficial effects of the marine climate on human health. Due to the geographical location, often windy weather, and therefore larger sea waves and salinity, the Polish sea and other Northern Seas produce a greater amount of aquatic particles containing various micro and macro elements beneficial to health, such as iodine, bromine or magnesium. Water particles floating in the air make them extremely beneficial for our body. Many coastal towns, due to their unique microclimate, become health resorts, but in the air, in addition to various beneficial microelements, there may also be various dust and gas pollutants. The air we breathe should not contain impurities above the permissible concentration values, and the oxygen content should be above 19% (this value is the lower limit below which the first symptoms of hypoxia of the body may occur). Air pollution is created by dusty substances, gaseous substances and microorganisms, each of which can have harmful effects on human health. The size of the particles that make up the pollutants is very important. The type of air pollution most harmful to health is particulate matter (PM), especially finer particulate matter that can reach deeper into the lungs, such as PM2.5 (particulate diameter < 2.5 µm). Such small PM particles < 2.5 µm can also diffuse into the bloodstream and travel throughout the body, and even through the blood-brain barrier can enter the brain and further cause inflammatory changes. So you can ask the question whether seaside resorts really have such clean and healthy air? Air pollution issues are a growing public health problem, and mortality from air pollution is expected to double by 2050. For this reason, it was decided to conduct preliminary air quality tests for PM1, PM2.5 and PM10, gaseous SO₂ and H₂S, O₂ levels, as well as taking into account microclimatic parameters such as temperature, relative humidity and wind speed in one of the coastal towns on the Baltic Sea. The results obtained were compared with current standards and the obtained data were compared with scientific data from other cities. The test area included five sampling points located in close proximity to the sea not exceeding a total of 600 m. Measurements were made every day in the afternoon between 15.00-17.00 for one week. The obtained results indicate that the tested air pollution parameters, such as particulate matter (PM), SO₂, H₂S, remain at the correct level not exceeding the permissible standards. The examined parameters of the microclimate: temperature, relative humidity and air velocity did not differ from the correct (recommended) values.

REFERENCES

Fikeraddis M; Endeshaw L. 2020, Influence of Temperature and Relative Humidity on Air Pollution in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. Journal of Environmental Earth Sciences, Volume 02; Issue 02;

Garścia E. 2009, Pogarsza się stan czystości powietrza atmosferycznego. Aura, 2, 9-11;

Gioda A; Ventura L; Lima I; Luna A. 2013, Influence of meteorological parameters on air quality. EGU General Assembly Conference Abstracts, April, Vol. 15, 3256;

Gruzieva O; Xu CJ, Yousefi P; Relton C; Merid SK; Breton CV; et al. 2019, Prenatal Particulate Air Pollution and DNA Methylation in Newborns: An Epigenome-Wide Meta-Analysis. *Environ Health Perspect*. 127(5):57012 10.1289/EHP4522.

Microbiological air quality – the influence of the method on the interpretation of results in the estimation of biological hazards

Wioletta Przystaś¹, Ewa Zabłocka-Godlewska¹

wioletta.przystas@polsl.pl; ewa.zablocka-godlewska@polsl.pl ¹Silesian University of Technology, Faculty of Energy and Environmental Engineering, Department of Air Protection, Konarskiego 22B, 44-100 Gliwice, Poland

KEY WORDS: mesophilic bacteria, mould fungi, sedimentation method, impact method

People spend at least several hours a day in indoor spaces. Microbiological indoor air quality is a crucial factor that impacts their well-being and health. This type of exposure is primarily connected with the inhalation route. The selection of the appropriate method for qualitative and quantitative measurements of bioaerosols is crucial in assessing the biological hazards associated with this type of exposure.

The aim of the study was to compare the results of two bioaerosol measurement methods: sedimentation (using Petri dishes) and impaction (Air Ideal 3P impactor), in order to ascertain which method is more suitable for assessing the biological risk associated with airborne microorganisms (mesophilic bacteria (TSA - Trypticase Soy Agar, 35°C) and mold fungi (Czapek-Dox Agar, 25°C)). The research was conducted in the building of the Center of New Technologies in Gliwice (Southern Poland), including corridors and a lecture hall (spring 2023 during one day). All samples were performed in triplicate.

It was found that the results obtained using the sedimentation method significantly differed from those obtained using the impaction method. In most cases, the number of microorganisms was significantly higher (CFU/m3 of bacteria as well as fungi) when analyzed by the sedimentation method. Additionally, the values of deviations obtained from three repetitions of each analysis were, in most cases, much larger when analyzed using the sedimentation method than by impactor. The use of the impactor allowed for obtaining more reliable and repeatable results, especially in the case of fungi, which were not detected in several corridors when the sedimentation method was used. The exposure time (in the range from 12 to 20 min.) of the Petri dishes was crucial in the case of the sedimentation method as it may lead to the overinterpretation of biological hazards. The changes in the sampling air volume (in the range 100 to 200) in impaction method were a less important factor. Therefore, it can be concluded that the use of the impaction method provides a more reliable picture of the threats caused by airborne mesophilic bacteria and mould fungi in buildings.



Allergenic Potential Of Urban Green Spaces, Case Study From Poznań, Poland (Central Europe)

Ngoc Thi Pham^{1,2}, Łukasz Grewling^{1,2}, Bogdan Jakowiak^{2,3}

ngopha@amu.edu.pl, grewling@amu.edu.pl, bogjack@amu.edu.pl ¹Laboratory of Aerobiology, Faculty of Biology, Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznań, Poland ²Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, Faculty of Biology, Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznań, Poland ²Biodiversity Digitization Laboratory, Faculty of Biology, Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznań, Poland

KEY WORDS: pollen allergy, Poznan city center, urban green spaces

Greenery is a crucial element of the city space, influencing its general appearance, attractiveness and climate. The presence of greenery improves mental and physical health, reduces morbidity of city residents by providing mental relaxation and relieving stress. Urban greenery stimulates physical activity and reduces exposure to noise and excessive temperature (WHO 2017). Poorly planned and managed green spaces can however have a negative health impact. This problem is raised primarily in the context of allergic diseases caused by pollen grains (Carinanos and Casares-Porcel 2011). It is estimated that currently pollen allergy affects about 20-30% of the population, and the number of allergic people is the highest in urban areas (Samoliński et al. 2014). One of the reasons for this phenomenon is the increase in the number of allergenic ornamental plants in cities, and the species homogeneity of green spaces, i.e. preferring only selected plant species, leading to the biodiversity loss (Carinanos and Casares-Porcel 2011). In recent years, a similarly alarming trend in urban greenery management can be noticed in Poznań, e.g. by over-representativeness in the plantings of the London plane tree (Platanus × acerifolia) (Nowak et al. 2012). As a result, green areas, instead of having a health-promoting function, become unpleasant areas for a significant number of inhabitants. Moreover, the introduced ornamental species may contribute to the increase in the prevalence of allergic diseases. The main aim of this study is to assess of the allergenic potential of green urban spaces. Therefore, serves as a premise to test the hypothesis about the significant role of green areas in shaping the prevalence of allergic diseases in the city.

The inventory was carried out in 10 parks and all the streets and alleys of Poznań city center. Approximately 4000 trees were recorded, which belong to 68 species, 45 genera, and 26 plant families. The evaluation of species and genera in the inventory of Poznan city center shows that *Acer* genus (Maple) is the most abundant genus. The second and third common genus is *Tilia* and *Aesculus*. By the data of common species with the allergenicity, 83% of the total trees are allergenic potential with levels 1 to 5. Among that, the presence of species with high allergenic potential includes species of the genus: *Platanus, Betula, Fraxinus, Carpinus, Juniperus, Taxus, Corylus, ...* By the way, we have localized areas with high concentrations of allergenic plants, areas clearly defined in the map. With these preliminary results, warnings can be given to people living around areas where is a high concentration of allergenic trees in flowering seasons.

REFERENCES

WHO 2017. Urban Green Space Interventions and Health. A review of impacts and effectiveness. WHO Regional Office for Europe, Copenhagen, Denmark.

Carinanos and Casars-Porcel 2011. Urban green zones and related pollen allergy: A review. Some guidelines for designing spaces with low allergy impact. Landscape and Urban Planning 101(3): 205-214.

Samoliński i in. 2014. Epidemiologia Chorób Alergicznych w Polsce (ECAP). Alergologia Polska - Polish Journal of Allergology 1(1):10–18.

Nowak i in. 2012. Allergic risk zones of plane tree pollen (Platanus sp.) in Poznan. Postep Derm Alergol XXIX, 3: 156–160



Applicability of DeltaPix InSight software for hazel, alder and birch pollen counting

Szymon Tomczyk¹, Małgorzata Werner¹, Małgorzata Malkiewicz¹

szymon.tomczyk@uwr.edu.pl, małgorzata.werner@uwr.edu.pl, <u>małgorzata.malkiewicz@uwr.edu.pl</u> ¹Faculty of Earth Sciences and Environmental Management, University of Wrocław

KEY WORDS: DeltaPix InShight, pollen, pollen allergy, volumetric method, automatic counting

Nowadays, the issue of pollen allergies is becoming a significant problem. This is related, among other things, to climate change and atmospheric air pollution. Rising air temperatures and the presence of chemical pollutants affect the timing and duration of pollen seasons, increase the number of biological particles in the air, and alter the allergenic properties of pollen. Consequently, the importance of monitoring of bioaerosols in ambient air is increasing (Dbouk T et al., 2022). The volumetric method using a Hirst-type pollen sampler is the most commonly employed technique for airborne pollen monitoring. The analysis of collected slides is a quantitative, visual method, which is done using an optical microscope. However, it is a labourintensive and time-consuming method (Weryszko-Chmielewska, 2007). This study aims to evaluate the applicability of the DeltaPix InSight software for the automatic recognition of pollen grains of three allergenic taxa, i.e. hazel (Corylus sp.), alder (Alnus sp.), and birch (Betula sp.). The software works on the basis of 5 criteria; i.e.: the colour determined by three RGB ranks, the morphology of the objects searched for as a preprocessing step, and thresholds regarding the area, shape and Feret diameter for the areas designated by the software that correspond to the first two criteria. The analysis was conducted for daily data for two weeks during the 2023 season. During the first week (21.02-27.02), the predominant allergenic pollen was alder and hazel, and during the second week (18.04-24.04) - birch. The results of the automatic counting were compared with the results of the manual observation and summarised using the statistics, such as: Probability of detection, Succes Ratio, Bias and Critical Succes Index. The results showed that using the first four criteria provides the best results in pollen quantification. When a threshold related to Feret diameter was included, the software performed significantly worse in counting pollen grains. The results that were the closest to those of manual observation were mainly obtained during the week, when alder and hazel pollen predominated. Then, for the 4 criteria used, the program performed best. The average pollen detection rate for the tested week reached nearly 70% (POB) and also the number of false signals was low and the Succes Ratio reached about 0.65. Much poorer results were obtained in the recognition of birch due to the large number of pollen grains, including those similar to birch (e.g. oak), as well as contamination on the preparation (plant fragments), resulting in numerous false signals. Using 4 criteria also achieved the best result, the detection of birch pollen was on average 50%. However, Bias was very high and Succes Ratio reached about 0.05. The verification allowed to identify the main advantages and disadvantages of the software, and to determine when the software could be helpful in counting airborne pollen grains.

REFERENCES

Dbouk T. et al, 2022, Risk assessment of pollen allergy in urban environments, Scientific Reports, 12(1), p. 12. Elżbieta Weryszko-Chmielewska (ed.), 2007, Aerobiologia, Uniwersytet Przyrodniczy w Lublinie, p. 152



Birch pollen allergenicity in Poznań city area

Julia Gwiazdowska¹, Łukasz Grewling¹

julgwi@st.amu.edu.pl, grewling@amu.edu.pl ¹Adam Mickiewicz University Poznań, Faculty of Biology, Aerobiology Laboratory, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6 61-614 Poznań, Poland

INTRODUCTION

Birch pollen (Betula pendula) is responsible for inhalant allergy in about 20% of the human population in Europe, causing symptoms such as allergic rhinitis (AR) accompanied by asthma symptoms and oral allergy symptoms. Most people are sensitive to the main birch allergen, Bet v1. The concentration of this protein in pollen grains may change, probably due to the influence of different factors, including environmental factors and pollutants. The main objective of the research was to test the hypothesis about the influence of air pollutants, such as PM2.5 and PM10 dusts, temperature and humidity, on the amount of Bet v 1.

METHODS

Pollen grains collected in 2020 from the Betula pendula Roth birch population in Poznań and its vicinity, from 37 sites, were divided into the following categories: urban, suburban and semi-natural.

Bet v 1 was quantified using an enzyme immunoassay and pollen grains were counted using a hemocytometer. Bet v 1 content in pollen grains was expressed in pg Bet v 1/zp. The significance of differences in Bet v 1 content between populations was determined using the ANOVA method, while the impact of environmental factors (air temperature and humidity, PM2.5 and PM10 concentrations) on the Bet v 1 value was determined using correlation analysis.

RESULTS

Bet v 1 content in birch pollen grains ranged from 0.23 to 6.36 pg Bet v 1/zp.

The highest average level of Bet v 1 was observed in urban facilities, while the lowest in semi-natural areas (1.77 pg Bet v 1/zp). However, these differences were not statistically significant. A statistically significant relationship was observed between the amount of Bet v 1 in urban areas and the concentration of PM2.5 and PM10. In the case of the influence of temperature and humidity, no significant effect on the size of Bet v 1 was found.

The studies have shown that the allergenicity of birch pollen grains is clearly spatially differentiated and there is a gradient between urban and semi-natural areas, which are caused by stress factors such as dust pollution. To test this hypothesis, further analyzes using local habitat data are necessary to determine as accurately as possible the role of stress factors in the amount of Bet v 1 in birch pollen grains.



Pollen seasons of selected Cupressales species with relation to flowering phenology in Poznań during 2023

Oliwia Wieczorek¹, Agata Szymańska¹, Łukasz Grewling¹

oliwie5@at.amu.edu.pl, agatusia@amu.edu.pl, grewling@amu.edu.pl ¹Laboratory of Aerobiology, Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, Faculty of Biology, Adam Mickiewicz University, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań, Poland

KEY WORDS: pollen grains, allergens, Thuja sp., pollen calendar, ornamental species

Pollen grains released by species of the order Cupressales are a significant cause of seasonal allergies (D'Amato et al. 2007). A dramatic increase in the concentration of Cupressales pollen grains has been observed in Poznań (Western Poland) in recent years. Hypothetically, the numerous plantings of Cupressales trees in the city are responsible for this phenomenon. In the Cupressales order morphological features of the pollen grains belonging to different genera, e.g. *Taxus, Juniperus* and *Thuja*, are not distinct enough to allow determination by light microscopy. Therefore, the contributions of pollen released by specific genus to the total airborne pollen are unknown.

The aim of the study was to determine the flowering phenology and pollen seasons of six species from Cupressales order (*Taxus baccata, Thuja occidentalis, Thuja pilcata, Chamaecyparis lawsoniana, Juniperus sabina* and *Juniperus communis*) for Poznań, Poland in 2023. Pollination periods were estimated by phenological observations and the airborne pollen concentrations were obtained using a Hirst-type volumetric trap located at the AMU Morasko Campus in Poznań (18m a.g.l.).

The first pollen grains of Cupressales were recorded in the air already in the middle of January. The highest daily pollen concentration (308 pollen/m³/day) was observed on 23rd of March. Cupressales pollen season has several additional smaller peaks, i.e. on 14th of March (298 pollen/m³/day), 19th of March (210 pollen/m³/day) and 10th April (227 pollen/m³/day). *T. baccata* began to flower the earliest (between 16th of January and 27th of March), followed by *T. occidentalis* and *T. pilcata* (between 12th and 28th of March), then *J.sabina* (between 1st and 20th of April), *Ch. lawsoniana* (between 14th and 30th of April) and finally *J. communis* (between 26th of April and 11th of May). The highest increase in pollen concentration was observed between 12-25th of March which corresponds to the flowering of *T. baccata, T. occidentalis* and T. *pilcata*.

Based on flowering observations and airborne pollen data it may be concluded that the species contributed the most to total pollen level are *T. baccata, T. occidentalis,* and *T. pilcata*. Other species, e.g. *J. communis* has lower impact on Cupressales pollen load, although due to late flowering time, it markedly prolongs Cupressales pollen season. Likely, plantings of ornamental trees, such as *Thuja* sp., could be linked with increased levels of in airborne pollen in Poznań.

REFERENCES

D'Amato G., Cecchi L., Bonini S., Nunes C., Annesi-Maesano I., Behrendt H., Liccardi G., Popov T., van Cauwenberge P.. 2007. Allergenic pollen and pollen allergy in Europe. Allergy 62: 976-990



Optimizing the ozonation process under different ventilation parameters for safe indoor bioaerosol removal

Walter Mucha¹, Ewa Zabłocka-Godlewska¹, Jakub Baran

walter.mucha@polsl.pl; ewa.zablocka-godlewska@polsl.pl ¹Silesian University of Technology, Faculty of Energy and Environmental Engineering, Department of Air Protection, Konarskiego 22B, 44-100 Gliwice, Poland

People spend the majority of the day i.e. about 80% in indoor space and in this about 65% at home. Therefore indoor air quality is a crucial parameter that impacts their wellness and health. Especially role play bioaerosol's quality and quantity parameters resulted from the amount and diversity of bacteria, fungi and viruses. The use of an ozone generator is one of the most effective methods of disinfection of the air and surfaces. However, indoor ozone highconcentrations are harmful to humans. In case of the presence of people in disinfected spaces very important is to select the process parameters such as ozone concentration, air exchange rate and room's ventilation what allow to protects from the exceeding the permissible concentration of ozone in the air during and after process. Therefore it is crucial to develop and optimize the efficient process of indoor air disinfection with consideration of people's safety what was the aim of presented studies.

The ozone generator was operated at an output of 0.12 g/min, measurements were taken at 1 minute intervals with an Aeroqual meter. Ventilated air exchange rates were adjustable from 0.2 to 2 h-1. The microbiological analysis included the estimation of the total number of mesophilic, psychrophilic bacteria and molds. The samples were taken by impact method (sampler Air Ideal 3P (Biomerieux)) from one point located at the front wall of the closed chamber. For bacteria and fungi growth the Trypticase Soy Agar and Sabouraud medium were used respectively. The results were presented as CFU/m3.

The efficiency of ozone disinfection at different process parameters without exceeding the permissible level was examined. An 80-90% reduction of bacteria and a 40-45% reduction of fungi was achieved during ozone disinfection. The study confirms that the duration of ozone exposure has a strong influence on disinfection results, especially for fungi.



Identifying pollen episodes using a synergy of in-situ and remote sensing measurements

Zuzanna Rykowska¹, Artur Tomczak¹, Iwona S. Stachlewska¹

z.rykowska@student.uw.edu.pl, artur.tomczak@fuw.edu.pl, iwona.stachlewska@fuw.edu.pl ¹Institute of Geophysics, Faculty of Physics, University of Warsaw, Ludwika Pasteura 5, 02-093 Warsaw

KEY WORDS: Mie-Raman polarization lidar, Hirst-type spore traps, pollen grains, fungal spores

Bioaerosols emitted into the atmosphere due to plant pollination are considered as one of the main reasons for an increase in respiratory diseases (Asher et al., 2006; Strzelczyk et al., 2020). During inhalation process airborne pollen grains and fungal spores can cause an allergic reaction that, if left untreated, may lead to asthma (e.g. Rapiejko et al., 2018). Moreover, global climate change may increase the length of pollination, so relevant in terms of allergy hazards and its impact on human health.

In our research, we focus on allergenic pollen grains and fungal spores characterization. For that we are currently conducting a dedicated 12-month measuring campaign (Jan-Dec 2023) using unique combination of remote (Mie-Raman polarization lidar) and in-situ (Hirst-type spore trap) instruments to capture the whole pollination period of different plants in Warsaw urban environment. This core measurements are backed up with a range of additional observations, e.g. meteorological conditions, air-pollution monitoring, column-integrated sunphotometer observations, Doppler wind lidar profiling, etc.

Our aim is to characterize the detected pollen in terms of its morphology including structural and ornamental aspects of the grain (symmetry, shape, size, aperture number and location) and in terms of their type and abundance close to the surface and also above it. We seek information on how pollen grains spread within the atmospheric boundary layer and what conditions are enhancing such spread.

Based on an evaluation of nearly a decade of the past Mie-Raman polarization lidar observations (2013-2021) we propose a methodology that helps to identify pollination events in lidar data. The typical case is characterized in terms of volume depolarization ratio, relative humidity, temperature, wind speed and boundary layer top maximum level. Thus, it can be used for current observations as a muster. With the use of the Hirst-type spore trap measurements, which consist of a sample collection on a tape and a manual analysis through the microscopic examination, we can both identify pollen grain types at the ground level and verify lidar measurements. Pollen grains are classified based on their morphology (Weryszko-Chmielewska et al., 2007). The concentration of different pollen taxa is quantitatively analyzed, and the start and end dates of pollen seasons are determined using the so-called 98-percentage method.

Combination of both allows us to characterize pollen type and its vertical extent and assess to what extent the synergy of using the combined approach can help in faster pollination detection.

Acknowledgments

This work is supported by funding from the National Research Council of Poland (Preludium-BIS UMO-2020/39/O/ST10/03586). Artur Tomczak acknowledges the support of the EC Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme ATMO-ACCESS Integrating Activity (GA no. 101008004) for financing the TNA project POLLENAT.

REFERENCES

Asher, M. I., Montefort, S., Björkstén, B., Lai, C. K., Strachan, D. P., Weiland, S. K., & Williams, H. (2006). Worldwide time trends in the prevalence of symptoms of asthma, allergic rhinoconjunctivitis, and eczema in childhood: ISAAC Phases One and Three repeat multicountry cross-sectional surveys. Lancet (London, England), 368(9537), 733–743. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(06)69283-0

Strzelczyk, Z., Roszkowski, M., Feleszko, W., & Krauze, A. (2020). Avoidance of allergens as an environmental method in the prevention of inhaled allergy symptoms. Allergologia et Immunopathologia, 48(6), 745–752. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.ALLER.2019.06.011Nicolae, D., Vasilescu, J., Talianu, C., Binietoglou, I., Nicolae, V.,

Andrei, S., Antonescu, B.: A neural network aerosol-typing algorithm based on lidar data, Atmos. Chem. Phys., 18, 14511-14537, doi.org/10.5194/acp-18-14511-2018, 2018

Rapiejko, P., Jurkiewicz, D., Pietruszewska, W., Zielnik-Jurkiewicz, B., Woroń, J., & Lipiec, A. (2018). Treatment strategy of allergic rhinitis in the face of modern world threats. Otolaryngologia Polska = The Polish Otolaryngology, 72(2), 1–12. https://doi.org/10.5604/01.3001.0011.8057

Weryszko-Chmielewska, E., Kasprzyk, I., Myszkowska, D., Piotrowska, K., Puc, M., Smith, M., Stach, A., Stępalska, D., Uruska, A., Aerobiologia, Lublin, 2007



Application of mobile platform and geostatistical methods in the analysis of air quality in the selected area of the city of Lodz

Izabela Sówka¹, Robert Cichowicz², Maciej Dobrzański², Yaroslav Bezyk¹

izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, robert.cichowicz@p.lodz.pl, maciej.dobrzanski@p.lodz.pl, jaroslaw.bezyk@pwr.edu.pl ¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

²Faculty of Architecture, Civil and Environmental Engineering, Lodz University of Technology, Al. Politechniki 6, 90-924 Lodz, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality; urban atmosphere, spatio-temporal variability, UAV, GIS

INTRODUCTION

Air pollution, in terms of particulate matter (PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}, PM_{1.0}) and gaseous pollutants (H₂S, and VOC) has serious health effects. Thus, the ability to identify sources of air pollutant emissions and quickly assess air quality in urban areas, characterized by complex emission profiles, taking into account the dynamics of air pollutants distribution becomes crucial. In this type of research, mobile platforms can be used in addition to measurements made as part of standard monitoring (Jońca et al. 2022, Cichowicz and Dobrzański, 2021). The GIS interpolation techniques, on the other hand, allow for predicting unknown values at unsampled points based on the given points with known values distributed within the study area (Bezyk et al., 2021, Li et al., 2016).

RESEARCH AREA AND METHODS

As part of the study, in-situ measurement approaches were combined with the interpolation methods in the GIS system to investigate the spatial variability of pollution levels from a specified source in the urban atmosphere and an assessment of outdoor air quality in the vicinity of a small Paintshop operating in the city of Lodz was made. Concentrations of pollutants in vertical profiles (up to 47 m a.g.l.) of ambient air were measured using a mobile platform (unmanned aerial vehicle with measuring equipment) during three survey campaigns in September 2021. The performance of two interpolation techniques (inverse distance weighting, IDW and the Ordinary Kriging methods) to analyse the spatial and temporal variability of measured pollution concentration in the vicinity to the Paintshop was compared. The interpolated surfaces were created using the ArcGIS software within the Spatial Analyst and the Geostatistical Analyst techniques in the Geostatistical Wizard extension. The sensitivity of each method to the input data characteristics with different parameters (weights of sample point structure, number of measured points of the search radius) was evaluated.

RESULTS

The vertical structure of the pollutant concentrations indicated the occurrence of different types of layers with an almost constant concentration near the land surface, strong decrease (up to ca. 10 - 15 m a.g.l.), and significant fluctuations in concentrations to higher levels (above 25 m a.g.l.). Particulate concentrations (PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}, PM_{1.0}) were not exceeded the value of 39 µg m⁻³, with levels peaked on the surface. The maximum value of particulates concentration (up to 38.5 µg m⁻³) in vertical profiles was recorded at ca. 35-40 m a.g.l. The average concentrations of H₂S and VOC varied between 0.07 - 0.12 ppm and 0.01 - 0.27 ppm, respectively. The highest H₂S concentrations were observed at ca. 18 - 23 m a.g.l., reaching 0.14 ppm. A rapid increase in VOC levels, which reached 0.29 ppm, was measured in vertical profiles of 20 m a.g.l. and up to about 40 m a.g.l. Based on the survey results obtained, the kriging interpolation method was well suited to generate spatially distributed pollution maps for individual measurement campaigns.

REFERENCES

Jońca, J., Pawnuk, M., Bezyk, Y., Arsen, A., Sówka, I. 2022., Drone-Assisted Monitoring of Atmospheric Pollution— A Comprehensive Review, Sustainability 2022, 14, 11516

Cichowicz, R., Dobrzański, M. 2021, 3D Spatial Analysis of Particulate Matter (PM₁₀, PM_{2.5} and PM_{1.0}) and Gaseous Pollutants (H₂S, SO₂ and VOC) in Urban Areas Surrounding a Large Heat and Power Plant, Energies, 4, 14070

Bezyk, Y., Sówka, I., Górka, M., Blachowski, J. 2021, GIS-Based Approach to Spatio-Temporal Interpolation of Atmospheric CO₂ Concentrations in Limited Monitoring Dataset, Atmosphere, 12, 384

Li Z. 2021, An enhanced dual IDW method for high-quality geospatial interpolation, Scientific Reports, 11, 9903



Possibilities of using the wind profiler for air quality tests. First experiences

Ewa Krajny¹, Leszek Ośródka¹

ewa.krajny@imgw.pl; leszek.osrodka@imgw.pl ¹Podleśna 61, 01-673 Warsaw

KEY WORDS: remote sensing, wind profiler, air quality

ABSTRACT

The aim of the paper is to present the possibility of using wind profiler - an automatic remote sensing device that examines the course of areological conditions in the lower troposphere to identify meteorological causes of episodes of high concentrations of air pollution. Installed at the hydrological and meteorological station in Racibórz, the Wind Profiler LAP3000 is the first radar anemometer in Poland. It functions similarly to a meteorological radar, but its task is to measure the areological conditions of the atmosphere in a vertical system. The device sends a beam of electromagnetic pulses, which is scattered and partially reflected by air particles with different turbulent properties. After technical tests, in February 2023, control measurements in winter conditions were launched, the aim of which was to obtain information about the effectiveness of the device. Among its many applications (Boming L., et all, 2020), its suitability for assessing the impact of areological conditions on air quality during high dust concentrations was also tested. From 6-9.02.2023, an increased concentration of particulate matter was recorded in the vicinity of Racibórz. During the entire episode, the ground layer of the atmosphere was dominated by a weak wind, below 1 m/s, and the horizontal components of the wind speed up to a height of 250 m were a maximum of 4 m/s. On 7 February, when the highest values of PM10 concentration were recorded, the wind speed in the layer up to 1000 m did not exceed 5 m/s. In the entire analyzed period, the vertical components of wind speed up to a height of 1 km were close to 0 m / s or negative (up to -0.1 m/s). The wind prevailed from the northern and eastern sectors, with the exception of a section of the atmosphere layer at an altitude of about 750 m, where the wind blew from the south-western sector.



The presented results confirm the role of air ventilation factors in costing high dust concentrations, confirm the important role of WP in the diagnosis of such situations.

Acknowledgments

The purchase of the WP LAP3000 device was carried out as part of the ACTRIS project financed by the European Regional Development Fund under the Smart Growth Operational Programme 2014-2020 (POIR). Axis IV increasing scientific and research potential, action 4.2 Development of modern research infrastructure of the science sector, Smart Growth.

REFERENCES

Boming L⁻ et all, 2020 Characteristics and performance of wind profiles as observed by the radar wind profiler network of China, Atmos. Meas. Tech., 13, 4589–4600, 2020 https://doi.org/10.5194/amt-13-4589-2020 ©

Comparison of PM mass and concentration variations determined using traditional – manual weighing and robotic weighing system

Kamila Widziewicz-Rzońca¹; Dmytro Chyzhykov¹; Patrycja Rogula-Kopiec¹; Barbara Błaszczak¹; Monika Błaszczak¹; Krzysztof Słaby¹; Barbara Mathews¹; Krzysztof Klejnowski¹; Marianna Czaplicka¹; Sławomir Janas²

dmytro.chyzhykov@ipispan.edu.pl

¹Institute of Environmental Engineering Polish Academy of Sciences, M. Skłodowskiej-Curie 34 St., 41-819 Zabrze, Poland. ²Radwag Wagi Elektroniczne; Toruńska 5, 26-600 Radom Poland; *e*-mail: radom@*radwag*.pl.

KEY WORDS: PM; mass measurements; mass variations; robotic weighing system; automated weighing, RB 2.4 Y.F.; urban background; uncertainty

Precise determination of the levels of PM in the air and reliable information about possible exceedances is of great importance. Gravimetric mass of PM continues to be an important surrogate of regulatory importance linking particulate pollution to health and environmental impacts. Studies show that exposure to PM in ambient air has been linked to a number of different health outcomes, including: lung inflammatory reactions (He et al., 2017; Jia et al., 2021), adverse effects on the cardiovascular system (Yang et al., 2021; Qu et al., 2018; Czernych et al., 2023). Several observations report a significant association between ambient concentrations of PM with COVID-19 pandemic (Copat at al., 2020). For this reason methods of PM measurement have become essential in the preparation of strategies directed to human health protection. Filter weighing is a key part of this process, since PM mass and its concentration give a measure of air quality. Next to the manual method a robotic weighing systems have been developed to catch even microgram-level PM mass. In comparison to traditional weighing these systems provide more repetitive and accurate results regarding PM mass and eliminates human factor as the reason of measurement errors, making them more cost-effective and compliant with the EN 12341:2014 standard. This paper give an evaluation of the performance of a traditional manual weighing compared to robotic weighing system by using standard deviation in the repeated measurements of mass as a comparative measure. Different PM fractions (PM1, PM2.5, PM10) were collected using four reference samplers located in three locations differing regarding the type of emission sources. The PM mass was measured with a microbalance and a weighing robot. Most commonly used quartz fiber filters were used in this study. By evaluation of obtained results it was observed that differences in the parameters of conditioning, unstable conditioning periods when speaking about manual method as well as handling of the filters has influence on the filter weight in particular in the range of 0.008 mg to 0.220 mg, (±1.26% between manual and automatic PM mass weighing and ±1.11% between manual and automatic concentration measurements). In the nutshell, we found that robotic weighing is better able to minimize temperature and relative humidity [RH] fluctuations in the weighing environment.

Acknowledgments

Current research was preliminary for "Water - a great matter of aerosol mass uncertainty" (2021/42/E/ST10/00209) SONATA_BIS project. We would like to acknowledge our colleagues from Radwag Electronic Scales for their wonderful collaboration, including professional training.

REFERENCES

He M, Ichinose T, Yoshida S, Ito T, He C, Yoshida Y, Arashidani K, Takano H, Sun G, Shibamoto T. PM2.5-induced lung inflammation in mice: Differences of inflammatory response in macrophages and type II alveolar cells. J Appl Toxicol. 2017 Oct;37(10):1203-1218. doi: 10.1002/jat.3482. Epub 2017 May 29. PMID: 28555929.

Jia, H, Liu, Y, Guo, D, He, W, Zhao, L, Xia, S. PM2.5-induced pulmonary inflammation via activating of the NLRP3/caspase-1 signaling pathway. *Environmental Toxicology*. 2021; 36: 298–307. https://doi.org/10.1002/tox.23035

Yang L, Zhang Y, Qi W, Zhao T, Zhang L, Zhou L, Ye L. Adverse effects of PM_{2.5} on cardiovascular diseases. Rev Environ Health. 2021 Apr 1;37(1):71-80. doi: 10.1515/reveh-2020-0155. PMID: 33793141.

Qu Y, Pan Y, Niu H, He Y, Li M, Li L, Liu J, Li B. Short-term effects of fine particulate matter on non-accidental and circulatory diseases mortality: A time series study among the elder in Changchun. PLoS One. 2018 Dec 31;13(12):e0209793. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0209793. PMID: 30596713; PMCID: PMC6312390.

Czernych R, Badyda AJ, Kozera G, Zagożdżon P. Assessment of Low-Level Air Pollution and Cardiovascular Incidence in Gdansk, Poland: Time-Series Cross-Sectional Analysis. J Clin Med. 2023 Mar 13;12(6):2206. doi: 10.3390/jcm12062206. PMID: 36983207; PMCID: PMC10054494.

Copat C, Cristaldi A, Fiore M, Grasso A, Zuccarello P, Signorelli SS, Conti GO, Ferrante M. The role of air pollution (PM and NO2) in COVID-19 spread and lethality: A systematic review. Environ Res. 2020 Dec;191:110129. doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2020.110129.



The Air Quality Monitoring System In The City Of Kielce

Zbigniew Skrobacki,

jagaizbych3@gmail.com

Politechnika Świętokrzyska, Wydział Mechatroniki I Budowy Maszyn, Katedra Pojazdów Samochodowych i Transprtu, al. Tysiąclecia Państwa Polskiego 7, 25-314 Kielce, Polska

KEY WORDS: air pollution, air quality monitoring, modeling the spread of PM10, environmental education

BASIC SYSTEM INFORMATION

The air quality monitoring system in the city of Kielce was created as part of the "Kielce without smog" project of the Kielce Civic Budget of 2020. The system consists of 21 devices for measuring air quality, monitoring the level of PM1, PM2,5 and PM10 suspended particulate matter, temperature, humidity and pressure. Including 20 devices were installed in various Parts of the city the facades of schools and kindergartens and on the building of the City Hall. Data from the readings of air quality measurements, from sensors included in the system, are processed and made available through a widget presenting the results on the website. The system is informative and educational. Ongoing access to measurement data provides information on the current state of air in the city of Kielce, while the analysis of data from individual measurement points will allow for locating sources of air pollution, constituting important data helpful in the fight for clean air in the city.

Environmental education

In order to obtain funds for the implementation of social education, the project was submitted to the competition under the "Regional Education Support Program Ecological". The following educational activities have been reported: part A – the guide/book "What we breathe in cities. An example of the city of Kielce"; part B – activities for children and young people; part C – education of residents interested in investments planned as part of the "Kielce Energy Cluster"; part D – education of retirees (Senior Clubs and the University of the Third Age).

Scientific aspects

- 1. Creation of databases on air pollution and accompanying atmospheric phenomena.
- 2. Improving PM10 concentration modeling tools.
- 3. Forecasting in the city area covered by monitoring.

REFERENCES

Kleczkowska B. Kleczkowski P. 2013, Ochrona Środowiska z analizą jakości powietrza w Krakowie, Wydawnictwa AGH, Kraków Kleczkowski P. 2020, Smog w Polsce, przyczyny, skutki, przeciwdziałanie, Wydawnictwo Naukowe PWN SA, Warszawa Markiewicz M. T. 2004, Podstawy modelowania rozprzestrzeniania się zanieczyszczeń w powietrzu atmosferycznym, Oficyna Wydawnicza Politechniki Warszawskiej, Warszawa

Oficjalna strona internetowa Miasta Kielce: www.kielce.eu

Idea Kielce: https://idea.kielce.eu



Usefulness of UAV-mounted multisensors system for in situ atmospheric measurement: a case study from Wrocław

Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz¹, Tymoteusz Sawiński¹, Magdalena Korzystka-Muskała¹, Marek Kowalczyk¹, Piotr Modzel¹

anetta.drzeniecka-osiadacz@uwr.edu.pl

¹The University of Wrocław, Institute of Geography and Regional Development, Department of Climatology and Atmosphere Protection, Kosiby 8 Str., 51-621 Wroclaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: UAV measurements, particulate matter, vertical profiling, sodar

Air pollution, especially particulate matter (PM), is considered as a major environmental threat worldwide (WHO, 2021). Associations between ambient air pollution and adverse health effects are well documented, both for long-term and short-term health impacts (Brauer et al., 2019; Lelieveld et al. 2015, Dominici et al., 2019). Particulate matter has a serious detrimental effect on the environment, damages the crop, causes climate change and reduces visibility. High-resolution monitoring of air pollution concentration and meteorological conditions (temperature, humidity, wind, etc.) within the atmospheric boundary layer (ABL) is crucial for various environmental applications. It is important to understand the processes of surface–atmosphere interactions, which govern, e.g., high air pollution concertation events, and it is vital to measure the impacts of air pollution on human health and the environment. Information about these parameters is usually limited to a few meters above the ground; moreover, these measurements are most frequently carried out in stationary mode, and sometimes are extended with remote sensing technology (Buzdugan, Stefan, 2020; Lambey, Prasad, 2021). Thus, mobile measurement involving UAVs is an interesting supplement for ground-based measurement. Drones equipped with properly designed and constructed sensors are success-fully used in measuring air pollution, greenhouse gases, and meteorological variables, and seems to be useful for surveys in small areas (Chang et al., 2020; Madokoro et al., 2021).

The main objective of the study is to present the ability of using UAVs in simultaneous research of air pollution concentration and meteorological parameters and to deter-mine the variability of the PM concentration together with the ABL structure in the lower part of the atmosphere in various types of land use and with different emission structures.

The key issue to be solved is the appropriate design of the measurement system for comprehensive atmospheric studies (Chang et al., 2020), and in the case of using low-cost sensors, their proper calibration to obtain reliable data with high resolution. The use of miniature solutions also allows measurements to be made up to a height of 1000 m above ground level; however, it seems that from the point of view of concentration dynamics and the structure of the ABL, the lowest 300–500 m above the ground is the most important, especially in urban areas.

The solution presented in this study, utilizing simultaneous measurements of meteorological variables carried out according to the standards and air quality, allows for a detailed analysis of the influence of the structure of the ABL on air quality. It also complements remote sensing measurements, such as ABL sodar research. Thanks to the modular construction of the measuring head, in addition to basic equipment for measuring temperature, humidity, particulate matter, and ozone concentration, selected devices could be added depending on the scientific needs.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: This research was funded within the LIFE-MAPPINAIR/PL Project.

REFERENCES

World Health Organization. 2021. WHO Global Air Quality Guidelines: Particulate Matter (PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀), Ozone, Nitrogen Dioxide, Sulfur Dioxide and Carbon Monoxide; World Health Organization: Geneva, Switzerland.

Brauer, M.; Brook, J.R.; Christidis, T.; Chu, Y.; Crouse, D.L.; Erickson, A.; Hystad, P.; Li, C.; Martin, R.V.; Meng, J.; et al. 2019. Mortality–Air Pollution Associations in Low-Exposure Environments (MAPLE), Phase 1. *Res. Rep. Health Eff. Inst.* 203.

Dominici, F.; Schwartz, J.; Di, Q.; Braun, D.; Choirat, C.; Zanobetti, A. 2019. Assessing Adverse Health Effects of Long-Term Exposure to Low Levels of Ambient Air Pollution: Phase 1. *Res. Rep. Health Eff. Inst.*, 200. https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196(21)00195-9.

Lelieveld, J.; Evans, J.S.; Fnais, M.; Giannadaki, D.; Pozzer, A. 2015. The contribution of outdoor air pollution sources to premature mortality on a global scale. *Nature*, *525*, 367–371.

Dang, R.; Yang, Y.; Hu, X.M.; Wang, Z.; Zhang, S. A review of techniques for diagnosing the atmospheric boundary layer height (ABLH) using aerosol lidar data. *Remote Sens.* **2019**, *11*, 1590.

Buzdugan, L.; Stefan, S. 2020. A comparative study of sodar, lidar wind measurements and aircraft derived wind observations. *Rom. J. Phys.*, *65*, 15.

Lambey, V.; Prasad, A.D. 2021. A review on air quality measurement using an unmanned aerial vehicle. *Water Air Soil Pollut.*, 232, 1–32.

Chang, C.C.; Chang, C.Y.; Wang, J.L.; Pan, X.X.; Chen, Y.C.; Ho, Y.J. 2020. An optimized multicopter UAV sounding technique (MUST) for probing comprehensive atmospheric variables. *Chemosphere*, *254*, 126867.

Madokoro, H.; Kiguchi, O.; Nagayoshi, T.; Chiba, T.; Inoue, M.; Chiyonobu, S.; Nix, S.; Woo, H.; Sato, K. 2021. Development of Drone-Mounted Multiple Sensing System with Advanced Mobility for In Situ Atmospheric Measurement: A Case Study Focusing on PM2.5 Local Distribution. *Sensors*, *21*, 4881. https://doi.org/10.3390/s21144881.



Evaluation of the suitability of the application of selected measurement and calculation methods in the odour impact assessment of the waste management facilities – A case study

Izabela Sówka¹, Marcin Pawnuk¹, Urszula Miller¹, Justyna Jońca¹, Alicja Wroniszewska², Yaroslaw Bezyk¹ Małgorzata Paciorek³

izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl, a.wroniszewska@ecothesis.pl, urszula.miller@pwr.edu.pl, marcin.pawnuk@pwr.edu.pl, justyna.jonca@pwr.edu.pl, jaroslaw.bezyk@pwr.edu.pl, malgorzata.paciorek@ekometria.com.pl ¹Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

²Ecothesis, ul. Krakowska 47-49, 50-424 Wroclaw, Poland ³Environmental Studies and Measurements Bureau EKOMETRIA Ltd., ul. Elbląska 66, 80-761 Gdansk, Poland

KEY WORDS: air quality, odour impact assessment, dynamic olfactometry, field olfactometry, geostatistical methods, CALMET/ CALPUFF system

INTRODUCTION

When considering the selection of specific types of method to assess the odour impact of municipal waste management facilities, it is important to take into account the complexity of the processes involved in the management of municipal waste containing organic fractions that can generate odours, including, but not limited to. : waste unloading, the waste transfer stage at transfer stations, and waste management activities at mechanical-biological treatment (MBT) and biological waste treatment plants, including aerobic stabilisation and anaerobic stabilisation technology, in the case of mixed municipal waste processing,

as well as composting and anaerobic digestion, in the case of selectively collected biowaste thermal waste conversion in waste incinerators (Pawnuk et al., 2022, Pawnuk et al., 2023). The number and varying activity and characteristics of odour emission sources means that measurement and calculation methods can be used in parallel in odour impact assessment, which, when applied simultaneously, allows for assessment in both spatial and temporal contexts (Sówka, 2018).

RESEARCH AREA AND METHODS

The study, which included 3-series field measurements (field olfactometry, sensory evaluation in the form of field inspections), was carried out at a waste management plant located in Lower Silesia where processes and operations are carried out including mechanical-biological processing of waste, sorting of raw waste, acceptance of municipal waste, with the capacity to manage 320 thousand tons of waste per year. The results of the field survey provided an opportunity to perform analyses of the odour concentration and odour intensity distribution using the weighted inverse distance interpolation method (IDW). However, the assessment based only on measurements considers the simultaneous impact of all sources, including those adjacent to the plant (such as a sewage treatment plant or landfill quarters). The precise identification of the sources with the greatest impact was possible using modelling techniques. In this purpose, data from odour concentration measurements were used to create an emission model dedicated to this facility and perform model calculations using the CALMET/CALPUFF system and meteorological data from 2021.

EXAMPLES OF RESEARCH RESULTS

The average concentrations of odour at the site, as in the case of odour intensity, were close to the upper limit of determination. Analysis of spatial concentration distributions using the IDW method showed that the most odour generating places on the site were: the sorting room, the composting yard and the waste storage yard and model studies have clearly indicated that the greatest impact relates to the waste storage yard. However, analysis performed for the whole year (2021), shown that the impact of the facility is limited. The maximum range with exceedance of 1 ou/m³ is about 1 km, but when we consider the intensity of the odour this range is limited only to 100 m. On the other hand, maximum impact closes within facility boundaries and it is limited to 20% hours in the year.

REFERENCES

Pawnuk M., Sówka I., Naddeo V., 2023, The Use of Field Olfactometry in the Odor Assessment of a Selected Mechanical– Biological Municipal Waste Treatment Plant within the Boundaries of the Selected Facility—A Case Study, Sustainability, 15(9):7163

Pawnuk M., Szulczyński B., den Boer E., Sówka I., 2022, Preliminary analysis of the state of municipal waste management technology in Poland along with the identification of waste treatment processes in terms of odor emissions, Archives of Environmental Protection, vol. 48, nr 3, pp. 3-20

Sówka I., 2018, Air quality and odour evaluation on terrains characterized by a complicated odour emission profiles, SHS Web Conf., 57 (2018): 02012



Application of selected measurement and calculation methods in the analysis of particulate matter emission sources in urban areas

Anna Chlebowska-Styś¹, Izabela Sówka², Wioletta Rogula-Kozlowska³, Barbara Mathews⁴, Magdalena Rogawska¹, Ewelina Brakoniecka¹, Beata Merenda²

a.chlebowska-stys@gios.gov.pl; izabela.sowka@pwr.edu.pl; wrogula@sgsp.edu.pl; barbara.mathews@ipispan.edu.pl; magdalena.rogawska@gios.gov.pl; e.brakoniecka@gios.gov.pl; beata.merenda@pwr.edu.pl

¹Główny Inspektorat Ochrony Środowiska, Departament Monitoringu Środowiska, Al. Jerozolimskie 92, 00-807 Warszawa, Polska

²Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Plac Grunwaldzki 13, 50-377 Wroclaw, Poland

³The Main School of Fire Service, Safety Engineering Institute, 52/54 Słowackiego St., PL01-629, Warsaw, Poland ⁴Institute of Environmental Engineering, Polish Academy of Sciences, 34 Skłodowska-Curie Street, 41-819 Zabrze, Poland

KEY WORDS: particulate matter, source, urban atmosphere

INTRODUCTION

Due to the toxic properties of fine particulate matter (PM) and the frequent exceeding of acceptable standards established for the protection of human health, analyses in the field of identification emission sources and trends of changes in particulate matter in the air arouse great interest both among scientists and government and local authorities responsible for implementing programmes protection of air, or implementation of environmental policy and protection of public health (WHO 2013). Knowledge of composition of the PM and local and regional sources of air pollution emission and meteorological conditions with the use of appropriate statistical techniques allows the assessment of emission sources in the selected area. The identification of sources emission, especially in the case of the fine PM fraction, is extremely important due to the threat associated with the presence of fine particles in the atmosphere, as well as due to the fact that Poland is a specific region where PM concentrations are exceptionally high (Rogula-Kozowska i in. 2019, Sówka i in. 2018, Rawicki i in. 2018).

RESEARCH AREA AND METHODOLOGY

The research and analyses presented in the work included the results of the measurements carried out during two measurement campaings carried out in Poznań. Sampling was carried out in two 4-week measurement campaigns in thermally different seasons (25.10-22.11.2016 and 5.06-2.07.2017), and the measurement points represented the type of urban background and traffic stations. Harvard impactors were used to collect particulate matter samples of the PM₁, PM_{2.5}, and PM₁₀ fractions. The Derenda PNS 16T-3.1 sequential impactor and MicroPNS LVS 16 type impactors from Umwelttechnik MCZ GmbH were used to collect the measurement of particulate matter concentrations within the State Environmental Monitoring. The sampling methodology was in accordance with the PN-EN 12341 standards (PN-EC 12341, 2014-07). The samples were analysed using the method ion chromatography and inductively coupled plasma – optical emission spectroscopy (ICP-OES) and OC and EC, ten water-soluble ions (Na⁺, NH₄⁺, K⁺, Mg²⁺, Ca²⁺, F⁻, Cl⁻, NO³⁻, PO₄³⁻, SO₄²⁻) and 12 trace elements (As, Br, Cd, Cr, Mn, Mo, Ni, Pb, V, Zn, Al, Fe) have been determined. As the final part of the work, receptor modelling was used, with the simultaneous use of 3 research methods: enrichment factor (EF), Principal Component Analysis (PCA) and Positive Matrix Factorization (PMF) method.

RESULTS

The research and analysis indicated four main sources in Poznań: emissions from the municipal and household sector, inflow related to combustion processes, traffic emissions (including combustion of liquid fuels in automobile engines and abrasion of road surfaces and vehicle components) and mineral dust. Research and analyses have proved that air quality in Poznań is

significantly influenced by low-stack emissions from the municipal and household sectors, but it cannot be clearly stated that only this source determines air quality in the city. In the Poznań area there are many other emission sources that can significantly affect the composition of air quality, and thus the air quality and living comfort of residents.

REFERENCES

WHO 2013, Review of evidence on health aspects of air pollution (REVIHAAP). Technical report, WHO Regional Office for Europe, Copenhagen, Denmark

Rogula-Kozowska W., Majewski R., Widziewicz K., Rogula-Kupiec P., Tytła M., Mathews B., Ciuta-Witrylak M. 2019, Seasonal variations of PM 1 bound water concentration in urban areas in Poland, Atmospheric Pollution Research Vol. 10 No. 1, pp.267-273

Sówka I., Chlebowska-Styś A., Mathews B. 2018, Preliminary analysis of variability in concentration of fine particulate matter - PM1.0, PM2.5, and PM10 in area of Poznań city, E3S Web of Conferences Vol. 28, 01005

Rawicki K., Czarnecka M., Nidzgorska-Lencewicz J. 2018, Regions of pollution with particulate matter in Poland, E3S Web of Conferences Vol. 28, 01025



Preliminary studies on the optimisation of the operating conditions of the BTF for the hydrogen sulfide removal

Elżbieta Romanik¹, Urszula Miller¹, Milad Dehghani², Izabela Sówka¹

elzbieta.romanik@pwr.edu.pl, urszula.miller@pwr.edu.pl, milad.dehghani@tholander.de, izabela.sówka@pwr.edu.pl ¹ Wroclaw University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Environmental Engineering, Wroclaw, Poland ² Tholander Ablufttechnik GmbH, Viernheim, Germany

KEY WORDS: odours, biological methods

INTRODUCTION

There are a number of classical methods for the removal of odorous compounds from waste gases, but biological methods (bioscrubbers, biofilters, and biotrickling filters: BTFs) are becoming increasingly applicable (Wu et al. 2020). Determining the operating parameters that affect the efficiency of hydrogen sulfide removal is crucial in making an appropriate decision regarding the selection of the optimal treatment method, suitable for the characteristics of the technological processes and the chemical composition of the emitted odorous gases (Melse et al. 2012).

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

The test stand consisted of a vertical biotrickling filter column, a tank for the sprinkler, and a separate control and monitoring panel. The system was supplied with air from an oil-free compressor and hydrogen sulfide from a cylinder (H₂S concentration in the cylinder 50%v in nitrogen). The gases were combined in a mixer and fed countercurrent to the liquid flow to the biotrickling filter column that was filled with polyurethane foam elements inoculated with microorganisms from activated sludge. The concentration levels of the set concentration values at the inlet to the column were selected from the range of 60 - 300 ppm. The tests were carried out at a constant pH value of 3 and 4, which was automatically controlled with a pump dispensing NaOH solution. During the study, the proportions of the various groups of microorganisms (mesophilic bacteria,, psychrophilic bacteria and microscopic fungi), the loading rate (LR), the elimination capacity (EC) and the removal efficiency (RE) were determined at the residence time of the empty residence bed time (EBRT) ranging from 9.42 - 44.3 seconds. There was also continuous monitoring of process parameters such as column pressure, L/G ratio (amount of spray liquid to gas stream), liquid volume (Vliq), gas and liquid temperature (Tg, Tliq), conductivity (Con.), and oxidoreduction potential (ORP) of the spray liquid.

PRELIMINARY RESULTS

The results of the study indicated a 98.3 - 100% H₂S removal efficiency depending on the retention time and hydrogen sulfide concentration at the column inlet, variation in the proportion of group of microorganisms (*Psychrophilic Bacteria, Mesophilic Bacteria, Mesophilic Bacteria*, and *Microscopic fungi*), both over time and in the vertical profile of the column. For example, before and after the biofiltration process *Mesophilic bacteria, Psychrophilic bacteria, and Microscopic fungi* in the amount of 19400000 and 6900000, 29850000 and 6900000 and 15000 and 18000 cfu/1 element of the deposit, respectively, were observed. The increase in the number of *Microscopic fungi* after the biofiltration process may be due to the fact that at the inlet to the biofilter, local drying of the bed or reduction of pH may occur, which is conducive to their development.

The publication is the result of a collaboration with Tholander Ablufttechnik GmbH.

REFERENCES

Wu, J., Jiang, X., Jin, Z., Yang, S., & Zhang, J., 2020, The performance and microbial community in a slightly alkaline biotrickling filter for the removal of high concentration H2S from biogas, Chemosphere, 249,

Melse, R.W., Ploegaert, J.P.M. & Ogink, N.W.M., 2012, Biotrickling filter for the treatment of exhaust air from a pig rearing building: Ammonia removal performance and its fluctuations, Biosystems Engineering, 113, 242–252,

Gaseous air pollutants in Silesia Province – comparison between Sentinel 5P satellite data and ground measurements

Andrzej Zając¹, Paweł Bogawski²

andzaj@st.amu.edu.pl, bogawski@amu.edu.pl

¹Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznan, Faculty of Biology, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań ²Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznań, Faculty of Biology, Department of Systematic and Environmental Botany, ul. Uniwersytetu Poznańskiego 6, 61-614 Poznań

KEY WORDS: air pollution, air quality, Upper Silesian Industrial Region

Silesia is considered a region with highest concentrations of air pollutants in Poland. However, ground level measurements are performed only in a limited number of stations. In this work, we attempted to use satellite data on selected gaseous pollutants, i.e. nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide and ozone to assess the relationship with ground level data and check if it is possible to calculate the surface pollutant concentrations based on Satellite data. Tropospheric vertical column densities for NO₂, O₃, SO₂ over the Silesian Province were obtained using Sentinel-5 Precursor satellite for the years 2019-2021 using Google Earth Engine. These data sets were compared with measurements made at 18 ground stations in Silesia, which were downloaded from the AirBase (The European air quality database) via saqgetr R package. Data for tropospheric columns downloaded from the satellite and those measured at ground stations correlated well for NO₂, with a correlation coefficient r > 0.75 for summer periods (from May to September) after removing outliers. On the other hand, the lowest correlation between the measurements appears in the autumn and winter periods. This could be due to the fact that the temperature is lower, which leads to an increase in the combustion intensity of products not intended for this purpose in obsolete furnaces and fireplaces. These practices lead to large spatial variability in the distribution of pollution that is not reflected in Sentinel 5p images. In addition, all stations located in Silesia are city stations located in densely populated cities, which significantly inflates the values measured by them. It is possible that including more remote sensing and meteorological variables could increase the correlation of surface measurements of gaseous air pollutants and satellite-derived pollution data.



108

The occurrence of BETX inside motor vehicles

Barbara Kozielska¹, Kamil Szklarz¹

Barbara.Kozielska@polsl.pl, szklarzu0301@gmail.com ¹Silesian University of Technology, Faculty of Energy and Environmental Engineering, Department of Air Protection 22B Konarskiego St., 44-100 Gliwice, Poland

KEY WORDS: VOC, IAQ, diffusive samplers, cars

ABSTRACT

In the modern world, cars are an important part of people's lives, as they are a means of transportation in which people can spend from a few minutes to even dozens of hours. The drivers, as well as passengers, are exposed to many harmful substances, including volatile organic compounds (VOCs), which mainly migrate from the outside and spread inside the vehicle. Exposure to VOCs is a serious health problem causing drivers, especially professional, may be at increased risk of cancer. BTEX compounds (benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, xylenes) are considered to be indicators of human exposure to VOCs, which in turns are recognized, along with formaldehyde, as markers of exhaust emissions from vehicle engines. This study attempts to determine the concentrations of benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, xylenes and styrene in the cabins of passenger vehicles powered by gasoline (G), gasoline and gas (GG) and diesel (D). The test objects consisted with 11 different car models. All the cars differed in year of manufacture, type of engine and intensity of use. The research was carried out in parallel, during the winter-spring season. Measurements were carried out for a period of 5 weeks, samples were taken every 7 days. Tubes packed with Tenax GR type bed were used for passive sampling. Samples were analyzed by thermal desorption-gas chromatography with flame ionization detector (TD-GC/FID). The average concentrations of total BTEX were 28.97 µg/m³, 20.8 µg/m³ and 14.48 μ g/m³ for G, D and GG respectively. In each car, the highest average concentration was noticed for toluene (9.6-21.1 μ g/m³), what accounts for about 46-73% of maximum value. The average concentration of carcinogenic benzene ranged from 1.6 μg/m³ (GG) to 3.3 μ g/m³ (D). In one of the vehicles tested, a very high benzene concentration reaching out to 31.5 μ g/m³ was recorded, after a visit to a diagnostic station. In GG and D, almost 20% were xylenes, while in G the proportion of xylenes reached the half that.



Formaldehyde in the indoor air of beauty salon – first results

Patrycja Rogula-Kopiec¹, Tomasz Mach², Wioletta Rogula-Kozłowska ³

patrycja.rogula@ipispan.edu.pl, tmach@mlu.pl, wrogula@sgsp.edu.pl

¹The Institute of Environmental Engineering of the Polish Academy of Sciences, 41-819 Zabrze, ul. M. Skłodowskiej-Curie

341

² MLU Sp. z o. o. Str. Polominska 16 PL40-585 Katowice

³Institute of Safety Engineering, The Main School of Fire Service, 52/54 Słowackiego Street, 01-629 Warsaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: indoor air, beauty salons, VOC

Nowodays, there is a significant amount of data and publications available on indoor air quality in various types of buildings, including schools, theaters, classrooms, and libraries (Kociszewska K. et al. 2017, Chang C-J et al., 2018).

Indoor air tests conducted in Poland have so far mainly covered the mass and number of concentrations of particulate matter (Rogula-Kopiec P. et al. 2019, Rogula-Kozłowska W. et al. 2020)

Meanwhile, formaldehyde can have adverse health effects on humans. Short-term exposure to elevated formaldehyde levels causes irritation of the eyes, nose and throat, as well as respiratory symptoms such as coughing and wheezing (Tsigonia A. et al. 2010). Long-term or repeated exposure to formaldehyde is associated with respiratory problems, allergic reactions, and may even increase the risk of certain cancers (Decisioneering 2007).

Formaldehyde levels in indoor air quality (IAQ) are often measured using air quality tests, which can include passive sampling devices. Professional air quality assessments let identify formaldehyde sources and determine indoor concentration. World Health Organization (WHO) recommends a maximum residential formaldehyde exposure limit of 0.08 parts per million (ppm) (WHO 2000).

The work presents the first results from formaldehyde measurements in a selected beauty salon, located in Bytom city. The measurement was carried out with a compact microF formaldehyde analyzer from Chromatotec. It enabled continuous real-time qualification and quantification of formaldehyde (HCHO) in real time. The obtained data series was presented as the course of six-hour averages over the period 8-23.03.2023.

From the compiled results, a significant increase in concentrations of formaldehyde in the morning can be observed, lasting during the time when the salon is open and provides its services. It is clear that the highest concentrations occur during the opening and closing hours of the salon, which may indicate that its main source in the living room is most likely outdoor air 8-23.03.2023.

From the compiled results, a significant increase in concentrations in the morning can be observed, lasting during the time when the salon is open and provides its services.

It is clear that the highest concentrations occur during the opening and closing hours of the salon, which may indicate that its main source in the living room is most likely outside air.

Acknowledgments

This research was partially funded by the National Science Centre, Poland, grant number 2021/41/B/ST10/04101

REFERENCES

Kociszewska K. et al. 2017. Research on carbon occurrence in indoor air of selected universities in Poland, Sci. Rev. Eng. Environ. Sci., 26, 1, 75

Chang C-J et al. 2018, Indoor air quality in hairdressing salons in Taipei, Indoor Air, 28, 173-8

Rogula-Kopiec P. et al. 2019, Air pollution of beauty salons by cosmetics from the analysis of suspensed particulate matter, Environ. Chem. Lett., 17, 1, 551–558

Rogula-Kozłowska W. et al. 2020, Respirable particles and polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons at two Polish fire stations, Build. Environ., 184

110

Tsigonia A. et al. 2010, Case Report: Autoimmune Disease Triggered by Exposure to Hair Straightening Treatment Containing Formaldehyde, Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health, 7, 314-324

Decisioneering 2007, Crystal Ball Developer Kit User Manual, Version 7.3.1, Oracle

WHO 2000, Regional Office for Europe, Air Quality Guidelines for Europe, SE 2000, Copenhagen, European Series, 91



Particulate matter in the indoor air in a residential house – a case study from Goczałkowice-Zdrój

Karolina Banot¹, Anetta Drzeniecka-Osiadacz¹

banot.karolina1@gmail.com

¹The University of Wrocław, Institute of Geography and Regional Development, Department of Climatology and Atmosphere Protection, Kosiby 8 str., 51-621 Wroclaw, Poland

KEY WORDS: air pollution, IAQ, particulate matter, sick building syndrome

Indoor air pollution is increasingly being researched by scientists. It is estimated that about 90% of the time people spend indoors. For this reason, interest in indoor air quality (IAQ) has increased. The problem of air pollution in buildings concerns highly and poorly developed countries. However, the reasons for the worse state of the microenvironment inside are different. In addition to atmospheric air, IAQ is influenced by the activity of residents, ventilation and indoor microclimate. Pollutants include chemical compounds such as carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides and formaldehyde as well as volatile organic compounds. In addition, they are also solid particles in the form of particulate matter. These substances can be hazardous to health and life. Exposure to pollution is mainly manifested by irritation of the upper and lower respiratory tract. It increases the risk of cardiovascular diseases and increases the likelihood of allergies. Frequent complaints from exposure to indoor pollutants can lead to Sick Building Syndrome (SBS).

In this work, a measurement module was used to study the concentration of particulate matter PM_1 , $PM_{2.5}$ and PM_{10} in rooms containing potential pollution emitters. Based on the results, it was noted that the actions taken by users have a significant impact on air quality. A negative impact of tobacco smoke on the concentration of particulate matter in the air was also found.

REFERENCES

Stolarska M., Lis P. (2021). Natural ventilation and indor air quality in milti-family residential buildings- an indication of the problem, case study. *Zeszyty Naukowe Politechniki Częstochowskiej nr 27*, s. 234-241.

Wolkoff, P. (2018). Indoor air humidity, air quality, and health–An overview. International journal of hygiene and environmental health, 221(3), 376-390.

WHO. (2021a). Global air quality guildelines. Paticulate matter (PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀), ozone, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide and carbon monoxide. *WHO Regional Office for Europe*.

https://www.epa.gov/report-environment/indoor-air-quality

https://ourworldindata.org/indoor-air-pollution



ISBN: 978-83-62673-87-2